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PERFORMANCE REPORT  

 

Overview of the Year by the Chief Executive 

The NHS in England has an unprecedented financial challenge with a funding gap of £30 

billion by 2020/21, £8billion of this will be provided by the Government but the remaining £22 

billion has to be found by the NHS through system reform and transformation as outlined in the 

NHS Five Year Forward View. In addition to the financial challenges there are workforce 

shortages in many areas of health and this is particularly noticeable in primary care with both a 

national and local shortage of GPs. Delivering this amount of efficiency savings coupled with 

the workforce crisis in some sectors, will require an extraordinary level of change and 

improvement for the NHS and during 2016/17 NHS St Helens CCG experienced the enormity 

of this challenge. 

 

The challenges faced by the CCG as a result are detailed within the Annual Report but can be 

summarised as follows: 

 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  

THE CHALLENGE THE RESPONSE 

The CCG could not continue to fund the 

current level of demand for health services in 

the Borough with hospital care and continuing 

healthcare in particular placing the CCG under 

significant financial pressure. During the year 

we have faced a £20.5 million gap arising from 

forecasted costs exceeding funding for this 

year. 

 

As a result of the financial challenge, under a 

new national rating scheme for performance 

we were rated as ‘Inadequate’ 

 

By September NHS England (NHSE) placed 

the CCG into a formal recovery position known 

as ‘Legal Directions’. 

 

The CCG had to deliver a formal Recovery and 

Improvement Plan to NHSE and the CCG have 

monthly Recovery Meetings with NHS England 

to monitor progress against that plan 

In response to the formal recovery position we 

produced an ‘Improvement Plan’ which has been 

approved by NHSE and will drive delivery of 

schemes to bridge the financial gap. The plan is 

focused on key themes. 

 

This plan is now embedded within the organisation 

and it is the key plan of the CCG. Each area within 

the plan has an Executive Lead who meet regularly 

with programme leads to review progress against 

the plan. 

 

 

The CCG ended the financial year with a deficit of 

£11.9m. Whilst this deficit is large we have 

managed to reduce the gap from £20.5m without 

stopping any essential services and whilst 

maintaining quality and effectiveness of care for 

local people. This deficit will be offset by the 

release of a risk reserve which has resulted the 

final reported deficit being improved to £8.7m. 
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ORGANISATIONAL CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY 

THE CHALLENGE THE RESPONSE 

By the summer, the CCG were subject to an 

external ‘Capacity and Capability’ review 

which highlighted key leadership and 

governance issues. 

 

The CCG’s Clinical Chief Executive resigned 

and the CCG faced significant changes at its 

most senior level. 

 

We have addressed all of the issues identified 

regarding the functioning of CCG Leadership, teams, 

systems and processes and are confident that we 

are establishing a culture and determination to 

deliver sustainable high quality health care services 

for local people. 

 

An interim Clinical Chief Executive and Recovery 

Director were appointed in September 2016. 

 

A project management office is now in place and the 

systems are established within the organisation.  

 

Governance processes have changed to reflect the 

issues raised within the Capacity and Capability 

Review and are now much more focussed and 

strengthen the CCG’s processes significantly. 

ENGAGEMENT AND RELATIONSHIPS 

THE CHALLENGE THE RESPONSE 

There were poor system relationships across 

partner organisations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Engagement with member practices was not 

as effective as it needed to be. 

 

The CCG is now working closely and collaboratively 
with key partners and in particular with the Local 
Authority who have been very supportive during 
these difficult times.  
 
We have made a significant contribution to the work 
of St Helens Peoples Board and this will continue to 
be a high priority in 2017/18 as we work with all 
partners to establish an Integrated Care System 
across all St Helens with the aim of ‘Improving 
People’s Lives in St Helens, together by tackling the 
challenge of cost and demand.’ 
 

The CCG are working very closely with all Cheshire 

and Mersey partners, particularly those closest to us 

(known as our Local Delivery System) and lead on 

key work streams that are being delivered on a wider 

footprint such as Medicines Management. 

 

The CCG have established a GP Member’s Council 

with a clearly defined role and there is a move 

towards locality working. A borough wide GP 

federation is being developed alongside this to 

address challenges of sustainability within Primary 

Care. 

 

The CCG has made good progress towards the GP 

Five Year Forward View. The role of the GP 

Governing Body Members has been developed and 

strengthened. 
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Despite this turbulent and challenging time the CCG have managed to oversee and ensure 

delivery of consistently safe and high quality health services for the people of St Helens. 

Evidence of this is presented in this Annual Report and we have been able to address the 

criticisms and issues regarding the organisation. 

 

Key achievements for the CCG this year include: 

 

 Rated good for dementia care 

 Rated good for diabetes care 

 Member practices perform well in Quality Outcomes Framework (QOF) 

 Maintained core NHS constitutional targets 

 Rates of infection across commissioned services are good 

 Completed a significant piece of redesign work for Out of Hospital and Intermediate 

Care and we will have a new model in place by 1st April 2017 

 Leading work to reduce falls and pressure ulcers in the borough 

 Successfully implemented a Referral Management System (RMS) to improve the quality 

of referrals to the local hospital and ensure they are appropriate  

 Reduced prescribing costs and achieved all savings goals for medicines management 

 Adopting the Commissioning for Value/Rightcare approach to reduce unwarranted 

variation 

 Working in partnership further developed our Strategic Estates Group to include all 

public estate within the borough. 

 

We will start 2017/18 with a planned in year deficit of £5m but we have robust plans to address 

this and schemes in place aimed at bringing cost and demand for health services in line with 

our allocated budget, ensuring that the CCG commission services that represent the best value 

for money for the people of St Helens. Particular areas of focus for 2017/18 include: 

 

 Urgent care – we will be prioritising work to reduce attendance at Accident and 

Emergency and to reduce emergency admissions 

 Primary Care- we will be working to implement the GP Forward View locally and in 

particular will focus on schemes to address workforce shortages 

 Out of Hospital Care – we will implement a new model for community nursing and 

Intermediate Care and work on further schemes to offer robust integrated community 

services for Long Term Conditions including frailty 

 We will prioritise work regarding mental health services (for adults and children) and 

keep a focus and scrutiny on cancer targets and cancer care  

 Prevention – in line with Cheshire and Merseyside plans we will focus prevention work 

on improving hypertension diagnosis and management, reducing alcohol related ill 

health and improving Antimicrobial Resistance (use of antibiotics). 

 

  



6 
 

The CCG through tenacity, determination and resilience has made massive progress against 

the Improvement Plan and has addressed any issues from the Capacity and Capability Review 

and I am confident that in 2017/18 we will start to make the necessary transformational 

changes to ensure the local population receives the Right Care at the Right Time and in the 

Right Place. 

 

Lastly, I would like to thank all the staff at the CCG for their continued hard work, dedication 

and support during a very difficult year and I would like to thank all key partners and the GP 

member practices for their support and on-going input during this year. 

 

 

 

 

 

Professor Sarah O’Brien 

Interim Clinical Chief Executive 

25th May 2017  
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Performance Overview 

 

NHS St Helens Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is responsible for planning and delivering 

healthcare to a population of more than 190,000 people in St Helens. It also commissions or 

‘buys in’ hospital services on behalf of the local community and is increasingly involved in the 

provision of primary care such as GP Practice Services.  

 

We are one of more than 200 clinical commissioning groups around the UK whose collective 

challenge is meeting the needs of a population growing in size, age and living with increasingly 

complex health conditions. Our annual budget of £313 million (excluding running cost 

allowance) has been allocated to us to spend on health care.  

 

The 35 practices in St Helens form our membership and are represented via a GP Forum 

(Members Council) that holds the Governing Body to account (refer to Members Report page 

40). We are clinically-led by GPs and other healthcare professionals, including a Chief Nurse, 

one registered nurse and a secondary care doctor. The reasoning behind a clinically-led 

organisation is that GPs will understand the health requirements of the local community and 

how to drive improvements. 

 

Achieving our vision and values  

The Vision of St Helens CCG is to make a difference to local people by ‘delivering the right 

care at the right time at the right place’.  

 

We work in partnership to ensure that St Helens residents receive high quality, modern, 

sustainable, needs-led and cost effective care within the financial budgets available and 

ensure that our plans fully reflect the joint priorities in the borough, through the Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy, underpinned by the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.  

 

This will result in our residents receiving the right care, in the right setting by the most 

appropriately skilled clinician, which will improve the quality of care residents receive and 

reduce dependency in emergency and hospital services. The CCG will promote good 

governance and proper stewardship of public resources in pursuance of its goals and in 

meeting its statutory duties.  

 

Its overarching values are:  

 

 Efficient and Effective  

We will deliver the best care for the patients by making the most of our resources 

 Respectful and Caring  

Our respect and care will be courageous, balanced and inclusive 

 Leadership and Ambition  

We will strive to provide world class healthcare for the local population through 

courageous leadership 
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 Innovation and Creativity  

We will be open to new ideas, use available evidence to embrace new technology and 

ensure change happens  

 Collaborative and Inclusive  

Listening to each other, working together, delivering the best for our community 

 Honest and Transparent  

We will conduct ourselves and reach decisions in an open and truthful manner. 

 

A revised vision and set of values for the CCG are in development for 2017/18 which will 

embrace, enhance and embed the values above. 

 

Key Areas of Development in 2016/17 
The following paragraphs outline the key areas of development for NHS St Helens CCG during 

2016/17. 

 

Demand Management in the Acute Hospital Sector 

The CCG have started working on the development of localised primary care pathways for the 

management of all of the major disease areas to reduce the variations seen across the 

borough and to optimise their patients care plans within the community without the need to 

refer to hospital unnecessarily. These new pathways are part of the Referral Management 

System (RMS) which will also facilitate the full implementation of an e-referral process, offering 

choice to patients, and direct bookings also reducing the transfer of patients between hospital 

consultants. 

 

All referrals made by GPs are sent to a dedicated reception and booking team who manage 

the referral from that point on. The team checks referrals to make sure they contain all the 

information that the hospital would need to see the patient and liaises with the practice if 

anything additional is needed. For some referrals there will be a paper triage carried out on the 

referral to help decide whether the patient could be better cared for in a dedicated community 

clinic, or if alternative management would be more effective. 

 

Alongside the RMS, the CCG has introduced ‘Map of Medicine’ for a range of conditions which 

supports the GP practices in ensuring that patient referrals are sent to the most appropriate 

setting and follow the correct clinical pathway. 

 

Since the inception of the RMS we have been informed by our local secondary care provider 

organisations that they have seen a big improvement in the quality of the referrals coming to 

them via the RMS. This is especially important for patients because it means that when they 

get to their appointments at hospital the staff there has all the information they need to manage 

the patient, therefore improving the patient journey. 
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As another measure of increase in quality the RMS is helping to identify cases of cancer 

earlier. During its first 9 months our triagers upgraded a total of 143 referrals from urgent or 

routine to 2 week wait referrals. The pick-up rate for cancer via the 2 week wait route is 

approximately 8%; this means that of the order of 10 cases of cancer will have been identified 

earlier due to the referrals being upgraded. The benefit for patients is that earlier diagnosis of 

cancer leads to improved outcomes for patients in terms of both mortality and morbidity. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

During 2015/16 the CCG proactively applied to NHSE to be included in wave 1 of NHSE work 

using the Commissioning for Value/Rightcare methodology (CfV). The aim is to identify those 

areas where the CCG is spending above average for its population but achieving relatively 

poor outcomes. An overarching aim of CfV is to reduce inequalities and disparities in access to 

healthcare, opportunity and treatment. For 2016/17 this work has focussed on falls, 

gastroenterology and neurology. The CCG is working in partnership with St Helens and 

Knowsley Hospitals Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust in relation to this project and has benefitted 

from significant clinical engagement across both the CCG and Trust. The public have also 

supported the CCG with this work and contributed personal experiences to support system 

change. 

 

Adult Community Healthcare Services 

In January 2017 following a formal procurement process we awarded the contract to deliver 

adult community services to St Helens and Knowsley Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust, in 

partnership with 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and St Helens Rota.   

The new service was developed following a six month review of Intermediate Care and Out of 

Hospital Nursing Services which identified that current services in St Helens were not equipped 

to meet the needs of the local population over the next few years. The Hospital Trust will be 

the lead provider for the contract, with community nursing services and therapies sub-

contracted to 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and St Helens Rota.  The 

services will transfer to the partnership from 1 April 2017.  

 

The service will deliver against a new specification based on locality working and will be 

aligned with GP practices – this is the first phase of a total redesign of out of hospital care for 

St Helens. Work on phase 2 will commence in 2017/18 and will include a review of more 

specialised nursing services, a review of the Integrated Access St Helens (IASH) service as a 

single point of access and medical services provided out of hospital. 

 

Case study: Referral Management System 

Jan Bonney, Medical Secretary from Four Acre Surgery said: “Before the RMS we always 

felt like we were chasing our tails but it’s given us space and time, so we don’t feel like that 

anymore. We can now get through referrals much quicker and can pick them up throughout 

the day in between our other work which means we pretty much keep on top of our referrals.  

“The old system when we had to go through Choose and Book was so time-consuming but 

through RMS it’s so much quicker; it feels like the booking team at the CSU is doing most of 

the work for us. And we are not getting as many queries from patients either, which also 

frees up our time to focus on other practice activities.” 
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How have we performed? 

The CCG assurance process led by NHSE is the key performance mechanism by which CCGs 

are able to demonstrate they are delivering the best possible outcomes for their patients within 

their financial allocation.  

 

The CCG Assurance Framework covers CCG delivery and performance and assessment and 

is based on continuous assurance process that aims to provide confidence to internal and 

external stakeholders, and to the wider public, that CCGs are operating effectively. The 

diagram below illustrates the high level components of the assurance process. 

 

It should be noted that the assessment published in 2016 was based upon 2015/16 outcomes. 

Description of headline ratings was changed in year using the language of outstanding, good, 

requires improvement and inadequate. 

 

Diagram 1 - Assurance Components  

Well-led Organisation 

Strong leadership and good governance which ensures patient and public involvement, delivery of 

all statutory functions and duties, including conflicts of interest, partnership working, and 

comprehensive commissioning support functions 

Del   Delegated Functions 

 

Finance 

 

Performance: 

delivery of commitments 

and improved outcomes 

 

 

Planning 

 

 

Short term 

 

Long term 

 

For 2015/16 the components were assessed as follows for NHS St Helens CCG: 

 

Well-led Organisation 

The CCG submitted a Financial Deficit Plan for 2016/17 due to the significant level of financial 

challenge that it faced for that year. This led NHSE to commission a Capacity and Capability 

review (CCR) for the CCG which was carried out in May/June 2016. A CCG which undergoes 

a CCR would automatically have an assurance rating of requires improvement under the 

Well Led component and this rating was applied to NHS St Helens CCG for 2015/16.  

 

Case study: Adult Community Healthcare Services Professor Sarah O’Brien, Clinical 

Chief Executive said: “We need an out of hospital service which can support our ageing 

population and will bring growing community care, primary care and social care closer 

together. 

“This is a service which has been designed for 21st century St Helens – experienced and 

multi-skilled teams will be responsive and proactive in their care of patients; helping them 

to stay well and out of hospital for longer.  

“I believe this is an exciting opportunity for clinical staff in St Helens and an opportunity for 

St Helens to lead the way in new ways of working.” 
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The CCG was required to produce a response in the form of an action plan to address the 

recommendations raised by the CCR during 2016/17. Both the CCR and Action Plan 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Library/public_info/Governing_Body_papers/2016/28_Septemb

er_2016/St%20Helens%20CCG%20Capability%20and%20Capacity.pdf 

were reported to the Governing Body with progress being monitored internally and externally 

by NHSE. The response to the CCR was included in an Organisational Improvement Plan 

(incorporating a Financial Recovery Plan) which, following Governing Body approval,  was 

formally approved by NHSE in November 2016. The full Organisational Improvement Plan is 

available via the link 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Library/public_info/Governing_Body_papers/2016/15_Decembe

r_2016/Governing_Body_Part_I_15.12.16%20Full%20Pack.pdf 

 

For 2015/16 the CCG overall CCG assessment was inadequate because: 

 More than one component was rated as inadequate (finance and planning) 

 The CCG has NHSE Directions in force 

 

NHSE Directions 

For CCGs like St Helens that are assessed as inadequate overall NHSE will apply its legal 

powers of direction to ensure the CCG takes action to support an improving position.  In 

summary the Directions issued by NHSE relating to NHS St Helens CCG focussed on three 

key areas: 

 the production of an Improvement Plan; 

 the production of a financial recovery plan  

 that NHS England will be involved in the process to make any new appointments to the 

Executive Team and the next tier of management. 

 

These Directions became effective from 1 September 2016 and will remain in place until they 

are varied or revoked by NHSE. 

 

Going Concern 

The CCG’s financial accounts have been prepared under a direction issued by the NHS 

Commissioning Board under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended).  In the light 

of the 2016/17 deficit and the referral to the Secretary of State under Section 30 of the Local 

Audit and Accountability Act, made on 6th March 2017, the CCG has undertaken an 

assessment of its status as a going concern. The CCG has produced an improvement plan, of 

which financial recovery plays a significant part, which demonstrates how it will get back into in 

year financial balance by 2018/19. The CCG are planning to get back to NHSE business rules 

by 2021/22. The financial plans and improvement plans for the CCG have been approved by 

NHSE. 

 

For non-trading entities in the public sector, the anticipated continuation of the provision of a 

service in the future, as evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in 

published documents, is normally sufficient evidence of going concern.   

 

  

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Library/public_info/Governing_Body_papers/2016/28_September_2016/St%20Helens%20CCG%20Capability%20and%20Capacity.pdf
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Library/public_info/Governing_Body_papers/2016/28_September_2016/St%20Helens%20CCG%20Capability%20and%20Capacity.pdf
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Library/public_info/Governing_Body_papers/2016/15_December_2016/Governing_Body_Part_I_15.12.16%20Full%20Pack.pdf
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Library/public_info/Governing_Body_papers/2016/15_December_2016/Governing_Body_Part_I_15.12.16%20Full%20Pack.pdf


12 
 

Therefore based on the above, the accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis on 

the basis that: 

 Health care services will continue to be provided for residents of St Helens 

 The CCG has a financial recovery plan in place which has been approved by NHSE. 

 

2016/17 Assurance Process – CCG Improvement and Assessment Framework (IAF) 

Directions inevitably and rightly bring additional scrutiny on an organisation. Assurance for 

2016/17 has been a continuous and robust process requiring a co-ordinated approach to 

internal assurance processes. The CCGs Organisational Development (OD) Strategy and 

supporting plan are critical to addressing the issue of financial recovery. The CCG has 

developed a more integrated approach to the assurance process ensuring that it becomes 

everyone’s business and not just an ad hoc year end desk top exercise.  

 

The key components of the IAF for 2016/17 are: 

 Better Health – how is the CCG contributing towards improving the health and 

wellbeing of its population 

 Better Care – this focuses on care redesign, performance of constitutional standards 

and outcomes in key clinical areas 

 Sustainability – this section looks at how the CCG is remaining in financial balance 

and securing good value 

 Leadership – this domain assesses the quality of CCG leadership, plans, partnership 

working and its governance arrangements 

 

Diagram 2 below illustrates the key components of the IAF for 2016/17  

 

 
 

In addition to the 4 domains illustrated above the IAF process also incorporates assessment in 

6 key clinical areas as follows: 
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 Mental Health 

 Dementia 

 Learning Disabilities 

 Cancer 

 Diabetes 

 Maternity 

 

The CCG has had a series of meetings with NHSE throughout 2016/17 focussing on the 

assurance components. The CCG has submitted information to NHSE in April 2017 to self-

assess against the Leadership domain. The final outcome of the overall IAF assurance 

process is subject to both regional and national moderation and will not be known until the 

summer of 2017. 

 

In addition, the NHS Constitution sets out expected rights and pledges and the NHSE 

assurance process includes an assessment of the CCG against key thresholds when 

assessing performance. The tables included within the performance analysis show key 

performance measures and CCG delivery against constitutional standards as of Quarter 4 

2016/17, due to the timing of production of the annual report and for consistency with the year-

end assurance process the 2016/17 comparative data is based on January 2017 data 

predominantly. 

 

Financial Summary 

 

The CCG receives its funding from NHSE in two parts. The main element is the programme 

allocation, which is for the commissioning of health services including delegated primary care 

co-commissioning funding. For 2016/17 this was £313.3m. The second allocation is the CCG’s 

running cost allowance, which covers the administration and management of the CCG, which 

equated to £4.2m. The CCG cannot use its programme allocation to increase the running cost 

allowance, although any underspend on its running costs can be used to support the purchase 

of healthcare services.  

 

Although the CCG received a growth allocation of 2.4% within 2016/17, the increase in 

demand for health services for the people of St Helens significantly outweighed this, and 

consequently the cost of healthcare was greater than the allocation received. At the beginning 

of the financial year, the CCG had set a plan which was approved by NHSE to achieve a deficit 

of no greater than £3.1m. Early in the financial year, significant national increases in the costs 

of funded nursing care meant that the deficit plan was amended to £3.8m deficit. This was set 

as the control total for the CCG by NHSE. 

 

As the CCG were under legal directions in 2016/17, the CCG were required to formulate an 

improvement plan aimed at keeping the CCG within the £3.8m deficit control total. At the 

beginning of the year, the CCG had recognised that it must deliver savings of £12.5m, which 

was an unprecedented level of savings and represented a significant challenge to the CCG. In 

addition to this, operational budgets faced further overspends of £8m, largely in acute hospital 
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over performance and increases in continuing healthcare demand, therefore the CCG revised 

its improvement plan in November 2016 to reflect the fact that to achieve the planned deficit of 

£3.8m, savings of £20.5m would have to be achieved. 

 

The CCG have been successful in achieving the original savings identified of £12.5m, which is 

a considerable achievement.  

 

Table 1 below highlights how the CCG achieved the financial savings in 2016/17. 

 
However, as the CCG were unable to reduce the demand pressures on the operational 

budgets, the CCG revised its forecast deficit to £11.9m in February 2017.  

 

Budget reductions £000's

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services budget reduction 100                  

Winter Pressures budget reduction 600                  

GP Quality contract budget reduction 550                  

Activity reserve budget reduction 400                  

Estates budget reduction 100                  

Primary care savings 248                  

Childrens Continuing Care budget reduction 100                  

Total 2,098              

Contract reviews £000's

Voluntary sector review 155                  

Care Homes scheme 100                  

Community Nursing review 266                  

In-house services review 45                    

Safeguarding contract variation 162                  

Total 728                  

Decommissioning £000's

Decommission advancing quality service 100                  

Decommission counselling service 26                    

Total 126                  

Non-recurrent support £000's

LA financial support through pooled budget arrangements 4,000              

LA financial support - other 192                  

Deferral of risk share repayment 1,500              

Total 5,692              

Prescribing £000's

Medicines Optimisation 1,914              

Total 1,914              

Transformational £000's

St Helens and Knowlsey QIPP programmes inc RMS/MOM 1,905              

Total 1,905              

Grand total 12,463            
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Table 2 below highlights the variance between the original plan submitted and the final out turn 

position. 

 

Table showing 2016/17 planned financial position to 

actual achieved  £000's 

Original 2016/17 planned deficit 3,126 

Acute/Ambulance overperformance 6,314 

Funded Nursing Care Increase 720 

Continuing Healthcare & MH packages of care 

pressures  2,211 

Prescribing surplus -92 

Primary Care co-commissioning pressure 195 

Other budget pressures/surpluses -371 

Running cost surplus -250 

Revised 2016/17 deficit based on NHSE control total 11,853 

Release of 1% risk reserve -3,126 

Revised 2016/17 deficit after release of 1% reserve 8,727 

 

As set out in the 2016/17 NHS Planning Guidance, CCGs were required to hold a 1 percent 

reserve uncommitted from the start of the year, created by setting aside the monies that CCGs 

were otherwise required to spend non-recurrently. This was intended to be released for 

investment in Five Year Forward View transformation priorities to the extent that evidence 

emerged of risks not arising in the wider NHS or being effectively mitigated through other 

means. 

 

In the event, the national position across the provider sector has been such that NHS England 

has been unable to allow CCGs’ 1% non-recurrent monies to be spent.  Therefore, to comply 

with this requirement, St Helens CCG has released its 1% reserve to the bottom line, which 

improved the financial position of the CCG by £3.1m.  This has been offset against other cost 

pressures from the current financial year. 

 

The effect of this is that the deficit posted within the CCG’s accounts will be a £3.1m 

improvement on its deficit of £11.853m and the CCG will report a deficit of £8.727m within its 

accounts. 

 

The CCG was able to meet its target to remain within its running cost allocation. 
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Table 3 below summarises the CCG’s performance against its statutory financial duties. 

 

Statutory Duties 2016/17 Target £m  Actual £m  Variance £m  Met? 

Expenditure not to exceed 

income  319.8 328.5 8.7 

Capital resource use does not 

exceed the amount specified 

in Directions  0.0 0.0 0.0 

Revenue resource use does 

not exceed the amount 

specified in Directions (*) 317.5 326.3 8.7 

Revenue administration 

resource use does not 

exceed the amount specified 

in Directions  4.2 4.0 (0.2) 

 

* Note – The CCG Directions letter stated that the CCG were not to exceed the Revenue Resource Limit by more 

than £3.1m. As the CCG exceeded this limit by £8.7m the variance against the Directions Letter was £5.6m. 

How was the money spent in 2016/17?  

The CCG has faced some difficult choices when deciding on spending priorities in year and will 

continue to do so in the future. It is particularly important as the CCG are working towards 

financial recovery and sustainability that Governing Body, management team and staff of the 

CCG work hard to ensure that the entire budget is spent wisely, and that it supports the aim of 

commissioning high quality healthcare, whilst ensuring effectiveness, value for money and 

sustainability in the long term. 

 

Allocations to the CCG were spent as follows:  
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Value for Money in 2016/17 

The CCG’s external auditors will be required to give their statutory conclusion on arrangements 

to secure value for money.  

 

When considering the Value for Money Audit Opinion, auditors consider things such as: 

 

 The financial position of the CCG and whether it has achieved its control total 

 CCG arrangements for agreeing budgets and savings plans 

 How the CCG communicate to key Committees 

 Arrangements for working with other partners, working with the Local Delivery System 

and also working across the Cheshire and Mersey footprint 

 Arrangements for monitoring budget performance and risks and also arrangements for 

ensuring that services commissioned are effective. 

 

Given the financial pressures the CCG faces, it has worked hard over 2016/17 to put in place 

arrangements to ensure that it can deliver value for money services and has developed plans 

for long term financial recovery. 

 

Key to this is the project management approach to financial recovery taken by the CCG. This 

establishes: 

 

 Key themes for recovery 

 Clear leadership for the recovery process 

 Clear accountability and ownership of each of the key themes across the organisation 

 Clear risk reporting 

 Formal systems for reporting progress through the CCG’s governance routes. 

 

In considering arrangements to achieve value for money the organisation can take confidence 

from the CCG’s strong internal audit results on budgetary controls, financial reporting and 

financial systems for 2016/17, as once again the CCG has secured the highest level of 

assurance in these areas. 

 

However, due to the in year deficit and fact that the CCG was unable to meet its control total 

set within its Directions, the CCG are likely to receive a Qualified Value for Money Audit 

opinion. The VFM opinion will be a “VFM – Except for Sustainable Resource Deployment” 

opinion, which highlights that the CCG does have arrangements in place to secure VFM except 

for the fact that in 2016/17 we have not been able to meet our financial control total. 

 

Looking Forward to 2017/18 and beyond  

 

The CCG have had a 2% increase in its programme allocation, a 1.84% increase in its core 

primary care allocation and a small (0.29%) reduction in its running cost budget. 

The CCG recognise the extremely difficult financial position it faces in 2017/18 and has 

submitted a plan to NHSE for a £5m in year deficit. This plan is predicated on the value of the 



18 
 

contracts signed for the next 2 years, which include some extremely challenging savings 

targets. The CCG must save 4.2% of its costs (£13.5m) in year to meet this target.  

However, the CCG has worked hard during 2016/17 to develop plans that reduce the demand 

for health services, which not only save money, but more importantly, enhance the quality of 

care received by residents of St Helens. These include: 

 

 A referral management system to ensure that patients are seen in the most appropriate 

setting and not automatically sent to a hospital setting where an alternative community 

based provision is in place 

 Reducing unwarranted variation in care by adopting the Commissioning for 

Value/Rightcare approach in order to address areas of expenditure where costs are 

high but outcomes are relatively low, concentrating on neurology, gastroenterology and 

falls initially 

 Reviewing medicines management and prescribing, ensuring medicines waste is 

eliminated where possible and that patients are on the most appropriate medicines 

 Reprocuring out of hospital nursing services, that will provide more community nurses at 

a more cost effective price 

 Using telehealth in care homes to avoid care home residents being admitted to hospital; 

 Utilising a falls car to assess falls patients thoroughly and avoid admission into hospital 

where appropriate 

 Using better quality premises more effectively to release older premises for disposal 

 Spending less on procedures that have less clinical value so that resources can be used 

more efficiently. 

 

The CCG have developed strong relationships with all partners in the health and social care 

economy to ensure that these changes can be introduced in St Helens and the development of 

the Accountable Care Management System will support this further. 

 

The CCG was in a position to sign contracts for the next 2 years by the deadline set by NHS 

England of 23rd December 2016, and was also able to submit financial plans based on these 

contracts by that date.  

 

In addition, the CCG is also committed to working on at a Cheshire and Mersey level, and as a 

Local Delivery System to ensure that we secure effective health and care services on a wider 

footprint.  

 

However, the scale of the challenge is significant and the CCG, along with all its health and 

care partners will have to work collaboratively to achieve this. Plans are in development for 

2018/19 and the CCG recognise that it will continue to be faced with difficult choices on 

spending priorities over the coming years. 

 

The principal risks to the financial position of the CCG have been identified as: 

 

 Schemes not delivering the required level of demand reductions and savings 
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 Demand growth in acute care being in excess of the assumptions made when financial 

planning (assumed at 1.9% in line with Cheshire and Mersey assumptions) 

 Growth in the cost and volume of Continuing Healthcare cases and high cost mental 

health placements out of areas 

 Managing the GP prescribing budget. 

 

Through robust internal controls and governance, strong contract management, tackling 

prescribing waste, reviewing and reducing out of borough placements for patients with mental 

health conditions and joint pooled budget arrangements with St Helens Council in relation to 

Continuing Health Care cases, the CCG will seek to manage and mitigate these risks.  

 

The CCG has received a high level of assurance in relation to its financial reporting and 

budgetary control arrangements and high assurance opinion in relation to the quality of its 

internal controls.  

 

The internal structures which will help the CCG deal with these risks are set out in the 

Governance section of the Annual Report.  

 

 

Performance Analysis 

The below tables highlight the most current key performance measures against constitutional 

standards.  Pages 20 to 23 provide detail regarding the key performance measures. 
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St Helens CCG NHS CONSTITUTION MEASURES PERFORMANCE

Target 

(%)
2015/2016 2016/2017

Variance to 

2015/2016

Patients on incomplete non-emergency 

pathways (yet to start treatment should have 

been waiting no more than 18 weeks from 

referral)

92%
96.6% 

(Apr15-Feb16)

93.8%

(Apr16-Feb17)
-2.8%

Zero tolerance of over 52 week waiters 0
2

(YTD as at Feb16)

7

(YTD as at Feb17)
5

Diagnostic test 

waiting times 

Patients waiting for a diagnostic test should 

have been waiting less than 6 weeks from 

referral

Below 1% 
0.14%

(Apr15-Feb16)

0.13%

(Apr16-Feb17)
-0.01%

Patients should be admitted, transferred or 

discharged within 4 hours of their arrival at 

an A&E department (St Helens CCG)

95%
90.4% 

(Feb16)

88.2% 

(Feb17)
-2.20%

No waits from decision to admit to admission 

(trolley waits) over 12 hours STHK ONLY
0

1

(YTD as at Feb16)

0

(YTD as at Feb17)
-1

Maximum two-week wait for first outpatient 

appointment for patients referred urgently 

with suspected cancer by a GP

93%
95.0%              

(Apr15-Jan16)

95.5%

(Apr16-Jan17)
0.5%

Maximum two-week wait for first outpatient 

appointment for patients referred urgently 

with breast symptoms (where cancer was not 

initially suspected

93%
94.9%

(Apr15-Jan16)

96.3%

(Apr16-Jan17)
1.4%

Maximum one month (31-day wait from 

diagnosis to first definitive treatment for all 

cancers)

96%
96.8%

(Apr15-Jan16)

97.4%

(Apr16-Jan17)
0.6%

Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent 

treatment where that treatment is surgery
94%

96.9%

(Apr15-Jan16)

98.1%

(Apr16-Jan17)
1.2%

Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent 

treatment where that treatment is an anti-

cancer drug regimen

98%
98.7%

(Apr15-Jan16)

99.2%

(Apr16-Jan17)
0.5%

Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent 

treatment where the treatment is a course of 

radiotherapy 

94%
95.5%

(Apr15 -Jan16)

96.6%

Apr16-Jan17)
1.1%

Maximum two month (62-day wait from 

urgent GP referral to first definitive 

treatment for cancer)

85%
85.5%

(Apr15-Jan16)

84.70%

(Apr16-Jan17)
-0.8%

Maximum 62-day wait from referral from an 

NHS screening service to first definitive 

treatment for all cancers

90%
97.4%

(Apr15-Jan16)

91.1%

(Apr16-Jan17)
-6.3%

Maximum 62-day wait for first definitive 

treatment following a consultant’s decision 

to upgrade the priority of the patient (all 

cancers)

No operational 

Standard Set

88.6%

(Apr15-Jan16)

89.4%

(Apr16-Jan17)
0.8%

Category A calls resulting in an emergency 

response arriving within 8 minutes (red1)
75%

80.9% 

(Apr16-Jan17)

65.7%

(Apr16-Jan17)
-15.2%

Category A calls resulting in an emergency 

response arriving within 8 minutes (red2)
75%

77.1% 

(Apr15-Jan17)

63.7%

(Apr16-Jan17)
-13.4%

Category A calls resulting in an ambulance 

arriving at the scene within 19 minutes
95%

97.1% 

(Apr15-Jan16)

93.5%

(Apr16-Jan17)
-3.6%

Mixed Sex 

Accommodation 

Breaches 

Minimise breaches
Minimise

(5 cases at this 

point in 15/16)

6

(YTD to Feb16)

5

(YTD to Feb17)
-1

Mental health 
Care Programme Approach (CPA: The 

proportion of people under adult mental 

illness specialties on CPA who were followed 

up within 7 days of discharge from psychiatric 

in-patient care during the period)

95%
96.0%

(YTD to Quarter 3)

96.6%

(YTD to Quarter 3)
0.6%

Cancelled 

Operations 

All patients who have operations cancelled, 

on or after the day of admission (including 

the day of surgery, for non-clinical reasons to 

be offered another binding date within 28 

days, or the patient’s treatment to be funded 

at the time and hospital of the patient’s 

choice)

100%

STHK - 100%

W&H - 91%

(YTD to Quarter 3)

STHK - 100%

W&H - 86%

(YTD to Quarter 3)

CCG Performance - key constitutional rights and pledges

Cancer waits – 2 

week wait 

Referral To 

Treatment waiting 

times for non-

urgent consultant-

led treatment 

Category A 

ambulance calls (St 

Helens CCG)

A&E waits 

Cancer waits – 31 

days 

Cancer waits – 62 

days 
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E.B.3 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

13/14 Incomplete <18wks 27433 27114 25208 26125 105880

13/14 Total Incomplete 28569 28440 26303 27123 110435

13/14 Baseline % Incomplete 96.0% 95.3% 95.8% 96.3% 95.9%

14/15 Incomplete <18wks 27913 28558 27505 27521 111497

14/15 Total Incomplete 28789 29359 28350 28370 114868

14/15 Baseline % Incomplete 97.0% 97.3% 97.0% 97.0% 97.1%

15/16 Incomplete <18wk 31105 30687 31206 31332 124330

15/16 Total Incomplete 31950 31764 32322 32788 128824

15/16 Baseline % Incomplete 97.4% 96.6% 96.5% 95.6% 96.5%

16/17 Actual Incomplete <18wk 36060 33683 32773 102516

Constitution 2016/17 16/17 Actual Total Incomplete 37934 36013 35214 109161

92% 16/17 Actual % Incomplete 95.06% 93.53% 93.07% - 93.91%A
C

TU
A

L
B

A
SE

LI
N

ES

RTT 

INCOMPLETE

 The percentage of 

incomplete pathways 

within 18 weeks for 

patients on 

incomplete pathways 

at the end of the 

period.

RTT 18 Week Performance 

E.A.S.3 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

2013-14 Baseline n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

2014-15 Baseline 6.9% 6.0% 6.3% 9.5% 7.5%

2015-16 Baseline 9.1% 5.6% 18.3% 13.4% 10.2%

2016-17 Actuals 15.66% 11.74% 9.06% 12.15%

IAPT Access Rate 

IN_MONTH

(National Target 15.0%)

IAPT Access Rate - Data Source HSCIC 

E.A.S.2 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

2013-14 Baseline n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

2014-15 Baseline 44.5% 63.8% 37.7% 31.6% 43.5%

2015-16 Baseline 33.3% 46.2% 30.0% 33.3% 31.0%

2016-17 Actuals 38.30% 42.00% 51.00% 43.77%

IAPT Recovery Rate

(National Target 50.0%)

IAPT Recovery Rate - Data Source HSCIC

E.B.6 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

13/14 Number Waiting < 2 wks 1063 1039 1044 1126 4272

13/14 Total Number Waiting 1116 1101 1094 1188 4499

13/14 Baseline Performance %
95.3% 94.4% 95.4% 94.8% 95.0%

14/15 Number Waiting < 2 wks 1245 1230 1234 1258 4967

14/15 Total Number Waiting 1334 1296 1303 1315 5248

14/15 Baseline Performance % 93.3% 94.9% 94.7% 95.7% 94.6%

15/16 Number Waiting < 2 wks 1285 1457 1499 1519 5760

15/16 Total Number Waiting 1360 1552 1567 1550 6029

15/16 Baseline Performance % 94.5% 93.9% 95.7% 98.0% 95.5%

N
H

SE

16/17 Plan Performance % 93.6% 94.2% 95.2% 94.0% 94.3%

16/17 Actual No Waiting < 2 wks 1594 1626 1560 4780

Constitution 2016/17 16/17 Actual Total Waiting 1661 1715 1633 5009

93.00% 16/17 Actual Performance % 95.97% 94.81% 95.53% - 95.43%A
C

TU
A

L

Cancer

B
A

SE
LI

N
ES

All Cancer 

2 week wait
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E.B.8 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

13/14 Number Waiting < 31 days 245 248 277 258 1028

13/14 Total Number Waiting 251 250 280 264 1045

13/14 Baseline Performance % 97.6% 99.2% 98.9% 97.7% 98.4%

14/15 Number Waiting < 31 days 262 250 252 246 1010

14/15 Total Number Waiting 263 256 256 250 1025

14/15 Baseline Performance % 99.6% 97.7% 98.4% 98.4% 98.5%

15/16 Number Waiting < 31 days 233 274 314 238 1059

15/16 Total Number Waiting 242 283 324 246 1095

15/16 Baseline Performance % 96.3% 96.8% 96.9% 96.7% 96.7%

N
H

SE

16/17 Plan Performance % 97.6% 97.5% 97.5% 96.5% 97.5%

16/17 Actual Waiting < 31 days 255 254 278 787

Constitution 2016/17 16/17 Actual Total Waiting 262 261 286 809

96.00% 16/17 Actual Performance % 97.33% 97.32% 97.20% - 97.28%A
C

TU
A

L
B

A
SE

LI
N

ES

Cancer

Cancer - Percentage 

of patients receiving 

first definitive 

treatment within 31 

days of a cancer 

diagnosis.

E.B.12 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

13/14 Number Waiting < 62 days 87 91 94 95 367

13/14 Total Number Waiting 108 104 106 107 425

13/14 Baseline Performance % 80.6% 87.5% 88.7% 88.8% 86.4%

14/15 Number Waiting < 62 days 99 88 98 93 378

14/15 Total Number Waiting 120 101 110 107 438

14/15 Baseline Performance % 82.5% 87.1% 89.1% 86.9% 86.3%

15/16 No Waiting < 62 days 93 101 116 114 424

15/16 Total Waiting 107 115 141 130 493

15/16 Performance % 86.9% 87.8% 82.3% 87.7% 86.0%

N
H

SE

16/17 Plan Performance % 82.0% 81.9% 81.8% 79.4% 81.6%

16/17 Actual Waiting < 62 days 112 115 105 332

Constitution 2016/17 16/17 Actual Total Waiting 133 140 120 393

85.00% 16/17 Actual Performance % 84.21% 82.14% 87.50% - 84.48%

Cancer - All cancer 62 

day urgent referral to 

first treatment wait

B
A

SE
LI

N
ES

A
C

TU
A

L

Cancer

 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

14/15 Number Waiting < 19 mins 768 854 1622

14/15 Total Ambulance Attends 791 916 1707

14/15 Baseline Performance % 97.1% 93.2% 95.0%

15/16 Waiting < 19 mins 2532 2596 2885 2910 10923

15/16 Ambulance Attends 2594 2674 2954 3121 11343

15/16 Performance % 97.6% 97.1% 97.7% 93.2% 96.3%

CCG 16/17 Actual Waiting < 19 mins 2748.429 2788.4799 2966.3015 1002 9505

Constitution 2016/17 16/17 Actual Ambulance Attends 2866 2962 3209 1131 10168

95.00% 16/17 Actual Performance % 95.90% 94.14% 92.44% 88.61% 93.48%

 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

NWAS Region 16/17 Actual Waiting < 19 mins 113528 113614 118955 346098

Constitution 2016/17 16/17 Actual Ambulance Attends 123,871 126279 137086 387236

95.00% 16/17 Actual Performance % 91.65% 89.97% 86.77% - 89.38%

NWAS Ambulance Targets

A
C

TU
A

L
B

A
SE

LI
N

ES
A

C
TU

A
L

NWAS Ambulances

All Reds - 95% within 

19 minutes

CCG Historic
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E.A.S.5 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

2013-14 Baseline 14 21 9 27 71

2014-15 Baseline 21 20 11 9 61

2015-16 Baseline 26 21 13 15 75

2016-17 Actuals 10 15 17 42

CDIFF Infections

HCAI measure 

(C.Difficile infections) 

(Tolerance set at 75)

Constitution 2016/17

E.A.S.6 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

2013-14 Baseline 1 2 0 0 3

2014-15 Baseline 1 0 0 0 1

2015-16 Baseline 0 1 2 0 3

2016-17 Actuals 0 3 1 4

MRSA Infections

HCAI measure 

(MRSA infections) 

(Tolerance set at 0)

E.B.5 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

13/14 Total Seen within 4 hours 903 751 1308 1851 4813

13/14 Total Attendances 30207 30582 28262 29400 118451

13/14 Baseline 4hr % 97.0% 97.5% 95.4% 93.7% 95.9%

14/15 Total Seen within 4 hours 1553 1021 2099 2491 7164

14/15 Total Attendances 31559 31098 30911 25145 118713

14/15 Baseline 4hr % 95.1% 96.7% 93.2% 90.1% 94.0%

15/16 Total Seen within 4 hours 23942 23566 21645 19782 88935

15/16 Total Attendances 26087 25955 26104 26444 104590

15/16 Baseline 4hr % 91.8% 90.8% 82.9% 74.8% 85.0%

16/17 Total Seen within 4 hours 20378 20177 19276 59831

16/17 Actual Total Attends 26119 26046 26003 78168

95% 16/17 Actual 4hr % 78.02% 77.47% 74.13% - 76.54%

A&E Waiting times - 

Total time in the A&E 

department B
A

SE
LI

N
ES

A
C

TU
A

L

AED 4hr Performance (STHK Trust) Type 1 

E.A.S.1 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

2013-14 Register (DPCv3 Method) 1,333 1,387 1,419 1,442 1,442

2013-14 Estimated Prevalence 2,138 2,174 2,210 2,246 2,246

2013-14 Diagnosis Rate % 62.3% 63.8% 64.2% 64.2% 64.2%

2014-15 Register (DPCv3 Method) 1,523 1,576 1,731 1,793 1,793

2014-15 Estimated Prevalence 2,264 2,275 2,287 2,298 2,298

2014-15 Diagnosis Rate % 67.3% 69.3% 75.7% 78.0% 78.0%

2015-16 Register (CFASii Method) 1,851 1,889 1,898 1,895 1,895

2015-16 Estimated Prevalence 2,076 2,076 2,076 2,077 2,077

2015-16 Diagnosis Rate % PLAN 89.2% 91.0% 91.4% 91.2% 91.2%

2016-17 Register (CFASii Method) 1,925 1,942 1,934 1,934

2016-17 Estimated Prevalence 2,131 2,131 2,131 2,131

67% 2016-17 Diagnosis Rate % Actual 90.33% 91.13% 90.76% - 90.76%

B
A

SE
LI

N
ES

Dementia - Estimated 

Diagnosis Rate %

National Target: 

A
C

TU
A

L

Dementia
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Internal assurance in relation to CCG performance related to the NHSE assurance 

process 

 

At the start of 2016/17 the Finance and Performance Committee (F&PC) continued to lead on 

performance management for the organisation and members received a comprehensive 

performance report each month via the Commissioning Support Unit (CSU) with an up to date 

performance brief at each meeting escalating performance issues to the Clinical Quality 

Committee and Governing Body as appropriate. The F&PC continued to focus on areas of 

performance by exception and ‘deep dive’ into key areas. For example in 2016/17 the 

committee looked in detail at Continuing Healthcare (CHC) Pooled budget performance, hip 

and knee surgery rates, key mental health access standards, winter schemes evaluation, 

Better Care Fund 2015/16 performance and urgent care deep dive.   

 

Following a review of governance arrangements within the CCG the performance component 

of this committee was passed to a new Quality and Performance Committee (QPC) from 

September 2016. The QPC oversees IAF performance and an action plan was developed to 

assure the committee in relation to any areas of underperformance.  The QPC receive regular 

reports relating to IAF performance including progress with the action plan as well as more in 

depth reports relating to areas where there may be concerns or further assurance required 

examples are childhood immunisation performance, the performance of Children and Young 

People’s Mental Health services and anti-microbial resistance. Governing Body receives a 

performance summary which includes key constitutional measures, IAF and quality premium 

performance. The Governing Body discusses performance and reviews key performance 

indicators, by exception, at each meeting as well as maintaining oversight around CCG 

assurance. 

 

The CCG has continued to develop and refine its performance reporting during 2016/17 

reflecting recommendations in the external Capacity and Capability Review and the changes in 

the committee structure in 2016/17. A wide range of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are 

reported and managed across several committees and groups. The purpose is that these will 

further direct and support effective decision making and provide a basis for evidencing delivery 

against strategic objectives and compliance with mandated requirements. The CCG utilises a 

newly developed dashboard to ensure that it is meeting the standards set by NHSE and to 

gather and report on action plans in areas where performance requires improvement.  

 

The CCG has developed practice packs to ensure that GP Practices receive  periodic 

information in respect of their comparative performance across a range of areas for example 

medicines optimisation, urgent care and referrals. A range of dashboards have also been 

produced for specific subject areas such as Improving Access to Psychological Therapies 

(IAPT) and Care Homes which helps to ensure that performance is closely monitored and that 

any issues are quickly identified and resolved. Joint working with NHS Knowsley and NHS 

Halton CCGs has led to a performance pack being developed to inform local decision making 

around urgent care services on the patch. Other reports allow the success of new initiatives 

such as the RMS to be tracked and reviewed. 
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Aristotle and the full Business Intelligence Service being delivered by Midlands and Lancashire 

Commissioning Support Unit have been implemented fully during 2016/17. Aristotle gives GPs 

the ability to identify patients at high risk of hospitalisation to enable them to intervene and 

support them to remain safely at home. 

 

The CCG has worked jointly with the Local Authority on the development of a dashboard 

relating to Special Educational Needs (SEN) to help support staff working in this area. 

 

Performance outlook: Quarter 4 2016/17 and into 2017/18 
In relation to constitutional targets for 2016/17 and the outlook for 2017/18 the key 

performance issues, by exception and as reflected in the tables above, are:  

 

Accident and Emergency Department (AED) waits – the constitutional target is that 95% of all 

patients, regardless of presenting condition, should be admitted, transferred or discharged 

from the AED within 4 hours of their arrival. Nationally this has again proved a challenging 

target in 2016/17 with overall NHS performance falling below target. Locally for the CCG 

performance also fell below the 95% measure at 88.2% (latest data Feb 2017). This represents 

deterioration in the 2015/16 performance (90.4%).  

 

The CCG is working very closely with key providers, mainly St Helens and Knowsley Teaching 

Hospitals NHS Trust, to ensure that plans to recover and achieve the target in 2017/18 are 

met. There is an AED improvement plan in place and during winter 2016/17 the CCG funded 

the provision of a GP working in the AED department to look after patients and help the Trust 

with the waiting time standard. The Clinical Quality and Performance Group related to the Trust 

maintain oversight of all key performance targets and ensure that measures are taken to 

ensure that quality and safety is not compromised for patients. 

 

Ambulance Performance – linked to the issue of AED performance is ambulance performance. 

The CCG has failed to achieve the national target for the number of category A ambulance 

calls resulting in an emergency response within the 8 (75%) and 19 (95%) minutes categories. 

The CCG is working with the Urgent and Emergency Care Network, AED board and its local 

Urgent Care Operational group with North West Ambulance Service (NWAS) to improve 

performance. Recent improvements have been seen in the numbers of patients managed by 

both hear and treat and see and treat initiatives and the continued development of NHS 111 is 

aimed to alleviate pressure on the ambulance service. 

 

52 week waits – the NHS has zero tolerance of 52 week waits. Mainly associated with the 

transfer of Children’s Community Paediatric Services the CCG recorded 7 breaches in 

2016/17. An independent review was carried out which identified a range of factors contributing 

to the breaches including some data recording issues. It was confirmed that no harm had 

occurred due to the delays in service. 

 

Cancer waits 62 days – based on the most current data to January 2017 the CCG did not 

achieve the 85% standard recording 84.7%. All breaches are scrutinised by the CCGs clinical 

lead on an individual basis and actions to improve performance and act on any lessons 

learned are agreed with providers. Reasons can include patient choice, complexity of individual 
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cases. The CCG Governing Body has identified this measure for further work and assurance in 

quarter 4 2016/17 via the QPC. For 2017/18 the CCG plans to deliver the NHS Constitution 62 

day cancer waiting standard and to increase the proportion of cancers diagnosed at stage 1 

and stage 2 and improve 1 year survival rates. 

 

The CCG has a baseline tolerance for C Difficile infections of 75 based on 2015/16. For 

2016/17 to quarter 3 there were 42 recorded infections, therefore an improvement over 

previous performance. The CCG continues to work to the St Helens Healthcare Acquired 

Infection (HCAI) action plan, working collaboratively with St Helens Public Health team and 

healthcare providers. 

 

MRSA infections – there is a zero tolerance for MRSA infections. For 2016/17 to quarter 3 the 

CCG recorded 4 infections. The Chief Nurse will continue to liaise with Public Health and the 

Infection Control Team regarding learning from all cases. 

 

Improved Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) Access rate – there is a national target 

based on prevalence data to ensure that 15% of people requiring IAPT services access such 

services and that 50% recover as a result. For 2016/17 the CCG recorded performance at 

quarter 3 as 12.15% against the 15% access target, which is an improved position over the 

performance for 2016/17. For recovery 51% was recorded against the 50% target at quarter 3 

which is again an improved position. In 2017/18 the CCG plans to further develop our IAPT 

services to ensure that we meet the access and recovery targets and start to work towards the 

25% access standard by 2020/21. 

 

The CCG will continue to maintain current good performance in relation to the dementia 

diagnosis rate which was 90.76% for quarter 3. 

 

In 2017/18 the CCG plans to locally transform care for people with learning disabilities, 

including implementing enhanced community provision, reducing inpatient capacity, and rolling 

out care and treatment reviews. The CCG will work to improve access to healthcare so that by 

2020 75% of those on GP registers are in receipt of an annual health check. In addition the 

CCG plans to reduce the number and cost of out of area placements for those with learning 

disabilities. 

 

In 2017/18 the CCG has planned to continue to achieve the NHS referral to treatment time 

constitution standard in that 92% of patients on non-emergency pathways wait no more than 

18 weeks from referral to treatment. 

 

The CCG Operational Plan 

The CCG was required to submit a two year Operational Plan 2017/19 to NHSE in December 

2016. As well as defining the performance targets for the CCG, noted above, the Operational 

Plan covers the nine must dos outlined in the NHSE planning guidance which are underpinned 

by a range of performance metrics (including the IAF) and targets related to outcomes in key 

areas. In summary, the plan sets out an ambition to meet key constitutional targets and other 

objectives relating to:  
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 Supporting Delivery of the local Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) 

 Delivery of key financial control totals to be agreed with NHSE 

 Implementation of the GP 5 Year Forward View 

 Delivery of access standards for AED and ambulance waits 

 Delivery of the NHS constitution standard for referral to treatment times 

 Delivery of cancer waiting standards and improving survival rates 

 Mental health access rates and dementia diagnosis rates 

 Transforming care for people with Learning Disabilities 

 Improving quality in commissioned services. 

  

Overall, the CCG plans to constrain elective levels of activity treated in a hospital setting in 

2017/18 using a range of measures as outlined in the Operational Plan and increasing the 

level of appropriate deflections to alternative community or primary care settings.  

 

Key challenges in relation to CCG performance going into 2017/18 

The following areas of performance are likely to pose the most significant challenge for the 

CCG looking ahead to 2017/18. 

 

 Finance and the delivery of the CCGs financial recovery plan targets – the CCG has set 

an in year deficit budget of £5m for 2017/18 and to achieve that position needs to deliver 

recovery plan savings of £13.5m 

 Healthcare Acquired Infections/Antimicrobial resistance – there is a zero tolerance 

approach to MRSA infections this can be related to performance in relation to anti-

microbial resistance and prescribing of antibiotics 

 Accident and emergency four hour wait – this is a whole system issue. The CCG works 

closely to assist and support through the AED Delivery Board and other partnership 

arrangements 

 Ambulance response times – performance has dipped in 2016/17 and it will be a 

challenge to recover going into 2017/18 

 Increasing Access to Psychological Therapies – there are challenging targets set 

nationally for CCGs 

 Cancer targets – consistently achieving the 62 day target is a key challenge for the CCG 

 Primary Care – dealing with workforce challenges and implementing the plans relating to 

the GP5YFV. 

 

Delivering the NHS Five Year Forward View 

The NHS Five Year Forward View was a strategy published by NHS England in October 

2014, which identified the increasing gap resulting from growing demand for NHS services in 

times of austerity. The strategy highlighted several areas for change to address this gap and 

ensure NHS services can continue to be safe, effective and sustainable after 2020/21. NHSE 

established 44 footprints (including Cheshire & Merseyside), which mirror the route patients 

take to access local care systems. These footprints have been tasked with making the NHS 

Five Year Forward View a reality and to achieve long term sustainability for services in their 

areas. 
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The Cheshire & Merseyside footprint is one of the largest in England and is extremely diverse 

so it has been divided further into 3 Local Delivery Systems (LDS). This arrangement 

encompasses all the benefits of collaborative working across Cheshire & Merseyside as well 

as providing an opportunity to address challenges on a local level. The Alliance is one of the 

Local Delivery Systems and is made up of 4 CCGs (Warrington, St Helens, Halton and 

Knowsley) and 5 NHS providers (5 Boroughs Partnership, Bridgewater, St Helens & Knowsley 

Hospital, Warrington & Halton Hospital and Southport & Ormskirk Hospital). 

 

The plans being submitted by the Alliance will present options and models of transformation for 

the local health system which aim to address the funding shortfall by: 

 

 Prevent the demand from materialising (prevention at scale) 

 Provide more (cost) effective ways of responding to the demand (OHH Care) 

 Find more productive/efficient ways of delivering acute hospital care (Reducing 

Variation & Improving Quality, Clinical Support Service Collaboration) 

 Making our overhead and running costs as efficient as possible (Back Office 

Collaboration and Working Together more effectively) 

 

The plan represents the thoughts and ambitions of more than 30 different organisations 

serving a population of over 2.5 million people. The next stage will refine the ideas further, 

through engagement with local communities, the NHS workforce and other stakeholders such 

as local councils and the voluntary sector. For more information please go to 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Local_Services/Sustainability_and_Transformation_Plan.aspx 

The CCG has also developed plans to deliver the GP Forward View which aims to address key 

issues in primary care such as workforce and estates. To support this aim the CCG have: 

 

 Set up a Members Council, consisting of all member practices 

 Are developing locality working, each with its own lead, covering distinct geographical 

boundaries and GP practices 

 Are developing a borough wide federation of GP’s for provision of primary care in a 

safe and sustainable way. 

 

St Helens Cares 

St Helens faces significant challenges to improving outcomes for its residents and reducing the 

unsustainable levels of demand experienced by health care and community services in the 

borough. Expectations of public services and complex population health and social care needs, 

combined with constrained public funding, have resulted in an unprecedented affordability 

challenge for the borough, with a forecast health and care deficit of approximately £100m by 

2020/21 if action is not taken. 

 

In order to address the complexity and fragmentation of the current system, the navigation 

challenges this presents to its users, and the duplication (and associated costs), system 

leaders have made the decision to work in partnership to design a new, integrated model for St 

Helens.  

  

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Local_Services/Sustainability_and_Transformation_Plan.aspx
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In the St Helens People’s Plan, the newly formed People’s Board agreed to bring together the 

work of the Health and Wellbeing Board and the Community Safety Partnership to create an 

Accountable Care Management System (ACMS). The new partnership has a shared vision of 

“improving the lives of people in St Helens together by tackling the challenge of cost and 

demand.” 

 

The St Helens ACMS recognises that in order to achieve sustained improvement in population 

outcomes whilst achieving system financial balance, significant change is required in the 

relationship between system partners to create a place based health, care and community 

model, and between services and local people to foster a culture of independence, resilience 

and self-care. 

 

Sustainable Development  

Sustainable development is ‘development that meets the needs of the present, without 

compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs’. It is about balancing 

the environmental, social and economic decisions so that no one area outweighs another.   

 

In the past, economic factors have often taken precedence in decision making – leading to the 

situations faced today such as global warming (where the environment has not been 

considered highly enough in the decision making process), or poverty and inequality (where 

social factors have not been considered highly enough in the decision making process).  

 

Although in today’s society this still occurs, there is learning on a national, and even global, 

scale that this imbalance is what is causing many of the problems we see today. Readdressing 

the balance will build a future for today and for tomorrow.  

 

The CCG ensure that the social impact is considered when making its commissioning 

decisions. 

 

Sustainable development in the context of health and care  

For health and care the precedent is even higher. Quite simply, social and environmental 

factors impact on a person’s health and wellbeing. By limiting negative impacts, or promoting 

positive ones, the need for the treatment of health conditions and care needs can be reduced. 

In turn, this can release pressure on the health service as a whole – leading to a more 

sustainable healthcare system.  

 

This approach is set out clearly in the National Sustainability Strategy for Health and Care1 

which defines the requirements on the health and care system to incorporate sustainable 

development into its ethos. It describes a sustainable health and care system being achieved 

by ‘delivering high quality care and improved public health without exhausting natural 

resources or causing severe ecological damage’. 

                                                           
1 Sustainable, Resilient, Healthy People and Places – A Sustainable Development Strategy for the NHS, Public Health and Social 

Care System’  

 

http://www.sduhealth.org.uk/policy-strategy/engagement-resources.aspx
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The vision of sustainable health and care: 

 

'A sustainable health and care system works within the available environmental and social 

resources protecting and improving health now and for future generations. This means working 

to reduce carbon emissions, minimising waste & pollution, making the best use of scarce 

resources, building resilience to a changing climate and nurturing community strengths and 

assets.' 

 

Transport Plan for Growth  

With the creation of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority there was a need to bring 

together the existing Merseyside Local Transport Plans to support economical growth, 

regeneration and carbon reduction.  

 

The Transport Plan for Growth will support the Liverpool City Region Growth Plan and outlines 

a £1.7billion investment in transport and highways infrastructure improvements over the next 

six years.   

 

The plan will also support the City Region-wide work being undertaken including: 

 Freight and Logistics 

 Housing and Land-use Planning 

 Economic Development and Regeneration 

 Employment and Skills 

 Health and Wellbeing 

 Carbon Reduction and Air Quality 

 Connecting Communities 

 Visitor Economy 

 

The CCG is committed to the objectives outlined in The Transport Plan for Growth, and have 

signed up to the Employers Network, coordinated by Merseytravel to support a range of 

initiatives. 
 

Sustainable Estates 

Within NHS St Helens, Halton, Knowsley and Warrington CCG’s it is recognised that property 

and the built environment is an important component to delivering high quality, accessible, and 

efficient public services. In response each CCG formed a Strategic Estates Group, tasked with 

development and on-going management of a fluid Strategic Estates Plan in order to use 

property to deliver a more integrated, accessible, innovative, and efficient range of public 

services, and as an enabler to develop shared services, and support community regeneration. 

 

The CCG is working closely with all of our partners across the borough to review the public 

estate and ensure that it is used as efficiently as possible. By working together as a health and 

Care system an working towards better utilisation of higher quality buildings, we are planning 

to dispose of buildings that are no longer fit for purpose where possible. This will ensure 

sustainability of public estate across St Helens. 

  

https://www.merseytravel.gov.uk/about-us/local-transport-delivery/Pages/Transport-Plan-for-Growth.aspx
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Improve quality  

NHS St Helens CCG is responsible for meeting the needs of its population through the 

commissioning of high quality services and to work as part of the whole health and social care 

system to safeguard patient safety through integrated planning of these services. Health and 

social care in St Helens will be highly effective and consistent at delivering better patient 

outcomes. It will be safe, patient focused and pivotal to the delivery of health and wellbeing 

priorities in the borough.  In 2016/17 the CCG strengthened its quality team by in-housing the 

safeguarding function; this gives us greater access and capacity to execute our safeguarding 

work in a timely manner. 

 

Work continues to centralise General Practices into neighbourhoods supported by and 

integrated with, other primary, community and social care services.  We will ensure estates 

are world class and utilising innovative technologies to enhance care and improve access. 

Health care will be responsive to the needs of local people and it will be accessible 7 days a 

week. Whole system re-design of Out of Hospital and Intermediate Care services and delivery 

of the Elderly Persons and Primary Care Strategies are the core elements of the CCG’s 

Quality Improvement Plan for the next 5 years. This has involved the re-provision of primary 

care services for some elderly residents of St Helens and the re-tendering of a GP practice 

within the borough.  

 

The review of these services identified a lot of duplication and inefficiency and it is anticipated 

that transforming these services will not only improve quality but will enable the CCG to make 

best use of limited resources. By setting the bar high for the quality of services NHS St Helens 

CCG will work with its providers to ensure that not only do they deliver the essential standards 

of quality and safety, but they also strive for excellence and innovation in practice to drive up 

those standards for patients and their families. 

 

The CCG tackled some difficult issues in 2016/17, for example community nursing, GP practice 

issues, community paediatrics which resulted in re-tendering  for our out-of-hospital provision in 

order to gain the quality of services we require for the population of St Helens.   The community 

paediatric service was also retendered and as a result we are now experiencing a reduction in 

waiting lists and the appropriate quality and safety expectations that we expect to see for the 

children in our borough. 

 

In order to deliver on these initiatives the CCG is ensuring it has robust systems in place to 

continuously monitor quality across commissioned services. As part of contractual processes 

with providers Clinical Quality and Performance Group (CQPG) are held with each acute, 

community and mental health provider organisation and are chaired by a senior CCG 

representative. The focus of CQPG and our internal quality and performance committee is 

on quality assurance and it provides an opportunity to review and monitor areas for 

improvement, highlighting and sharing good practice. It also allows for challenge and 

support if areas of concern arise.  As a result of on-going quality visits by our Quality Team 

to providers in 2016, the CCG used its contractual levers to instigate enhanced surveillance 

for one of our providers.  The CQPG and our quality and performance committee are 
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fundamental in fostering our positive relationship between providers and commissioners 

within our STP footprint to ensure quality is reported in an honest and transparent way. 

 

In 2016/17 we have strengthened our relationships with partners, for example local care 

homes and the CCG and this enabled us to roll out the React to Red programme in care 

homes in early 2017. 

 

Patient and Public Involvement  

 

The CCG is committed to carrying out meaningful engagement and communicating effectively 

with the local population giving people, our patients, public and partners the opportunity to be 

involved in and to influence healthcare in their local area. This enables their voices to be heard 

and their thoughts and experiences to be taken into consideration ensuring ‘no decision about 

me, without me’ specific work with vulnerable groups and protected characteristics to ensure 

their experiences captured and identify barriers they face when accessing local NHS services. 

 

This year we have actively engaged with approximately 18,459 people through a number of 

different platforms including social media and face to face contact. We also have 5,432 Twitter 

followers and a total of 80,682 website hits. 

 

Engagement, Involvement and Communication Strategy 

During 2016/17 the CCG has updated its Communications and Engagement Strategy.  This 

illustrates how the CCG will communicate and engage effectively with its many stakeholders 

over the next three years to keep them informed and influence public behaviour. The updated 

content reflects the way in which we place people at the centre of everything we do; the 

increasingly challenging environment in which the NHS is having to operate in, the shift in the 

way in which the public are now preferring to receive their communications and the way in 

which the public are becoming increasingly eager to participate in engagement than ever 

before. 

 

During this process we recognised that ensuring meaningful and effective engagement with 

local citizens was an on-going challenge which required our continued efforts and commitment 

to ensure that the citizen voice can be heard and influence at all levels within the CCG. 

Responding to being placed in Directions and working at pace to deliver our Financial 

Recovery and Improvement Plan has presented a further challenge to maintain the levels and 

quality of patient and public involvement delivered by the CCG. We are determined during the 

year ahead to respond to this challenge and further strengthen our approach to involving local 

citizens in all that we do, including working together with our partners as St Helen’s People’s 

Board and St Helens Care develop throughout the year. Work commenced during the latter 

part of the year to develop our relationships with the local community and voluntary sector, 

which going forward in the upcoming year, will enable us to reach and engage with more 

people. We are also mindful of the need to ensure that we support engagement across LDS 

and Cheshire and Merseyside footprints and have influenced relevant engagement plans and 

strategies to ensure that the people we serve in St Helens are involved in any regional plans to 

transform health and social care services.  
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Patient Experience and Involvement Group (PEIG)  

The PEIG is a working group to the QPC. The group supports and advises upon borough wide 

engagement initiatives as relevant to the delivery of the CCG commissioning strategy and St 

Helens Health and Wellbeing strategy. The purpose of the group is to ensure local people’s 

voices are heard and patient experience shapes CCG priorities including any integrated 

commissioning priorities relating to health and wellbeing and to ensure that effective channels 

of communications are in place to enable engagement with local people on CCG key priorities, 

and listen to intelligence from local groups and communities.  

 

The group benefits from a broad membership which includes a wide CCG representation, 

engagement specialists and a range of key partner members notably Healthwatch, Community 

and Voluntary Sector Representation, St Helens Council and a representative from our Patient 

Participation Group Forum.  

 

Key Areas of Work for 2016/2017 

The group supported and advised on several engagement and consultation programmes which 

informed and reflected strategic plans and changes in service. This included the development 

of engagement methodologies and delivery plans, stakeholder mapping, Equality Duty 

Case study: Consultation to support our financial recovery 

 

Between August and October we held a consultation on Gluten Free, Over the Counter 

medication and specialist IVF fertility services – three key areas to support our financial 

recovery plan.  

Gluten Free Foods  

There was overwhelming support for the proposal to stop providing gluten-free foods on 

prescription (unless there are specific circumstances whereby a dependent patient could be 

at risk of dietary neglect) with two thirds of responders agreeing with our proposal. 

Specialist Fertility Services 

The proposal to stop routinely commissioning specialist fertility services (by placing 

restrictions on age referral criteria) had mixed reactions. In relation to women who are most 

relevant to the proposal 45% of respondents were against the CCG’s proposal compared to 

39% in favour.  

The consultation and feedback received has led the CCG to review this proposal. It has 

been decided that more work is required and this can't progress any further at this stage. 

Minor Ailments/Over the counter medicines 

After full consideration the CCG decided to stop providing over the counter/ minor ailment 

medicines for short-term and self-limiting conditions such as painkillers, cough and cold 

remedies, antihistamines and some skin conditions. This will be withdrawn from 1st April 

2017 except for those patients with an ‘exceptional need.’ 
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requirements and supporting the successful delivery of plans through partners’ communication 

channels, networks and events. 

 

The programmes and events PEIG supported in this way included the following:  

 

 Oversight of our approach to patient and public engagement as part of our financial 

recovery and improvement plan 

 Contributed to the refresh of our Communications and Engagement Strategy 

 Supported changes to Third Party Prescribing   

 Supported the development and monitoring of our equality and diversity work 

 Provided feedback on our engagement approach to Out of Hospital Care 

 Supported and advised on our engagement approach to Commissioning for Value (CfV) 

workstreams covering falls, alcohol, gastro and chronic back pain.  

 Supported the development of a new patient experience pathway to strengthen our 

approach to capturing and triangulating patient experiences 

 Provided input into our plans for the developing primary care in St Helens by offering 

input into the GP Forward View 

 Scoped and agreed to support the CCG’s Audit Committee review into complaints to 

reflect a patient experience perspective 

 Received feedback and intelligence from key partners including Healthwatch St Helens 

and Patient Participation Groups. 

 

Patient Participation Group (PPG) Forum  

NHS St Helens PPG forum is made up from representation from PPGs across St Helens. 

PPGs are a group of patients registered with a surgery who have an interest in their practice 

and offer support by providing feedback to help improve their practice and health services 

provided. Each PPG is run independently from the CCG operates slightly different but have the 

same goals which is to act as patient voices. Bi-monthly the CCG host a forum for all PPG reps 

to come together and share best practice, provide updates and to hear what the CCG are 

working on and each have a responsibility to take back to their surgeries any lessons learnt or 

updates from the CCG. 

 

Key Areas of Work for 2016/2017 

 Contributed PPG views as part of our formal public consultation to support our financial 

recovery via a dedicated session and encouraging further participation by individual 

CCG’s 

 Assisted in to shaping our plans for transforming Primary Care in response to the GP 

Forward View 

 Held a development session and produced an action plan to develop the PPG Forum 

and PPGs across the borough 

 Contributed to the refresh of our Communications and Engagement Strategy 

 Hosted a public event which informed members of our public about our Financial 

Recovery and Improvement Plans and sought views and input into reducing costs 

associated with prescribing and medication waste 

 Received and shared information from PPG’s relating to local health care services 
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 Two members acted as patient representatives during our Community Nursing 

Procurement exercise. 

 

 
 

Events attended 

A number of engagement events have been held throughout the year that either the CCG have 

organised or have been in attendance to promote the work we do. These events include: 

 Deafness Resources Centre Summer Fayre 

 St Helens Rugby Club Event  

 Picnic in the Park  

 Dementia Event  

 St Helens College Open Day  

 Cowley College Open Day  

 Sutton Academy  

 CCG AGM and Marketplace  

 CCG Winter Campaign Event  

 

These events are a key tool for the CCG to ensure continuous engagement across the 

borough and allow us to link in with a wide range of clinicians, partners, representatives from 

third and voluntary sector as well as patients, carers and the wider public.  

 

The events gave the CCG an opportunity to continue to raise the profile of the organisation, 

including who we are and what the role of the CCG is, and provide information on how the 

local population can become involved in our work. The events were also used as an 

opportunity to promote local consultations and to encourage people to have their say. 

 

  

Case study: Puzzled campaign 

During the summer of 2016, NHS St Helens Clinical 

Commissioning Group ran a poster competition to raise 

awareness of health services in St Helens. The 

competition aimed to engage the public and to become 

involved in creating a local health service campaign to 

accompany the current ‘examine your options’ campaign.   

After reviewing all of the posters a winner was chosen on 

31st August. A unanimous decision was reached, and 

local resident Amanda Lomax was announced as the 

winner with her series of ‘Puzzled?’ posters.  

These posters have been displayed across the borough. 
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Partnerships and networks  

During the last 12 months the CCG has worked hard to build on existing networks and develop 

new ones with a wide range of organisations and groups across the borough including third 

sector, voluntary and partners and providers. Working with the St Helens Council's Public 

Health Team and the Saints Community Development Foundation, we have supported and 

delivered a number of campaigns and key messages such as flu vaccinations, cervical 

screening and the Saints Night In project, which is around improving men's mental wellbeing. 

By working in partnership it allows the teams to engage with a wide range of people within the 

community and to tap in to networks and groups that each organisation engages with. 

 

Engaging with our Membership 

As well as working with our local population the CCG engage, involve and communicate with 

our membership in a variety of ways such as: 

 GP forum  

 Protected learning time 

 Practice Managers forum 

 Practice nurse forum 

 

The CCG also introduced practice visits. These visits are made up from representation from 

the CCG including: 

 Medicines management  

 Quality team  

 GP Governing Body Member  

 

The visits are used as two way communication for the CCG and practices.  

 

Reducing health inequality 

Promoting equality is at the heart of everything NHS St Helens CCG does. We want to ensure 

we commission services fairly and no individual, community or group is left behind in the 

changes that will be made to health services to meet the challenges the NHS face. 

 

The CCG is part of phase 1 for the Rightcare commissioning for value approach, looking at 

variation in outcomes compared to our peers.  This programme has delivered improvement 

plans in relation to key pathways of care such as gastroenterology, falls prevention and 

management and pain management.  Plans will ensure St Helens outcomes improve in line 

with the better performing areas for our patients and will continue into 2017/18. 

 

The CCG out of hospital redesign programme focusses enhanced and redesigned nursing 

support across St Helens practices linked to needs and inequalities in outcomes such as 

unplanned hospital admissions across localities in the borough.  The continuing work on 

proactive risk stratification identifying those patients at greatest risk of admission to hospital 

ensures a standard approach across all practices in the borough.   
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Health and wellbeing strategy  

The CCG works in partnership to ensure that St Helens residents receive high quality, modern, 

sustainable, needs-led and cost effective care within the financial budgets available. We 

ensure that our plans fully reflect the joint priorities in the borough, through the Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/About_Us/Equality_and_Diversity.aspx and 

St Helens People’s Plan (from 2017) 

http://moderngov.sthelens.gov.uk/documents/s63199/MASTER%20DRAFT%20St%20Helens

%20Peoples%20Plan%202016%20-%20updated%20on%2007-03-2017.pdf underpinned by 

the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). The CCG is a key contributor to the 

development and priority setting process in relation to these strategies.   

 

In 2016/17 the CCG has been involved in the co-production of drug and alcohol services 

ensuring the needs of service users are met using the data on where our issues are greatest. 

This won a national GO award for engagement through the Commissioning Process. 

 

The new service is commissioned to focus on areas of high need based on the needs 

assessment. Based on the JSNA Alcohol is now a priority for the new Peoples Board (with the 

statutory duties of the Health and Wellbeing Board).  We know for example that relative to 

other areas death rates from women due to alcohol are very high, the new service are 

commissioned to ensure they find ways of engaging with women and our other risk groups. 

 

Suicide Prevention and key risk groups are men especially 30 -50, those with mental health, 

drug and alcohol - therefore we have targeted this area.  Suicide prevention action plan uses 

the latest data on target groups in St. Helens and we know men of a certain age are a risk 

group.  Working with our public health team, we have linked with St Helens local Rugby Club to 

develop a programme based on a well evaluated programme from Everton in the Community 

to specifically target men who are not engaged in services.  This programme called Saints 

Night In is currently being evaluated by Liverpool John Moores University and if it proves to be 

successful in engaging some of our most 'at-risk' men it will be rolled out.  Other programmes 

that we commission to address the issues have a remit to target isolated men for example, Arts 

on Prescription. 

 

Due to highlighted issues with reducing vaccination and immunisation and screening coverage 

St. Helens has set up a multi-agency group to look at reasons for low uptake.  This has 

analysed variation by practice which has addressed some data issues.  We know from the 

evidence that whilst there are some people and families in more deprived areas that are less 

likely to take up screening and vaccination that the biggest factor in uptake is easy access and 

supply of the programme.  Therefore the group has focused on addressing system issues to 

ensure that we can address variation. 

 

The anti-microbial stewardship group in St. Helens has set up to address issues relating to 

resistance of antibiotics.  This group has focused on variation in prescribing rates as well as 

other issues.  We know from national data that prescribing of antibiotics is correlated to 

deprivation by tackling the variation we are helping to address these inequalities. 

 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/About_Us/Equality_and_Diversity.aspx
http://moderngov.sthelens.gov.uk/documents/s63199/MASTER%20DRAFT%20St%20Helens%20Peoples%20Plan%202016%20-%20updated%20on%2007-03-2017.pdf
http://moderngov.sthelens.gov.uk/documents/s63199/MASTER%20DRAFT%20St%20Helens%20Peoples%20Plan%202016%20-%20updated%20on%2007-03-2017.pdf


38 
 

More information about how we have met our statutory requirements is contained in the 

Governance Report and on the Equality and Diversity website page 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/About_Us/Equality_and_Diversity.aspx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Professor Sarah O’Brien 

Interim Clinical Chief Executive 

25th May 2017  
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT  

 

The Accountability Report outlines the CCG’s requirements and how it has met them. 

 

The Accountability Report is required to have three sections:  

 

 a Corporate Governance Report  

 a Remuneration and Staff Report  

 a Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report 
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Corporate Governance Report 
The purpose of the Corporate Governance Report is to explain the composition and 

organisation of the CCG’s governance structures and how they support the CCG to 

achieve its objectives. 

 

This consists of 

 A Members Report 

 Statement of Accountable Officer responsibilities 

 The Governance Statement 

 

Members Report 

Member Practices forming the Membership Body of NHS St Helens CCG  

At 31st March 2017, NHS St Helens CCG is made up of 35 GP practices within the 

borough:  

 
Practice Name     Address  

Berrymead Medical Centre  140 Berry’s Lane, Parr, St Helens, WA9 3RP 

Bethany Medical Centre   151 Grafton St, St Helens, WA10 4GW  

Bowery Medical Centre    Elephant Lane, Thatto Heath, WA9 5PR 

Central Surgery  Lowe House, Health Care Resource Centre,Crab St, WA10 2DJ  

Cornerstone Surgery    Fingerpost Park Health Centre, Atlas St, WA9 1LN 

Crossroads Surgery    449 Warrington Road, Rainhill, L35 4LL 

Dr Rahil's Surgery    21a Old Whint Road, Haydock  

Eccleston Medical Centre   Christ Church Grounds, Chapel Lane, Eccleston, WA10 5DA 

Eldercare  St Helens Hospital, Marshalls Cross Road, St Helens, WA9 

3DA 

Four Acre Health Centre  Burnage Ave, Clock Face, St Helens, WA9 4QB 

Garswood Surgery   Billinge Road, Garswood, St Helens, WN4 0XD 

Hall Street Medical Centre  28-30 Hall Street, St Helens, WA10 1DW 

Haydock Medical Centre  Woodside Medical Centre, St Helens, WA11 0NA 

Hollybank Surgery Fingerpost Park Health Centre, Atlas Street St Helens, WA9 1LN 

Kenneth MacRae Medical Centre 32 Church Road, Rainford, St Helens, WA11 8HJ 

Lime Grove Surgery   Woodside Medical Centre, St Helens, WA11 0NA 

Lingholme Health Centre  Atherton Street, St Helens, WA10 2HT 

Longton Medical Centre   451 Warrington Road, Rainhill, St Helens, L35 4LL 

Market Street – Dr James  102 Market Street, Newton-Le-Willows, WA12 9BP 

Mill Street Medical Centre  Mill Street, St Helens, WA10 2BD 

Newholme Surgery   Lowe House Health Care Resource Centre, Crab Street, 

WA10 2DJ  

Newton Community Hospital Practice Newton Community Hospital, Bradlegh Road, Newton-Le-

Willows, St Helens, WA12 8RB  

Newton Medical Centre   1 Belvedere Road, Newton-le-Willows WA12 0JJ 

Ormskirk House Surgery Lowe House Health Care Resource Centre, Crab Street, St 

Helens, WA10 2DJ 

Park House Surgery Fingerpost Park Health Centre, Atlas Street, St Helens, WA9 

1LN 

Parkfield Surgery Lowe House Health Care Resource Centre, Crab Street, 

WA10 2DJ 
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Patterdale Lodge Medical Centre Leigh Street, Newton-Le-Willows, St Helens, WA12 9NA 

Phoenix Medical Centre   28 Duke Street, St Helens, WA10 2JP 

Rainbow Medical Centre  333 Robins Lane, Sutton, St Helens, WA9 3PN 

Rainford Health Centre    17 Higher Lane, Rainford, St Helens, WA11 8AZ  

Rainhill Village Surgery   529 Warrington Road, Rainhill, St Helens, L35 4LP 

Recreation Drive Surgery  Recreation Drive, Billinge Near Wigan, WN5 7LY 

Sandfield Medical Centre  81 Liverpool Road, St Helens, WA10 1PN 

Sherdley Medical Centre 2nd Floor, St Helens Hospital, Marshalls Cross Road, St 

Helens, WA9 3DA 

Spinney Medical Centre 23 Whittle Street, Toll Bar, St Helens, WA10 3EB  

 

 

Composition of Governing Body 

Our Governing Body consists of 6 clinical members (elected members) and is 

supported by 2 further Lay Members (in addition to the Lay Chair), a Chief Finance 

Officer, the Strategic Director – People’s Services, the Director of Public Health, with 

expertise from an external Executive Nurse, Chief Nurse and Secondary Care 

Consultant.  

 

The Governing Body meets monthly throughout the year and includes: 

 Professor Stephen Cox : Clinical Chief Executive (terminated tenure 

September 2016) 

 Professor Sarah O’Brien: Chief Nurse;  Interim Clinical Chief Executive from 

19 September 2016 

 Geoffrey Appleton : Lay Chair  

 Dr Joseph Banat : GP Governing Body member  

 Dr Michael Ejuoneatse : GP Governing Body member/Deputy Chair  

 Dr Julie Whittaker : GP Governing Body member (terminated tenure 

December 2016) 

 Dr Paul Rose : GP Governing Body member  

 Dr Hilary Flett : GP Governing Body member  

 Tony Foy : Lay Member, Audit, Governance & Finance  

 Rachel Jones : Lay Member, Patient & Public Engagement  

 Lisa Ellis: Interim Chief Nurse (from October 2016) 

 Paul Brickwood : Chief Finance Officer * 

 Elaine Inglesby : Executive Nurse  

 Mike Wyatt : Strategic Director – People’s Services**;  

 Sue Forster : Director of Public Health  

 Professor Ben Green: Secondary Care Consultant (from August 2016 – 

November 2016) 

 Mr Iain Stoddart: Chief Finance Officer (from December 2016)* 

 

*Note – as Paul Brickwood retired in April 2017, Iain Stoddart was recruited as CFO 

and there was a handover period December 16 - March 17. 
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**  CCG Recovery Director from October 2016  

 

Non-voting members 

 Kay Worsley-Cox: Deputy Director and Clinical Lead. NHS NW Leadership 

Academy  

 Katie Power: Practice Manager Representative 

 Chair, St Helens Healthwatch 

 Chair, Local Medical Committee 

 

Please visit http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/About_Us/Our_Governing_Body.aspx 

for biographies of our current Governing Body members. A list of Governing Body 

attendance at committees is available in Appendix 1. 

 

Others in Attendance:  

The Governing Body may invite other people to attend all or any of its meetings or 

parts of a meeting in order to assist it in its decision making and discharge of 

functions as it sees fit. 

 

 

Change in Leadership 

There have been a number of changes within the Governing Body over the course of 

the year. In September Professor Steve Cox stepped down from his post as Clinical 

Chief Executive to focus on his clinical practice and developing federated practices 

as well as his academic interests. Following his resignation, Professor Sarah O’Brien 

was appointed as Interim Clinical Chief Executive in October and Lisa Ellis stepped 

up from Deputy Chief Nurse to Interim Chief Nurse. Other changes include Dr Julie 

Whittaker, GP Governing Body member who terminated tenure in December 2016 

and Professor Ben Green: Secondary Care Consultant who served from August 

2016 – November 2016. Mike Wyatt, Strategic Director – People’s Services also 

stepped up as Recovery Director from October 2016. 

 

Audit Committee 

This is the Committee of the CCG that provides the Governing Body with 

independent assurance through the approval and delivery of annual audit plans, 

review of internal audit reports and monitoring of actions advised (Details of all other 

Committees can be found in the Annual Governance Statement). 

The names of individuals forming the Audit Committee throughout the year and up to 

the signing of the Annual Report & Accounts are: 

 

 Tony Foy: Lay Member Governance & Audit Chair 

 Rachel Jones: Lay Member Patient & Public Involvement 

 Dr Joseph Banat: GP Governing Body Member 

 Dr Michael Ejuoneatse: GP Governing Body Member 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/About_Us/Our_Governing_Body.aspx


43 
 

 Jill Newton: Practice Business Manager (ended April 2017) 

 

Others in attendance 

 Paul Brickwood: Chief Finance Officer* 

 Iain Stoddart: Chief Finance Officer (from December 2016)* 

 Julie Ashurst: Deputy Chief Finance Officer (from September 2016) 

 Lisa Roberts: Principal Accountant 

 Angela Delea: Associate Director, Corporate Governance (from October 

2016) 

 Louise Cobain: MIAA Internal Audit 

 Virginia Martin: MIAA Counter Fraud Service** 

 Liz Temple-Murray: Grant Thornton, External Audit*** 

 Mark Heap: Grant Thornton, External Audit*** 

 Geoffrey Appleton, CCG Chair is invited to attend one meeting each year 

* Iain Stoddart was appointed as CFO in December 2016 to replace Paul Brickwood 

who retired in April 2017. This allowed an effective handover period to the new CFO. 

** MIAA counter fraud representative is only required to attend when they have an 

agenda item.   

*** It is not expected that all Grant Thornton representatives attend each meeting 

 

Other Committees 

The Governance Statement on pages 48-69 and Appendix 1 provides further details 

of the role and membership of all of the Governing Body Committees. 

 

Details of the HR and Remuneration Committee can be found on page 55. 

 

Statement of Disclosure to Auditors 

Each individual who is a member of the CCG at the time the Members’ Report is 

approved confirms:  

 so far as the member is aware, there is no relevant audit information1 of 

which the CCG’s auditor is unaware that would be relevant for the 

purposes of their audit report  

 the member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in order 

to make him or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to 

establish that the CCG’s auditor is aware of it.  
1 relevant audit information means information needed by the clinical commissioning group’s 

auditor in connection with preparing their report. 

 

The auditors (Grant Thornton) have confirmed they have made a referral under 

section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 on 6th March 2017 as 

explained in the section on Going Concern. 
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The Annual Report was approved in line with the CCG Constitution by the Audit 

Committee on 24th May 2017. 

 

Register of Interests 

The Declarations of Interest of Governing Body and Audit Committee Members is 

available on our website 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Public_Info/Register_of_Interests.aspx 

 

Personal data related incidents 

There were no Serious Untoward Incidents relating to data security breaches which 

were reported to the Information Commissioner.  

 

Modern Slavery Act  

NHS St Helens Clinical Commissioning Group fully supports the Government’s 

objectives to eradicate modern slavery and human trafficking but does not meet the 

requirements for producing an annual Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement as 

set out in the Modern Slavery Act 2015.  

 

 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Public_Info/Register_of_Interests.aspx
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Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities 

The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Clinical 

Commissioning Group shall have an Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be 

appointed by the NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England).  NHS England has 

appointed the Clinical Chief Executive to be the Accountable Officer of NHS St 

Helens CCG. 

 

The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer are set out under the National Health 

Service Act 2006 (as amended), Managing Public Money and in the Clinical 

Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. They include 

responsibilities for:  

 

 The propriety and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable 

Officer is answerable, 

 For keeping proper accounting records (which disclose with reasonable 

accuracy at any time the financial position of the Clinical Commissioning 

Group and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the 

requirements of the Accounts Direction)  

 For safeguarding the Clinical Commissioning Group’s assets (and hence for 

taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 

irregularities) 

 The relevant responsibilities of accounting officers under Managing Public 

Money 

 Ensuring the CCG exercises its functions effectively, efficiently and 

economically (in accordance with Section 14Q of the National Health Service 

Act 2006 (as amended)) and with a view to securing continuous improvement 

in the quality of services (in accordance with Section14R of the National 

Health Service Act 2006 (as amended)) 

 Ensuring that the CCG complies with its financial duties under Sections 223H 

to 223J of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). 

 

Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS England has 

directed each Clinical Commissioning Group to prepare for each financial year 

financial statements in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. 

The financial statements are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Clinical Commissioning Group and of its net 

expenditure, changes in taxpayers’ equity and cash flows for the financial year. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is required to comply 

with the requirements of the Group Accounting Manual issued by the Department of 

Health and in particular to: 
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 Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England, including the 

relevant accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable 

accounting policies on a consistent basis 

 Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis 

 State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Group 

Accounting Manual issued by the Department of Health have been 

followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial 

statements 

 Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. 

 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, and subject to the disclosures set out below, 

I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out under the National Health 

Service Act 2006 (as amended), Managing Public Money and in my Clinical 

Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. 

 

 Within the CCG’s financial plan we did not set an expenditure budget that was 

within the funds allocated and that in itself meant that the CCG did not 

discharge it’s in year break even duty.  Whilst the financial plan at £3.1m 

deficit was agreed by NHSE, and confirmed in a letter of direction, the CCG 

failed to deliver to that position.  The overall in year deficit of the CCG was 

£8.7m and was £5.6m more that NHSE directions allowed; 

 

 The result of that is that the auditors (Grant Thornton) made a referral to the 

Secretary of State under section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014 on 6th March 2017. The CCG will receive a qualified Regularity Opinion 

with regard to its financial statements. The VFM opinion will be a “VFM – 

Except for Sustainable Resource Deployment” opinion, which highlights that 

the CCG does have arrangements in place to secure its wider VFM except for 

the fact that in 2016/17 we haven’t been able to meet our planned financial 

control total. 

 

I also confirm that:  

 as far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the 

CCG’s auditors are unaware, and that as Accountable Officer, I have 

taken all the steps that I ought to have taken to make myself aware of any 

relevant audit information and to establish that the CCG’s auditors are 

aware of that information.  

 that the annual report and accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and 

understandable and that I take personal responsibility for the annual 

report and accounts and the judgments required for determining that it is 

fair, balanced and understandable  
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Professor Sarah O’Brien 

Interim Clinical Chief Executive (Accountable Officer) 

25th May 2017  
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Governance Statement 

Introduction and context 

NHS St Helens CCG is a corporate body established by NHS England on 1 April 

2013 under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). 

 

The CCG’s statutory functions are set out under the National Health Service Act 

2006 (as amended). The CCG’s general function is arranging the provision of 

services for persons for the purposes of the health service in England.   

 

The CCG is, in particular, required to arrange for the provision of certain health 

services to such extent as it considers necessary to meet the reasonable 

requirements of its local population.   

 

As at the date of this report, the CCG is subject to directions from NHS England 

issued under Section 14Z21 of the National Health Service Act 2006. The Directions 

issued by NHSE relating to NHS St Helens CCG focussed on three key areas: 

 

 the production of an Improvement Plan; 

 the production of a Financial Recovery Plan; 

 that NHS England will be involved in the process to make any new 

appointments to the Executive Team and the next tier of management. 

 

These Directions became effective from 1 September 2016 and will remain in place 

until they are varied or revoked by NHS England. More information is available via 

the link  

https://www.england.nhs.uk/commissioning/wpcontent/uploads/sites/12/2016/09/ccg-

directions-st-helens.pdf  

 

A CCG has a statutory duty to ensure that its expenditure does not exceed its 

allocation set. If a CCG cannot meet this duty, the External Auditors are required to 

notify the Secretary of State under Section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability 

Act. This referral was made on 6th March 2017. 

 

Scope of responsibility 

As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of 

internal control that supports the achievement of the clinical commissioning group’s 

policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for 

which I am personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned 

to me in Managing Public Money. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out 

under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) and in my Clinical 

Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. 

 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/commissioning/wpcontent/uploads/sites/12/2016/09/ccg-directions-st-helens.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/commissioning/wpcontent/uploads/sites/12/2016/09/ccg-directions-st-helens.pdf
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I am responsible for ensuring that the clinical commissioning group is administered 

prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively, 

safeguarding financial propriety and regularity. I also have responsibility for 

reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control within the clinical 

commissioning group as set out in this governance statement. 

 

The Clinical Commissioning Group Governance Framework 

The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), at paragraph 14L(2)(b) states: 

The main function of the governing body is to ensure that the group has made 

appropriate arrangements for ensuring that it complies with such generally accepted 

principles of good governance as are relevant to it. 

 

In accordance with this section of the Act the CCG Constitution states that in 

conducting its business it will, at all times, observe the following: 

 the highest standards of propriety involving impartiality, integrity and 

objectivity in relation to the stewardship of public funds, the management of 

the organisation and the conduct of its business 

 the Good Governance Standard for Public Services 

 the standards of behaviour published by the Committee on Standards in 

Public Life (1995) known as the ‘Nolan Principles’ 

 the seven key principles  of the NHS Constitution 

 the Equality Action 2010 

 Standards for Members of NHS Boards and Governing Bodies in England 

 

The Governing Body comprises a diverse range of skills from Executive, Clinical and 

Lay members and there is a clear division of responsibility between running the 

Governing Body and running the CCG’s everyday business. The CCG Scheme of 

Delegation details how the key CCG functions have been discharged through the 

organisation as agreed by its member practices in the CCG constitution. The CCG 

Lay Chair is responsible for the leadership of the Governing Body and ensures that 

executives have had access to relevant information to assist them in the delivery of 

their duties. 

 

The lay members have actively provided scrutiny and challenge at Governing Body 

and sub-committee level and provide lay scrutiny support to officers in their day to 

day work. Each CCG sub-committee comprises membership and representation 

from appropriate officers, clinicians and Lay members with sufficient experience and 

knowledge to support the committees in discharging their duties. 

 

The CCG GP Membership (pages 40-41) is required to elect its GP members to the 

Governing Body through a clear election process to lead the CCG and represent the 

practices and public in delivering the CCG statutory functions.   
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The Members Council is the key forum through which the CCG seeks clinical 

engagement in delivery of its statutory functions and enables the membership to 

engage and influence further the work of the CCG. 

 

Governance Structure 

The Capacity & Capability Review conducted by PwC (referred to in the 

Performance Report page 10) found that the CCG’s financial challenge did not 

reflect on poor governance however; governance could be strengthened by 

improving reporting arrangements and clarifying the decision making process.  The 

CCG acted on this recommendation and has completed a full review of the 

Committee structures to improve the decision-making process in the CCG. Diagram 

3 describes the Committee framework from 1st April – 31st August 2016 and Diagram 

4 defines the current structure, with effect from September 2016. 

 

Diagram 3: CCG Committee Framework (1st April 2016 – 31st August 2016) 
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Diagram 4: Committee Framework (1st September 2016 – 31st March 2017) 

 

 
Full details of the CCG’s membership, Committee Terms of Reference can be found 

on the CCG’s website at 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Public_Info/Committee_Terms_of_Reference.aspx 

The CCG discharges its duties through to its sub-Committees and key Committee 

highlights can be found below. 

 

Committees of the Governing Body 

The summaries below outline the key functions of each Governing Body Committee 

(as revised in August 2016), including the GP Forum /Members Council and the key 

highlights/items of business. 

 

Finance, Governance & Risk Committee 

The Committee is responsible for the development, implementation and monitoring 

of the CCG’s integrated governance systems and processes and risk management.  

The Committee oversees delivery of the corporate objectives including the 

management of the corporate risk register and Governing Body Assurance 

Framework.   

 

The Committee assures the CCG Governing Body on all financial matters in relation 

to the discharge of its Statutory Functions in line with the Constitutions prime 

financial policies. The Committee ensures that the financial and activity performance 

of commissioned services is monitored. The committee is also responsible to take 

appropriate action within contract terms and in support of the NHS Constitution, on 

behalf of the Governing Body, to remedy any finance and performance variations, for 

example to those outlined in the CCG Assurance Framework and the Clinical 

Commissioning Plan. The committee will approve service developments brought 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Public_Info/Committee_Terms_of_Reference.aspx
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forward from the other Committees and allocate resources according to annual 

financial plans. The key focus of the Committee in 2016/17 has been oversight and 

scrutiny of the Recovery and Improvement Plan, monitoring financial performance, 

assessing risk and recommending mitigation actions and control; and monitoring 

delivery of the CCGs QIPP Programme.  

 

During 2016/17 the Committee has continued to ensure compliance with key 

statutory governance requirements ensuring effective review of the CCG’s 

emergency planning and business continuity /major incident arrangements, 

undertaking a self-assessment against statutory duties providing assurance to NHS 

England on local compliance. The Committee has continued to oversee the 

organisation’s risk management via on-going review of the corporate risk register 

and Governing Body Assurance Framework, ensuring that significant risks are 

reported directly to the Governing Body for review following Committee scrutiny.   

 

The Committee has delegated responsibility for the approval of key corporate 

policies and during the year has received updates and requests for approvals in 

relation to the following key policies and processes: 

 

 Information Governance Policy and Handbook; IG Toolkit compliance 

 Governing Body Assurance Framework and Corporate Risk  Register 

 Health & Safety 

 Standards of Business Conduct and Conflicts of Interest  

 Emergency Planning Resilience and Response 

 Organisational Improvement & Financial Recovery Plan Identification 

 Better Care Fund 

 Section 75 Agreement, amendment to schedules 

 Review and responses to recommendations from Internal Audit 

 Monitoring performance of the clinical commissioning strategy 

 Financial approval of key business decisions following the recommendations 

of the Quality & Performance Committee and Primary Care Committee 

 

Quality & Performance Committee  

This Committee is responsible for assurance on the quality (safety, clinical 

effectiveness and patient experience) of all CCG commissioned services.  On behalf 

of the Governing Body, it is responsible for taking appropriate action within contract 

terms and in support of the NHS Constitution, to remedy any performance variations.   

The Committee has authority to approve or reject new service specifications.    

 

The Committee oversees the following sub-groups: 

 

 Medicines Management Committee 

 Patient Safety Group 
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 Patient Experience & Involvement Group 

 Map of Medicine Taskforce Group 

 

In line with national guidance NHS England (Cheshire & Merseyside) holds a Quality 

Surveillance Group (QSG) to bring key agencies together to oversee and assure 

regarding quality across NHS providers. NHS St Helens CCG is a member of this 

group and submits an overview of all the providers it commissions at each meeting 

and the Chief Nurse feeds back from QSG formally at the QPC. For each of our 

NHS providers, the CCGs hold Clinical Quality Performance Groups (CQPGs) to 

monitor quality performance and a summary on each of these meetings is provided 

at QPC each month. 

 

The CCG has statutory functions in relation to safeguarding and fulfils these through 

the role of the Chief Nurse (Designated professionals and named GP).  

Safeguarding is a key agenda item at Quality Committee and through the Quality 

Contract the CCG rigorously monitors commissioned NHS services. In addition, the 

Chief Nurse sits on both the Adults and Children’s Safeguarding Boards in St Helens 

as a statutory partner and chairs sub committees of both boards and in the last 12 

months the CCG has significantly contributed to key areas of work. 

 

The highlights for the QPC for 2016/17 have been:  

 

 Overseen a review of Intermediate Care and Out of Hospital Nursing 

 Agreed a new model for Designated Safeguarding Nursing Function  

 Established a more robust process for reporting of quality and safety issues 

and performance across all commissioned services through a Provider 

Monitoring Report each month  

 Successfully collaborated with key partners such as Public Health to ensure 

service specifications meet clinical standards 

 Overseen establishment of a monthly C.diff panel at the Acute Trust to 

facilitate whole system learning 

 Approved Primary Care Nursing Strategy  

 Overseen development of clinical pathways for Map of Medicine 

 Reviewed the Quality accounts for the CCG’s main providers 

 Reviewed quality impact assessments in relation to all consultation activity 

 Supported implementation of Referral Management System 

 Monitored progress against Improvement & Assessment Framework Action 

Plan  

 

Audit Committee  

The role of the Audit Committee is to review the establishment and maintenance of 

an effective system of integrated governance, risk management and internal control, 

across the whole of the Clinical Commissioning Group’s activities that support the 
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achievement of the CCG’s strategic objectives. It supports the Governing Body's 

remit to ensure that the CCG operates effectively, efficiently and economically and 

that the CCG's process of decision-making is robust.  

 

The Committee reviewed the arrangements of the Management of Conflicts of 

Interest and Gifts and Hospitality based on new guidance issued by NHSE in June 

2016 at its meeting in September 2016. The Committee approved the Risk 

Management Strategy that is reflective of the new governance structure. The 

Committee engaged with management in gathering assurance on the CCG’s actions 

to achieve financial sustainability.  

 

The Audit Committee has supported the procurement of the external auditor for 

2017/18 onwards and has overseen delivery of 2016/17 internal audit programme 

and performance monitored actions from audits. 

 

Primary Care Committee  

The Committee has been established on approval by NHSE as the decision making 

committee having oversight of delegated commissioning of primary care (General 

Practice). The Committee has been formally operational from April 2015 and is held 

in public bi-monthly. The terms of reference of the committee have been approved 

and revised to ensure any conflicts of interest arising in the meeting are managed by 

the Chair.  

 

This Committee is supported by the Primary Care Quality & Operational Group.  The 

work plan of this Group is agreed by the Primary Care Committee, and includes 

delegated responsibility for managing the Primary Care risk register. 

 

The highlights for the Primary Care Decision Making Committee for 2016/17 are: 

 

 The approval of the GP Forward View plan for St Helens which sets out how 

primary care will be transformed. The Committee has also endorsed the 

priorities for the primary care transformation fund. 

 Developed a dashboard to enable more effective monitoring of quality and 

performance in primary care. The dashboard will also enable the CCG to 

monitor the effectiveness of the transformation. 

 Supported three practices in their successful application for funding from the 

national GP Resilience Programme 

 Agreed to decommission two practices that hold a single Alternative Provider 

Medical Services (APMS) contract containing two schedules. One of the 

practice lists will be dispersed and the second practice will be re-procured in 

September 2017. 

 Overseen a practice engagement visit programme undertaken by senior CCG 

staff that sought to re-engage the membership and provide more direct 

support to practices. 
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 Oversight and scrutiny of practice list issues including temporary closures and 

requests for boundary changes 

 Performance management of GP contracts including supporting quality within 

primary care 

 Approval of three building relocations for general practices in St Helens. 

 Approval of the continuation of the GP Quality Contract. This is a voluntary, 

local contract that builds upon core contract requirements for primary care. 

 

HR & Remuneration Committee 

The Committee ensures compliance with statutory requirements. The Committee 

reviews and agrees appraisal and remuneration of Executives and also has 

responsibility for Organisational Development, Human Resources & Equality and 

Diversity. The full terms of reference are detailed in the CCG constitution. 

 

In 2016/17 the Committee has approved an updated OD Strategy and Plan, and has 

overseen the establishment of an OD Task Force Group to focus on OD priorities 

within the Plan. The Committee agreed that the CCG should take part in the national 

Staff Survey for 2017 and received a positive outcome to this survey. An outcome of 

this has been development of the CCG Health & Wellbeing Group, a working group 

that will present regular reports to the Committee.    

 

During 2016/17 the Committee monitored compliance with its statutory requirements 

in relation to Equality and Diversity and delivery of the CCG’s Equality Objectives. 

 

The Committee approved a suite of core CCG HR policies and protocols as part of 

an agreed work plan with the Midland & Lancashire Commissioning Support Unit 

(CSU).  

 

Member’s Council (GP Forum)  

The group’s Member’s Council (the GP Forum) represents all of the member 

practices of the group and reflects their opinion. The Member’s Council has specific 

responsibility for: 

 Agreeing the vision, values and overall strategic direction of the group 

 

 Approving the groups’ constitution and proposed changes to the constitution  

 

Following analysis of the 2016 360o stakeholder Survey, specific feedback from the 

membership enabled the CCG to consider a review the effectiveness of the 

Members Council. Further evidence of the need for improvement was identified from 

the MIAA audit on GP Engagement in January 2017 which provided a limited 

assurance opinion in terms of the effectiveness of the Forum and the need to 

reviews its Terms of Reference. 
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The full review of the terms of reference has been completed by the membership 

and a revised structure for the Council will commence from April 2017.   

 

The CCG has established an annual self-assessment of committee effectiveness of 

the Committees of its Governing Body the result of which will inform a refresh of 

Committee terms of reference and work plan.  These self-assessments will be further 

supported by an internal audit assessment.  This demonstrates how the CCG 

recognises the important role that its Committees undertake as part of its overall 

governance framework and the importance of on-going development enabling each 

Committee to identify potential areas for enhancement. 

 

You can view the Governing Body attendance of our committees at the end of this 

section on page 124. 

 

Other Key Committees and Groups 

The CCG has been an active member of a number of key committees and groups 

across the wider health care system. The committees/groups deliver a mix of 

advisory, scrutiny, partnership and development functions. In 2016/17 the CCG has 

undertaken a system leadership role in supporting: 

 

 Alliance LDS Leadership Group, and Alliance LDS Demand Management 

Group  (Clinical Chief Executive) 

 5YFV (STP) Membership Group and Commissioner representative on 5YFV 

Working Group (Clinical Chief Executive) 

 Alliance LDS Medicines Optimisation workstream (Led by Deputy Chief 

Executive) 

 Alliance LDS CVD and Diabetes Pathway workstreams (led by Clinical Chief 

Executive) 

 Mid Mersey AED Board leadership workstream  

 St Helens & Knowsley Urgent Care Operational Group (Chaired by Associate 

Director of Commissioning) 

 

Governance across the Cheshire and Merseyside 

Collaborative governance arrangements will need to be established across a number 

of organisations to ensure the 5 Year Forward View plans (5YFV) are delivered at a 

local level via the Alliance (LDS). This will also involve: 

 

 Local leaders coming together as a team 

 Developing a shared vision which includes the local community and Local 

Government 

 Programming activities to make it happen 

 Executing a plan 

 Learning and adapting. 
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All partners remain accountable to their Governing Boards and will ensure that all 

plans are approved via their respective organisation governance and reflect the 

collective views of the Alliance.  The Governing Body have approved the Terms of 

Reference for the Alliance LDS Leadership Group. 

 

Plans for delivering the 5YFV will be written according to three tiers: 

 

 Level 1 – represents in borough planning 

 Level 2 – represents planning within the footprint of providers and 

neighbouring boroughs/CCGs (LDS) 

 Level 3 (a) – represents strategic work across LCR 

 Level 3 (b) – represents strategic work across Cheshire & Merseyside 

 

Further embedding and developing the governance and delivery arrangements will 

continue as we move into 2017/18. 

 

Governing Body Assurance  

The Governing Body reviewed its corporate objectives in May 2016 and a revised 

Governing Body assurance framework was created. The strategic objectives for 

2016/17 are  

 

 To deliver financial sustainability 

 To deliver improvements through system redesign and in priority areas 

 To deliver improved outcomes for patients 

 To develop primary care capacity and capability as system leaders. 

 

The delivery of financial sustainability in the context of the CCGs Quality, Innovation, 

Prevention and Productivity (QIPP) challenge, enables the CCG Governing Body to 

continue to examine any risks to delivery of the significant financial challenge the 

CCG is facing. 

 

The Governing Body is also supported by the Quality and Performance Committee 

that is responsible for ensuring quality and safety of services as well as ensuring 

compliance with NHS Constitution standards. 

 

Audit Committee continues to have delegated responsibility from the Governing 

Body to ensure that there is an appropriate governing body assurance framework in 

place and operational responsibility resided with the Executive Risk and Assurance 

Committee until the 1st September 2016. A new committee was created by the 

Governing Body at its meeting on 27th July, 2016 the Finance, Governance and Risk 

Committee that now has operational responsibility for monitoring the GBAF on a bi-

monthly basis. This committee tests the assessment of risk and the associated 
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ratings as well as examining in more detail the robustness of the controls and 

mitigations.  

 

In February 2017 Mersey Internal Audit Agency (MIAA) assessed the approach to 

which the CCG maintains and uses the Assurance Framework to support overall 

assessment of governance risk management and internal control.  The findings 

concluded that the Assurance Framework: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Risk management arrangements and effectiveness  

NHS St Helens CCG has a comprehensive Risk Management Strategy in place 

which follows NHS Executives Controls Assurance risk management standards.   

This strategy was updated in September 2016.  

 

All risk registers use the same risk scoring matrices to ensure consistency in 

describing risks across the organisation; these matrices are based on the NPSA 

matrices but have been customised for local use to reflect the CCG’s tolerance to 

risk.  

 

NHS St Helens CCG has established a number of mechanisms for identifying and 

managing risks including risk profiling methodology, incident reporting, complaints 

and litigation data, and staff concerns/whistle-blowing. 

 

Overall CCG performance is reported through a governing body performance 

framework developed in collaboration with MIAA. Information on this is provided in 

the performance section. In addition, a primary care performance framework has 

been developed; this will further complement the overall CCG performance and 

assurance reporting both to NHSE and through the CCG internal governance 

assurance framework. 

 

Internal Control Framework 

A system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place in the 

clinical commissioning group to ensure it delivers its policies, aims and objectives. It 

is designed to identify and prioritise the risks, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks 

being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them 

efficiently, effectively and economically. 

 

is structured to meet the NHS requirements 

 is visibly used by the Governing Body 

 clearly reflects the risks discussed by the 

Governing Body 
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The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a reasonable level rather 

than eliminating all risk; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 

assurance of effectiveness. A system of internal control is the set of processes and 

procedures in place in the clinical commissioning group to ensure it delivers its 

policies, aims and objectives.  

 

The CCG identifies and prioritises risk at strategic level through the CCG Governing 

Body Assurance Framework (GBAF). The GBAF details the key strategic objectives 

for the CCG. The Governing Body and Senior Management team have actively 

assessed the potential risks to delivery of its objectives and the key controls in place 

to ensure effective delivery. Any gaps in control and assurance have been identified 

with action plans developed to ensure any gaps in control and assurance that were 

highlighted at the beginning of the year are addressed.   

 

The GBAF feeds down into the corporate risk register as risks become realised and 

require active management by the appropriate sub-Committee and lead officer. The 

GBAF is presented for assurance and review to the Governing Body on a quarterly 

basis and is currently overseen centrally by the Finance, Risk and Governance 

Committee.  

 

The strategic risks on assurance framework identified in 2016/17 fall across all four 

strategic objectives as shown in Table 4 below, which shows there were 22 risks. 

 

Table 4 

Strategic Objective High (15-25) Medium (9-14) Low (4-8) 

To deliver financial sustainability 

 

3 1 1 

To deliver improvements through 

system redesign and in priority areas 

 

1 3 1 

To deliver improved outcomes for 

patients 

0 5 1 

To develop primary care capacity and 

capability as system leaders 

 

2 2 2 

 

The key risk areas for the CCG in this year have been: 

 

 Failure to achieve financial duties and therefore unable to  meet the statutory 

duties and act in accordance with the CCG Constitution 

 Failure to identify and deliver QIPP and recovery programmes 

 Demand not staying within contracted levels leading to pressures on CCG 

budget 
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 Failure to deliver Urgent Care Transformation 

 Failure to attract and retain a workforce across the St Helens footprint to 

deliver future models of care 

 

The potential risks for NHS St Helens CCG in the coming year relate to: 

 Delivery of the Improvement Plan including the challenging financial recovery 

targets 

 Managing demand for services, particularly acute care and Continuing 

Healthcare whilst maintaining and improving the quality of services for 

patients 

 Ensuring that management capacity and capability is effectively deployed to 

ensure the CCG meets its objectives and drives forward the St Helens ACMS 

whilst contributing effectively to the wider 5YFV and Alliance Local delivery 

system 

 

Annual Audit of Conflicts of Interest Management  

Management of conflicts of interest is taken very seriously by the CCG and we work 

within a robust Conflict of Interest Management Policy and Framework in 

undertaking our CCG Business. Assurance on this is provided quarterly to NHSE 

England and the CCG undertakes training and development with staff and the 

Governing Body and this has been a key focus for the CCG during 2016/17 as we 

have embraced delegated commissioning of primary care.  A new policy based on 

NHSE guidance has been issued in March 2017.  The CCG has appointed a 

Conflicts of Interest Guardian and has a robust support structure to underpin this 

role. 

 

The CCG had no breaches of conflict of interest to report in 2016/17. 

 

We recognise that failure to manage this effectively can and will result in a loss of 

public and partner confidence in the CCG.  The CCG publishes three registers: 

 conflicts of interest 

 gifts, hospitality and sponsorship 

 procurement decisions 

 

These can be accessed by the links 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Public_Info/Register_of_Interests.aspx 

and http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Public_Info/Procurement_Decisions.aspx 

 

MIAA undertook a full review of the CCG policy and adherence with the policy in 

September 2016 following new guidance issued by NHS England. The overall 

objective of the audit was to evaluate the design and operating effectiveness of the 

arrangements that the CCG has in place to manage conflicts of interest and gifts and 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Public_Info/Register_of_Interests.aspx
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Public_Info/Procurement_Decisions.aspx
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hospitality, including compliance with NHS England’s statutory guidance on 

managing conflicts of interest for CCGs.  

 

This incorporated the following areas: 

  

 Governance arrangements:   Partially compliant.  

 Declarations of interests and gifts and hospitality:   Fully Complaint  

 Register of interests, gifts and hospitality and procurement decisions:  

Partially compliant 

 Decision making processes and contract monitoring:  Partially compliant 

 Reporting concerns and identifying and managing breaches / non-compliance:   

Fully Complaint 

 

The audit also considered:  

 Coverage of any previous internal audit work undertaken 

 Any additional areas of risk to be included 

 The culture of the organisation to ensure it supports and proactively 

encourages the management of potential and actual conflicts of interest.  

 

Counter fraud arrangements 

The CCG receives its counter fraud advice and support through Mersey Internal 

Audit Agency. The support is provided through a team of accredited Counter Fraud 

specialists with a lead attached to the CCG. The CCG has received via the Audit 

Committee a report outlining an assessment of performance against the NHS Protect 

Standards for Commissioners: Fraud, Bribery and Corruption and an action plan to 

ensure on-going compliance. The CCG has appointed the Chief Finance Officer as 

executive lead for this area and in this role acts as link internally to facilitate and 

enable delivery of actions. 

 

The Audit Committee has received a number of reports in the year, one with initial 

assessment and action plan and a second outlining activity delivered against action 

plan. The delivery against actions to enable compliance with standards is monitored 

closely by the executive lead and audit committee. The CCG ensures that CCG 

employees and those working with the CCG are fully cognisant of and understand 

clearly the processes to ensure compliance with standards and are aware of how to 

access advice and support if required. 

 

Data Quality 

The data on quality performance is provided through Midland & Lancashire 

Commissioning Support Unit.  This is analysed internally by the Performance Team 

who provide Committee reports. Any issues identified relating to the quality of data is 

risk assessed and discussed at the relevant Committee and/or Governing Body.   

http://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/4883.aspx
http://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/4883.aspx
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Having assessed the quality of data submitted and reviewed I am assured that the 

data is of sufficient quality that the Governing Body can carry out its duties. 

 

Information Governance 

The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and procedures by 

which the NHS handles information about patients and employees, in particular 

personal identifiable information. The NHS Information Governance Framework is 

supported by an Information Governance Toolkit and the annual submission process 

provides assurances to the clinical commissioning group, other organisations and to 

individuals that personal information is dealt with legally, securely, efficiently and 

effectively. 

 

The CCG has no information breaches to report within the Statement of Information 

Governance. 

 

We place high importance on ensuring that there are robust information governance 

systems and processes in place to help protect personal and corporate information. 

We have established an information governance management framework and have 

developed information governance policies and procedures in line with the 

Information Governance Toolkit. We have ensured all staff undertake annual 

information governance training and have implemented a staff information handbook 

which contains information to ensure staff awareness of their roles and 

responsibilities. 

 

The CCG has put in place policies, procedures, guidance and support to ensure that 

personal and corporate information is handled legally, securely, efficiently and 

effectively, in order to deliver high quality services. Performance is monitored 

through the completion of the annual Information Governance (IG) Toolkit return and 

reports to the Finance, Governance & Risk Committee. 

 

Data Security 

The CCG has submitted a satisfactory level of compliance with the information 

governance toolkit assessment, achieving 91% compliance.  This submission has 

been reviewed by the internal audit team MIAA and received a Significant Assurance 

assessment 

 

The CCG has not had any Serious Untoward incidents relating to data security 

breaches. 

 

UK Corporate Governance Code 

We are not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code. However, 

we have reported on our Corporate Governance arrangements by drawing upon best 

practice available, including those aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code 

we consider to be relevant to the CCG and best practice.  
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Discharge of Statutory Functions 

Specific assurances are required from CCGs which have taken responsibility for 

delegated functions. NHS St Helens CCG had adopted Fully Delegated Primary 

Care Commissioning responsibilities for General Medical Services from 1 April 2015.  

 

The assurance ratings published in 2016 was based on performance during 2015/16. 

The CCG was assured as good with NHSE reporting that no material issues were 

noted on the Delegated Functions Self Certification for the CCG. 

  

Finance 

Incorporates monitoring of the CCG’s financial management capability and 

performance, including an assessment of data quality and contractual enforcement 

as well as performance against statutory financial duties and the NHSE business 

rule requiring delivery of a 1% surplus in year.  

 

The CCG did not deliver the 2015/16 Financial Plan target and did not meet the 

2015/16 Business Rules to plan and deliver a 1% surplus in year. The CCG was 

therefore assured as inadequate in relation to the Finance component. The CCG did 

not deliver the business rules in 2016/17 and submitted a deficit plan to NHS 

England, leading the CCG to be placed in legal directions as a result. The CCG 

plans for 2017/18 continue to forecast a deficit but the CCG has plans to move to in 

year break even by 2018/19. 

  

The CCG did however receive the highest level of assurance in the Director of Audit 

Opinion for 2016/17 in relation to its financial reporting and budgetary control in 

respect of the systems and processes operating within the CCG and also received 

significant assurance in its Head of Internal Audit Opinion in 2016/17. The CCG is 

expected to receive an unqualified opinion in relation to the External Audit of the 

annual accounts for 2016/17. 

 

 Performance 

A key focus of assurance is the delivery of improved services, maintenance and 

improvement of quality, and ensuring better outcomes for patients. This includes 

progress in delivering key NHS mandate requirements and NHS Constitution 

standards and ensuring standards are met for all aspects of quality, including 

safeguarding, digital record-keeping and transfers of care.  NHSE have reviewed 

how well the CCG had performed in these areas. Assurance ratings published in 

2016 related to performance in 2015/16. The CCG was assured as good in relation 

to the performance component. 
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Planning 

The assurance of CCG plans covers not only annual operational plans and related 

plans such as those relating to System Resilience Groups and the Better Care Fund, 

but also longer term strategic plans, including progress with the implementation of 

the Five Year Forward View.   

 

 A CCG planning a financial deficit in 2016/17, which applied to St Helens CCG, 

would automatically have an assurance rating of Inadequate under the planning 

component regardless of the performance in the wider remit of this component. This 

applied to St Helens CCG. 

  

Emergency Planning, Resilience and Response 

The CCG undertook a self-assessment in September 2016 with regards to its 

compliance against its statutory duties in relation to Emergency Planning, Resilience 

and Response (EPRR), and assessed itself as fully compliant in this area against the 

national standards required as part of the Civil Contingencies Act. 

 

Health & Safety and Local Security 

The CCG is required to comply with relevant Health & Safety Acts and Regulations 

together with industry standards and best practice as relevant to its operations.  We 

accept our duty to prevent injury and ill health to our staff, visitors, and other who 

work on our behalf.  For this reason we have developed a Health & Safety Policy and 

our key objective is to minimise the number and severity of occupational accidents 

and illnesses. 

 

In 2016/17 the CCG had no reportable health & safety incidents. 

 

Equality, Diversity and Human Rights Responsibilities 

We are required to prepare and publish equality objectives to meet our specific duty 

as outlined in the Equality Act 2010. Our equality objective plan has been 

significantly revised in light of our Equality Delivery Systems (EDS) 2 assessment.  

Information about our objectives and E & D plan can be accessed via 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/About_Us/Equality_and_Diversity.aspx 

 

Risks identified through our E & D governance process are monitored through our 

risk management framework.  To ensure that limited resources are consistently 

directed to the areas of greatest need, in January 2017 the Finance, Governance 

and Risk Committee of the CCG approved a clear and consistent policy for the 

identification of investments, decommissioning and disinvestments. This is a support 

tool that will: 

 

 Provide assurance that the correct procedures are being followed when 

making decisions on de-commissioning, disinvestment or investment 

 Ensure that funds can be directed or redirected to their most effective use 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/About_Us/Equality_and_Diversity.aspx
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  Ensure that when approval has been given to decommission a service a 

clearly defined process has been followed, with clear lines of accountability 

and responsibility.   

 

Decommissioning can impact on people accessing our commissioned services and 

our providers.  The formal process should demonstrate an evidence trail and 

ratification of a decision that would support potential appeals and legal challenge.  

Where decommissioning type decisions are required across a wider footprint a 

similar process incorporating the same principles will be utilised in conjunction with 

other commissioners and stakeholders.  

 

Business Critical Models 

The CCG maintains an organisational Information Asset Register which identifies 

business critical assets within the CCG, including the shared finance service and 

hosted services.  Information Asset Owners and Information Asset Administrators 

have been assigned and all assets are regularly reviewed.  The SIRO is responsible 

for identifying and managing the information risks and the Caldicott Guardian 

oversees risk relating to patient data. 

 

In 2016/17 the PMO has been identified as a new significant business critical asset 

and has been highlighted in the Business Continuity Plan.  

 

Data flow mapping has been completed which enables an understanding of the flows 

of information related to all information assets on the Information Asset Register.  

Information Asset Owners are responsible for providing updates and highlighting any 

risks to the SIRO. 

 

The CCG is further supported through a contract arrangement with Midlands & 

Lancashire CSU. 

 

NHS St Helens CCG is one of six local NHS organisations that receive its IT services 

from St Helens & Knowsley Health Informatics Service.  There is a joint Service 

Level Agreement between the parties who have agreed to share their health 

informatics service with the intention of pooling their collective resources and 

expertise in order to ensure that they have capacity, capability and flexibility required 

for a modern health informatics service.  The partner organisations are committed to 

ensuring their shared informatics service provides value for money for their 

respective organisations. 

 

The CCG is represented on the Partnership Board that is responsible for the 

oversight of the service, and has both clinical and managerial representation on the 

sub-group of the Board. 
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Third party assurances 

The CCG receives a level of commissioning support through Midlands & Lancashire 

Commissioning Support Unit and a Health Informatics Service and Payroll Service 

hosted by a local NHS Trust.  The services provided are delivered in line with a clear 

service specification and performance is monitored and managed through a lead 

manager and local managerial links and reported to the Finance, Governance & Risk 

Committee.  Regular performance reviews and communication meetings enable the 

CCG to ensure the effectiveness of provision; there are no identified issues at this 

time.   

 

Review of economy, efficiency & effectiveness of the use of resources 

The CCG applies a number of key processes to review its effectiveness in ensuring 

that resources are used economically, efficiently and effectively. The assurance 

system provides regular reporting through to the Governing Body. 

  

The CCG Improvement & Financial Recovery Plan can be accessed via  

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Library/public_info/Governing_Body_papers/2016/15

_December_2016/Governing_Body_Part_I_15.12.16%20Full%20Pack.pdf  

 

To support implementation of the plan a robust PMO function has been established 

in 2016/17. This has a governance framework which includes Programme Steering 

Groups, led by officers from the Executive Leadership Team. The key themes in the 

Recovery Plan and executive leads are included on page1 of the plan. 

 

Feedback from delegation chains regarding business, use of resources and 

responses to risk 

You can read more about the key highlights from each of our committees on pages 

51-56 and how they have responded to risk. 

 

  

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Library/public_info/Governing_Body_papers/2016/15_December_2016/Governing_Body_Part_I_15.12.16%20Full%20Pack.pdf
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Library/public_info/Governing_Body_papers/2016/15_December_2016/Governing_Body_Part_I_15.12.16%20Full%20Pack.pdf
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Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
Following completion of the planned audit work for the financial year for the CCG, 

the Head of Internal Audit issued an independent and objective opinion on the 

adequacy and effectiveness of the CCG’s system of risk management, governance 

and internal control.  MIAA completed a review of the CCG’s internal controls for the 

period covering 1st April 2016 – 31st March 2017. The auditors opinion concluded: 
 

Significant Assurance, can be given that that there is a generally sound system of 

internal control designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that controls 

are generally being applied consistently. 

 

During the year, Internal Audit issued the following audit reports:  

 

Table 5 

Area of Audit Level of Assurance 

Given  

Financial Reporting / Budgetary Control High  

Information Governance Significant 

Contract Capacity Significant 

ESR HR/Payroll Interface Controls Significant 

General Practice Engagement Limited 

Post Payment Verification & Checks on Invoices Paid Limited 

 

For the two audits receiving limited assurance, the following actions have been 

completed: 

 

Post Payment Verification and Checks on Invoices Paid 

The CCG requested MIAA to conduct Post Verification Checks on Invoices Paid to 

GP Practices following internal concerns raised regarding the current process. The 

overall objective of the review was to ensure that there were robust and established 

systems and processes within the GP Practices to ensure the accuracy, 

completeness and validation of data contained within claims made to GP Practices 

so that the CCG are only paying for the locally enhanced services actually provided 

by these Practices. Specific testing was undertaken to determine whether there were 

fully documented audit trails to support all GP invoices for locally enhanced services 

paid by the CCG. 

 

The audit identified weaknesses in the design and operation of controls which could 

have a significant impact on the achievement of the key system, function or process 

objectives but should not have a significant impact on the achievement of 

organisational objectives. An action plan to remedy the deficiencies has been agreed 

and the Primary Care Quality & Operational Group has agreed a new procedure and 

all practices have been notified of the requirement to adhere to the new procedure 
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and issued with guidance notes. The Primary Care team has put robust controls in 

place for testing adherence to procedure. 

 

General Practice Engagement 

The overall objective of this review was to evaluate the effectiveness of the GP 

Forum (Members’ Council) in engaging general practices in decision making and 

quality improvement. 

 

A total of 11 recommendations were made, two of which were classed as high risk. 

These related to the requirement to ensure declarations of interest at meetings are 

accurately recorded and that due process is followed and recorded for approval 

process of appointments as recorded in the Terms of Reference.  A full review of the 

Members’ Council Terms of Reference has been completed and this Council has 

adopted the same governance process as for all Committees of the Governing Body. 

 

Furthermore, the CCG also engaged internal audit to contribute to the following to 

strengthen arrangements in respect of governance, risk management an internal 

controls in 2016/17: 

 

 NHSE Directions:  Section 5 – independent scrutiny of the Improvement Plan 

 Improvement Plan follow up position  

 52 Week Breaches 

 Section 3 Mental Health Pathway Mapping 

 Governing Body Development session – facilitated ‘Well Led’ Survey self-

assessment 

 Audit Committee Effectiveness 

 

Review of the effectiveness of governance, risk management and 

internal control 

My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the 

work of the internal auditors, executive managers and clinical leads within the clinical 

commissioning group who have responsibility for the development and maintenance 

of the internal control framework. I have drawn on performance information available 

to me. My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in 

their annual audit letter and other reports.  

 

Our assurance framework provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of 

controls that manage risks to the clinical commissioning group achieving its 

principles objectives have been reviewed.  
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I have been advised on the implications of the result of this review by:  

 The Governing Body 

 The Audit Committee 

 If relevant, the Risk / Clinical Governance / Quality Committee 

 Internal Audit 

 Other explicit review/assurance mechanisms.  

 

The role and conclusions of each have been considered in the Governance Report. 

 

Conclusion 

The CCG has faced significant financial challenges in year, as described throughout 

the Annual Report. 

 

As a result the CCG are working under Legal Directions and a Section 30 notice has 

been made to the Secretary of State on 6th March 2017 notifying the Secretary of 

State that the CCG will be posting a deficit position within its accounts.  

 

Due to the in year deficit and fact that the CCG was unable to meet its control total 

set within its Directions, the CCG are likely to receive a Qualified Value for Money 

Audit opinion. The VFM opinion will be a “VFM – Except for Sustainable Resource 

Deployment” opinion, which highlights that the CCG does have arrangements in 

place to secure VFM except for the fact that in 2016/17 we haven’t been able to 

meet our financial control total. The CCG are also expecting to receive a Qualified 

Regulatory Opinion due to its deficit position.  

 

However, this is not reflective of the internal control systems of the CCG. The 

Governance statement reflects the changes that have been made in year to enhance 

governance within the CCG following the Capacity and Capability Review. The 

Annual Report Documents throughout the CCG responses to its financial challenge 

and plans in place to become financially sustainable in future. Key to this is the 

CCG’s Improvement Plan.  

 

There have been no significant internal control issues identified in 2016/17.   

There were a number of recommendations made in the two audits that received 

limited assurance. The summary issues and actions have been included above.  The 

actions taken will be further reviewed in 2017/18 to ensure continuous improvement 

of the systems that have been put in place. 

 

 

 

Professor Sarah O’Brien 

Interim Clinical Chief Executive 

25th May 2017 
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Remuneration and Staff Report  
As a commissioner of health services, we believe health and wellbeing applies as 

much to our employees as it does to our local population. Wellbeing can be 

described as the creation of an environment which allows employees to achieve their 

full potential. During 2016 we have continued to remain fully committed to the health 

and positive wellbeing of our employees and understand that the health and 

wellbeing of the workforce is crucial to the delivery of the improvements in patient 

care to the people of St Helens.  

 

We continue to be committed to the health and positive wellbeing of our staff and we 

want to do as much as we can to enable staff to be at their best, energised, healthy 

and motivated. Our local staff survey has been designed to help provide an 

indication as to how staff feel the CCG is working, whether we are working within our 

values and principles, how their roles are contributing to the success of the CCG and 

where there could be areas for improvement. 

 

Elements of the Remuneration Report are subject to audit, namely; the Single total 

figure of remuneration for each Governing Body member, the CETV disclosures for 

each Governing Body member, the "Fair pay" (pay multiples) disclosures and the 

Analysis of staff costs and numbers. 

 

Employee consultation  

Excellent partnership arrangements with external organisations and Trade Unions 

ensure that we openly discuss, challenge and agree initiatives that have a positive 

impact on both our staff and our organisation. The CCG and Staff Side organisations 

have a common objective of ensuring the efficient operation and success of the 

organisation for the benefit of all, through working in partnership to secure these 

aims and objectives.  

 

Equality, Diversity and Human Rights Responsibilities 

We will continue to work internally, and in partnership with our Providers, community 

and voluntary sector and other key organisations to ensure that we advance equality 

of opportunity and meet our exacting requirements of the Equality Act 2010. More 

information about how we meet our responsibilities is available on page 64-65 of the 

report. 

 

Remuneration Committee 

Please go to 55 of this document. 

 

Policy on the remuneration of senior managers  

The Remuneration Committee determine the salaries and contract terms of the 

following senior positions: Clinical Chief Executive, Chair, GP Governing Body 

Members, Lay Members, Chief Financial Officer, Deputy Chief Executive and Chief 
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Nurse. The remuneration packages for these senior posts comprises of base salary 

in the light of the requirements of the national Very Senior Managers policy and Hay 

Group recommendations. Senior Managers are not subject to performance related 

pay.
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Table 6: Salaries and allowances 2016/17 (Audited) 

 

 

Name Title Note Salary Expense Performance Long term All pension- Total

(bands of payments pay and performance related benefits

£5,000) taxable to bonuses pay and bonuses

the nearest (bands of (bands of (bands of (bands of

£00 £5,000) £5,000) £2,500) £5,000)

£'000 £'00 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Geoffrey Appleton Chair 20-25 0 0 0 0 20-25

Dr Stephen Cox Clinical Accountable Officer 1 160-165 0 0 0 0 160-165

Sarah O'Brien Interim Clinical Chief Executive 2 105-110 0 0 0 117.5-120.0 220-225

Julie Abbott Deputy Chief Executive 3 105-110 0 0 0 82.5-85.0 190-195

Dr Joseph Banat GP Board Member 60-65 0 0 0 0 60-65

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse GP Board Member 65-70 0 0 0 0 65-70

Dr Julie Whittaker GP Board Member 4 20-25 0 0 0 0 20-25

Dr Omar Shaikh GP Board Member 5 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dr Paul Rose GP Board Member 45-50 0 0 0 30.0-32.5 75-80

Dr Hilary Flett GP Board Member 60-65 0 0 0 0 60-65

Paul Brickwood Chief Finance Officer 6 45-50 19 0 0 0 45-50

Iain Stoddart Chief Finance Officer 7 15-20 0 0 0 77.5 - 80.0 95-100

Lisa Ellis Interim Chief Nurse 8 35-40 0 0 0 137.5-140.0 175-180

Elaine Inglesby Executive Nurse 9 5-10 0 0 0 0 5-10

Tony Foy Lay Member 15-20 0 0 0 0 15-20

Rachel Jones Lay Member 15-20 0 0 0 0 15-20

Chrissie Cooke Interim Director of Commissioning 10 10-15 0 0 0 0 10-15

Sheila Lynch Recovery Director 11 20-25 0 0 0 0 20-25

Mike Wyatt Interim Recovery Director 12 0 0 0 0 0 0

Expense payments are in respect of lease vehicles and mileage and are show in £ hundreds.

2016-17
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Table 7 Salaries and allowances 2015/16  

 
 

 

  

       

Name Title Note Salary Expense Performance Long term All pension- Total

(bands of payments pay and performance related benefits

£5,000) taxable to bonuses pay and bonuses

the nearest (bands of (bands of (bands of (bands of

£00 £5,000) £5,000) £2,500) £5,000)

£'000 £'00 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Geoffrey Appleton Chair 20-25 0 0 0 0 20-25

Dr Stephen Cox Clinical Accountable Officer 1 150-155 0 0 0 15.0-17.5 165-170

Sarah O'Brien Interim Clinical Chief Executive 2 90-95 0 0 0 147.5-150.0 240-245

Julie Abbott Deputy Chief Executive 3 100-105 0 0 0 120.0-122.5 220-225

Dr Joseph Banat GP Board Member 70-75 0 0 0 0 70-75

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse GP Board Member 70-75 0 0 0 0 70-75

Dr Julie Whittaker GP Board Member 4 70-75 0 0 0 0 70-75

Dr Omar Shaikh GP Board Member 5 75-80 0 0 0 0 75-80

Dr Paul Rose GP Board Member 40-45 0 0 0 0 40-45

Dr Hilary Flett GP Board Member 45-50 0 0 0 0 45-50

Paul Brickwood Chief Finance Officer 6 45-50 17 0 0 0.0-2.5 45-50

Iain Stoddart Chief Finance Officer 7 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lisa Ellis Interim Chief Nurse 8 0 0 0 0 0 0

Elaine Inglesby Executive Nurse 9 20-25 0 0 0 0 20-25

Tony Foy Lay Member 15-20 0 0 0 0 15-20

Rachel Jones Lay Member 15-20 0 0 0 0 15-20

Chrissie Cooke Interim Director of Commissioning 10 50-55 0 0 0 0 50-55

Sheila Lynch Recovery Director 11 40-45 0 0 0 0 40-45

Mike Wyatt Interim Recovery Director 12 0 0 0 0 0 0

Expense payments are in respect of lease vehicles and mileage and are show in £ hundreds.

2015-16



74 
 

 

Notes: 

        1. Dr Stephen Cox was the Clinical Accountable Officer until 30th September 2016.  His salary figure includes all contractual payments due in year. 

 2. Sarah O'Brien was the Chief Nurse up until 28th September 2016, and became the Interim Clinical Chief Executive from 29th September 2016. 

 3. Julie Abbott is a regular attendee at Governing Body meetings. 

      4. Julie Whittaker was a GP Board Member until 30th September 2016. 

     5. Dr Omar Shaikh was a GP Board Member until 31st March 

2016. 

      6. Paul Brickwood’s remuneration is split across NHS St Helens CCG, NHS Knowsley CCG and NHS Halton CCG.  The remuneration costs shown represent NHS St 

Helens CCG's share of the total remuneration paid by the three CCGs.  The total remuneration paid was within the band £115,000 to £120,000 and the allocation of 

cost to the CCG is based on the size of each CCG as follows: 

         CCG % 

       St Helens 40 

       Knowsley 33 

       Halton 27 

       

         7. Iain Stoddart was the Chief Finance Officer from 1st December 2016.  His remuneration is split across NHS St Helens CCG and NHS Knowsley CCG.  The 

remuneration costs shown represent NHS St Helens CCG's share of the total remuneration paid by the two CCGs.  The total remuneration paid was within the band 

£35,000 to £40,000 and the allocation of cost to the CCG is a 50% share of the total remuneration. 

8. Lisa Ellis was the Interim Chief Nurse from 3rd October 2016. 

      9. Elaine Inglesby was not on the CCG payroll and is therefore an off-payroll engagement (see page 84). All payments are made directly to her employer. 

10. Chrissie Cooke was the Interim Director of Commissioning until 30th June 2016. 

     11. Sheila Lynch was the Recovery Director until 30th November 2016.  

     12. Mike Wyatt became the Interim Recovery Director from 20th October 2016.  He is employed by St Helens Council and there is no recharge of his salary. 
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 Table 8: Pension Benefits 2016/17 (Audited)    
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Notes: 

1. Geoffrey Appleton opted out of the NHS Pension Scheme as at 1st June 2015.         

As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members. 

The pension entitlement above is the total pension entitlement for each Director, is not split across other organisations and may have been partly accrued in  

a non senior manager capacity. 

       

Under the 2015 section of the NHS Pension Scheme, no lump sum benefit is accrued.    

    

  

Cash Equivalent Transfer Values  

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a 

member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s (or other 

allowable beneficiary’s) pension payable from the scheme. CETVs are calculated in accordance with the Occupational Pension 

Schemes (Transfer Values) Regulations 2008.          

 

Real increase in CETV 

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to 

inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or arrangement) 

and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.        

  

On 16 March 2016, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a change in the Superannuation Contributions Adjusted for Past 

Experience (SCAPE) discount rate from 3.0% to 2.8%. This rate affects the calculation of CETV figures in this report. 

Compensation on early retirement of for loss of office.
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Payments to past members 

The CCG has not made any payments to past members 

 

Pay multiples 2016/17 (Audited)       

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration 

of the highest-paid Director/Member in their organisation and the median 

remuneration of the organisation’s workforce. 

 

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Governing Body in the 

CCG in the financial year 2016/17 was £110,000-£115,000 (2015/16: £150,000 - 

£155,000).  This was 3.19 times (2015/16: 3.72) the median remuneration of the 

workforce, which was £35,225 (2015/16: £40,964). 

 

In 2016/17 one employee received remuneration in excess of the highest-paid 

member of the Governing Body (2015/16: none), however this is due to the 

calculation method required in determining the highest paid director.  Where a 

director's services are shared between two or more separate reporting entities, the 

cost to each entity of remunerating the director is used to determine the highest paid 

director, not the overall remuneration received by that director.  However in 

calculating the median remuneration of the CCG's staff, the full-time equivalent 

salary of that director, on an annualised basis, is used. 

 

In 2016/17, remuneration ranged from £0-5,000 to £120,000-125,000 (2015/16: £0-

5,000 to £150,000-155,000). 

 

The median remuneration has decreased from £40,964 to £35,225 during 2016/17.  

This is due to the CCG increasing its staffing profile with lower banded grades. 

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, 

benefits-in-kind, but not severance payments. It does not include employer pension 

contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions. 

 

The calculation of the ratio between the remuneration of the highest paid director 

and the median remuneration of the workforce is based on full time equivalent 

employees in post at 31st March 2017 on an annualised basis, including staff who 

are paid through the payroll system and agency workers. As the CCG is not party to 

the actual amount earned by agency workers an estimate of their salary, based upon 

the charge out rate from the agency on an annualized basis using 220 working days, 

has been included for this calculation. The median remuneration is the total 

remuneration of the staff member lying in the middle of the linear distribution of the 

total staff, excluding the highest paid director. A median will not be significantly 

affected by large or small salaries  that may skew an average (mean) – hence it is 

more transparent in highlighting whether a director is being paid significantly more 

than the middle staff in the organisation.       
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Remuneration of Very Senior Managers (VSMs)  

CCG’s are required to disclose where one or more senior managers of a CCG are 

paid more than £142,500 per annum. 

 

The CCG had one senior manager with a salary in excess of £142,500. The 

remuneration was determined by the Remuneration Committee. In reaching this decision 

the Committee took into account comparisons made to the salaries of similar posts in 

other NHS organisations and determined that this salary was reasonable. All officers are 

absent from the Remuneration Committee when matters concerning their own salary or 

performance is discussed. It should be noted that the CCG no longer have any officers 

paid in excess of £142,500.  
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Staff costs (Audited) 

Table 9: The CCG incurred the following staff costs in 2016/17: 

 
The staff costs above exclude the costs of the Chair, Lay Members, Non-Executive Members and clinical leads as, in accordance 

with the Group Accounting Manual these costs are not classified as staff costs. They include staff on secondment or employed on 

an agency basis. 

 

Employee benefits 2016-17

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 3,111 2,832 279 2,078 1,799 279 1,033 1,033 0

Social security costs 313 313 0 203 203 0 110 110 0

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 361 361 0 213 213 0 148 148 0

Other pension costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Termination benefits 7 7 0 0 0 0 7 7 0

Gross employee benefits expenditure 3,792 3,513 279 2,495 2,216 279 1,297 1,297 0

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (186) (186) 0 0 0 0 (186) (186) 0

Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised 

costs 3,606 3,328 279 2,495 2,216 279 1,112 1,112 0

Less: Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 3,606 3,328 279 2,495 2,216 279 1,112 1,112 0

Total Admin Programme
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As a comparator, the 2015/16 staff costs incurred were as follows in Table 10 below: 

 

Employee benefits 2015-16

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 2,644 2,353 291 1,867 1,580 288 777 773 4

Social security costs 210 210 0 151 151 0 59 59 0

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 268 268 0 173 173 0 95 95 0

Other pension costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Termination benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Gross employee benefits expenditure 3,123 2,831 291 2,192 1,904 288 931 927 4

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised 

costs 3,123 2,831 291 2,192 1,904 288 931 927 4

Less: Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 3,123 2,831 291 2,192 1,904 288 931 927 4

Total Admin Programme
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Average Numbers of People Employed (Audited) 

The CCG have employed the following number of people throughout 2016-17. This 

is calculated as an average of the Whole Time Equivalent employed each month 

throughout the year and as per staff costs above exclude the costs of the Chair, Lay 

Members, Non-Executive Members and clinical leads as, in accordance with the 

Group Accounting Manual, these costs are not classified as staff costs, but include 

staff on secondment or employed on an agency basis. 

 

Table 11 

 
 

Number of Senior Managers 

The CCG has the following number of Senior Managers in post as at 31st March 

2017 in Table 12 below: 

 

Senior Managers by Payscale 

as at 31st March 2017 
WTE Head Count 

Band 8A 5.23  6  

Band 8B 8.95  9  

Band 8C 1.00  1  

Band 8D 6.48  7  

Band 9 1.00  1  

Lay 0.85  4  

Medical 1.25  8  

VSM 2.00  2  

Grand Total 26.75  38  

 

2015-16

Total

Permanently 

employed Other Total

Number Number Number Number

Total 68 63 5 55

Of the above:
Number of whole time equivalent people 

engaged on capital projects 0 0 0 0

2016-17
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Staff composition 

The CCG had the following numbers of staff in post as at 31st March 2017. These 

are based on head count of numbers in post at that date. 

 

Table 13 

Staff Female Male Total 

GBM 2 5 7 

Other members of staff 59 14 73 

VSM 2 0 2 

Grand Total 63 19 82 

 

 

Table 14 

St Helens CCG Gender Analysis 

Female 63 
Full Time Female 41 50.0% 

76.83% 
Part Time Female 22 26.8% 

Male 19 
Full Time Male 10 12.2% 

23.17% 
Part Time Male 9 11.0% 
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Exit Packages (Audited) 

The CCG has agreed the following exit packages in 2016/17 are in Table 15 below: 

 
 

There were no departures where special payments have been made. 

For comparator purposes, no exit packages were agreed in 2015/16. 

Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting standards and at 

the latest in full in the year of departure.        

The Remuneration Report includes the disclosure of exit payments payable to 

individuals named in that Report.         

No early retirement costs were agreed by the CCG in 2016/17.  

Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pensions Scheme and are not 

included in the table.  

 

  

Number £ Number £ Number £

Less than £10,000 0 0 1 7,170 1 7,170

£10,001 to £25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£25,001 to £50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£50,001 to £100,000 0 0 1 99,105 1 99,105

£100,001 to £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£150,001 to £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

Over £200,001 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 2 106,274 2 106,274

Compulsory redundancies Other agreed departures Total
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Other Agreed Departures 

The other agreed departures can be analysed as follows in Table 16 below: 

    
Other agreed 

departures 

    Number £ 

Voluntary redundancies including early retirement contractual costs   1 7,170 

Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) contractual costs   0 0 

Early retirements in the efficiency of the service contractual costs   0 0 

Contractual payments in lieu of notice   1 99,105 

Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or court orders   0 0 

Non-contractual payments requiring HMT approval*   0 0 

Total   2 106,274 

No non-contractual payments were made to individuals where the payment value 

was more than 12 months’ of their annual salary.  

 

Sickness absence data 

The below sickness absence data is taken from NHS Digital statistics published and 

relates to the year ended 31 December 2016. 

 

 
Table 17  

NHS Sickness Absence Figures for NHS 2016-17 Financial Accounts

Source: NHS Digital - Sickness Absence Publication - based on data from the ESR Data Warehouse

Period covered: January to December 2016

NHS Digital Statistics

Copyright © 2016 and 2017, NHS Digital.  All rights reserved.

to the ownership of NHS Digital.

Figures 

Converted by DH 

to Best Estimates 

of Required Data 

Items

Statistics 

Published by 

NHS Digital 

from ESR Data 

Warehouse

Name Average FTE 2016

Adjusted FTE 

days lost to 

Cabinet Office 

definitions

Average Sick 

Days per FTE

FTE-Days 

Available

FTE-Days 

recorded 

Sickness 

Absence

NHS St Helens CCG 64                              564                      8.8 23,369                915                    

ESR does not hold details of normal number of days worked by each employee.  Data on days available and days recorded 

sick are based on a 365-day year.

Average Annual Sick Days per FTE has been estimated by dividing the estimated number of FTE-days sick by the average 

FTE, and multiplying by 225 (the typical number of working days per year).

There may be inconsistencies between these data and the statutory basis for accounts, in terms of the organisation 

against which staff are reported for a particular month.

This work remains the sole and exclusive property of the Health and Social Information Centre and may only be reproduced where 

there is explicit reference
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Staff Report 

 

Staff policies 
NHS St Helens CCG is committed to equality of opportunity for all employees and is 

committed to employment practices, policies and procedures which ensure that no 

employee, or potential employee, receives less favourable treatment on the grounds 

of gender, race, colour, ethnic or national origin, sexual orientation, marital status, 

religion or belief, age, trade union membership, disability, offending background, 

domestic circumstances, social and employment status, HIV status, gender 

reassignment, political affiliation or any other personal characteristic as outlined in 

the Equality Act (2010) and any other status covered by the Human Rights Act 

(1998). Diversity is to be viewed positively and, in recognising that everyone is 

different, the unique contribution that each individual’s experience, knowledge and 

skills can make is valued equally. 

 

Expenditure on consultancy 

The CCG spent £89,000 on consultancy in 2016-17. This was spent on interim 

project work in areas such as: 

 Setting up and supporting the project management office; 

 Primary Care; 

 Commissioning. 

 

Off-payroll engagements  

Table 18: Off-payroll engagements longer than 6 months 

For all off-payroll engagements as at 31 March 2017, for more than £220 per day 

and that last longer than six months:  

   Off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2017, for more than 

£220 per day and that last longer than six months 
Number 

 Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2017 2* 

 Of which, the number that have existed:   

 for less than one year at the time of reporting 0 

 for between one and two years at the time of reporting 1 

 for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting 0 

 for between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting 1 

 for 4 or more years at the time of reporting 0 

 
  

 *One of the two off-payroll engagements is recharged by another NHS 

 organisation so assurance in relation to their income tax and National 

 Insurance obligations is not required. 
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All existing off-payroll engagements have been subject to a risk based assessment 

as to whether assurance is required that the individual is paying the right amount of 

tax and, where necessary, that assurance has been sought.  

 

Table19: New off-payroll engagements  

For all new off-payroll engagements between 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017, for 

more than £220 per day and that last longer than six months: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 20: Off-payroll engagements / senior official engagements 

For any off-payroll engagements of Board members and / or senior officials with 

significant financial responsibility, between 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017.  

 

Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, 

and/or senior officers with significant financial responsibility, 

during the year 

4** 

 Number of individuals that have been deemed “board 

members, and/or senior officers with significant financial 

responsibility” during the financial year. This figure includes 

both off-payroll and on-payroll engagements 

17** 

 
 

  **Three out of the four off-payroll engagements are recharged by other NHS 

organisations. 

   

 

Professor Sarah O’Brien 

Interim Clinical Chief Executive 

25th May 2017  

New off-payroll engagements between 1 April 2016 and 31 

March 2017 for more than £220 per day and that last longer 

than six months 

Number 

Number of new engagements, or those that reached six 

months in duration, between 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 
2 

Number of new engagements which include contractual 

clauses giving St Helens CCG the right to request assurance in 

relation to income tax and National Insurance obligations 

2 

Number for whom assurance has been requested 2 

Of which:   

assurance has been received 2 

assurance has not been received 0 

engagements terminated as a result of assurance not being 

received 
0 
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Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report 
NHS St Helens CCG is not required to produce a Parliamentary Accountability and 

Audit Report. Disclosures on remote contingent liabilities, gifts, and fees and charges 

are included as notes in the Financial Statements of this report. 

 

Fees and Charges can be found in note 2 to the financial statements. 

 

Contingent Liabilities can be found in note 1.26 and note 31 to the financial 

statements. 

 

Losses and Special Payments can be found in note 1.32 to the financial statements. 

The CCG has had no losses or special payments in 2016/17. 

 

The CCG’s Gifts and Hospitality Register can be found via the link 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Public_Info/Register_of_Interests.aspx 

 

The Audit Opinion received from the External Auditors of the CCG is included on 

pages 87-90. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/Public_Info/Register_of_Interests.aspx
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended

31 March 2017

2016-17 2015-16

Note £'000 £'000

Income from sale of goods and services 2 (1,561) (3,887)

Other operating income 2 (672) (92)

Total operating income (2,233) (3,979)

Staff costs 4 3,792 3,123

Purchase of goods and services 5 323,165 310,584

Depreciation and impairment charges 5 2 2

Provision expense 5 0 0

Other Operating Expenditure 5 1,524 2,263

Total operating expenditure 328,483 315,972

Net Operating Expenditure 326,250 311,993

Finance income

Finance expense 10 0 0

Net expenditure for the year 326,250 311,993

Net Gain/(Loss) on Transfer by Absorption 0 0

Total Net Expenditure for the year 326,250 311,993

Other Comprehensive Expenditure

Items which will not be reclassified to net operating costs

Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of PPE 0 0

Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of Intangibles 0 0

Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of Financial Assets 0 0

Actuarial (gain)/loss in pension schemes 0 0

Impairments and reversals taken to Revaluation Reserve 0 0

Items that may be reclassified to Net Operating Costs 0 0

Net gain/loss on revaluation of available for sale financial assets 0 0

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0

Sub total 0 0

Comprehensive Expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2017 326,250 311,993

Note 1 to note 42 form part of this statement.
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Financial Position as at

31 March 2017

2016-17 2015-16

Note £'000 £'000

Non-current assets:

Property, plant and equipment 13 9 11

Intangible assets 14 0 0

Investment property 15 0 0

Trade and other receivables 17 0 0

Other financial assets 18 0 0

Total non-current assets 9 11

Current assets:

Inventories 16 0 0

Trade and other receivables 17 4,912 6,334

Other financial assets 18 0 0

Other current assets 19 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents 20 42 40

Total current assets 4,954 6,374

Non-current assets held for sale 21 0 0

Total current assets 4,954 6,374

Total assets 4,963 6,385

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 23 (13,448) (13,833)

Other financial liabilities 24 0 0

Other liabilities 25 0 0

Borrowings 26 0 0

Provisions 30 0 0

Total current liabilities (13,448) (13,833)

Non-Current Assets plus/less Net Current Assets/Liabilities (8,485) (7,448)

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 23 0 0

Other financial liabilities 24 0 0

Other liabilities 25 0 0

Borrowings 26 0 0

Provisions 30 0 0

Total non-current liabilities 0 0

Assets less Liabilities (8,485) (7,448)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity

General fund (8,485) (7,448)

Revaluation reserve 0 0

Other reserves 0 0

Charitable Reserves 0 0

Total taxpayers' equity: (8,485) (7,448)

Note 1 to note 42 form part of this statement.

The financial statements including notes 1 to 42 were approved by the Audit Committee on 24th May 2017 

Professor Sarah O’Brien

Interim Clinical Chief Executive

25th May 2017

and signed on its behalf by:
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended

31 March 2017

General 

fund

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Total 

reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2016-17

Balance at 01 April 2016 (7,448) 0 0 (7,448)

Transfer between reserves in respect of assets transferred from closed 

NHS bodies 0 0 0 0

Adjusted CCG balance at 31 March 2017 (7,448) 0 0 (7,448)

Changes in CCG taxpayers’ equity for 2016-17

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (326,250) 0 0 (326,250)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 0 0 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets 0 0 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0 0 0

Total revaluations against revaluation reserve 0 0 0 0

Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals 0 0 0 0

Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions 0 0 0 0

Movements in other reserves 0 0 0 0

Transfers between reserves 0 0 0 0

Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure 0 0 0 0

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies 0 0 0 0

Reserves eliminated on dissolution 0 0 0 0

Net Recognised CCG Expenditure for the Financial  Year (333,698) 0 0 (333,698)

Net funding 325,213 0 0 325,213

Balance at 31 March 2017 (8,485) 0 0 (8,485)

General 

fund

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Total 

reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16

Balance at 01 April 2015 (8,609) 0 0 (8,609)

Transfer of assets and liabilities from closed NHS bodies as a result of the 

1 April 2013 transition 0 0 0 0

Adjusted CCG balance at 31 March 2016 (8,609) 0 0 (8,609)

Changes in CCG taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16

Net operating costs for the financial year (311,993) (311,993)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 0 0 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets 0 0 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0 0 0

Total revaluations against revaluation reserve 0 0 0 0

Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals 0 0 0 0

Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions 0 0 0 0

Movements in other reserves 0 0 0 0

Transfers between reserves 0 0 0 0

Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure 0 0 0 0

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies 0 0 0 0

Reserves eliminated on dissolution 0 0 0 0

Net Recognised CCG Expenditure for the Financial  Year (320,602) 0 0 (320,602)

Net funding 313,154 0 0 313,154

Balance at 31 March 2016 (7,448) 0 0 (7,448)

Note 1 to note 42 form part of this statement.
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2017

2016-17 2015-16

Note £'000 £'000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (326,250) (311,993)

Depreciation and amortisation 5 2 2

Impairments and reversals 5 0 0

Movement due to transfer by Modified Absorption 0 0

Other gains (losses) on foreign exchange 0 0

Donated assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 0

Government granted assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 0

Interest paid 0 0

Release of PFI deferred credit 0 0

Other Gains & Losses 0 0

Finance Costs 0 0

Unwinding of Discounts 0 0

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 0 0

(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables 17 1,422 (3,359)

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets 0 0

Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 23 (385) 2,216

Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 0 0

Provisions utilised 30 0 0

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 30 0 0

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating Activities (325,211) (313,134)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest received 0 0

(Payments) for property, plant and equipment 0 0

(Payments) for intangible assets 0 0

(Payments) for investments with the Department of Health 0 0

(Payments) for other financial assets 0 0

(Payments) for financial assets (LIFT) 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: property, plant and equipment 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: intangible assets 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of investments with the Department of Health 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets (LIFT) 0 0

Loans made in respect of LIFT 0 0

Loans repaid in respect of LIFT 0 0

Rental revenue 0 0

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Investing Activities 0 0

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing (325,211) (313,134)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Grant in Aid Funding Received 325,213 313,154

Other loans received 0 0

Other loans repaid 0 0

Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on Statement of Financial Position PFI and LIFT 0 0

Capital grants and other capital receipts 0 0

Capital receipts surrendered 0 0

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities 325,213 313,154

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 20 2 20

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year 40 20

Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currencies 0 0

Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of the Financial Year 42 40

Note 1 to note 42 form part of this statement.
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2016-17 

  Notes to the financial statements 

  1 Accounting Policies 

 

NHS England has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning groups 

(CCGs) shall meet the accounting requirements of the Group Accounting Manual (GAM) 

issued by the Department of Health. Consequently, the following financial statements of 

NHS St Helens CCG (the CCG) have been prepared in accordance with the GAM 2016-17 

issued by the Department of Health. The accounting policies contained in the GAM follow 

International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and 

appropriate to CCGs, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial 

Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the GAM permits a choice of accounting policy, the 

accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of 

the CCG for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular 

policies adopted by the CCG are described below. They have been applied consistently in 

dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts. 

  1.1 Going Concern 

 

The CCG’s financial accounts have been prepared under a direction issued by the NHS 

Commissioning Board under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended).  

 

In the light of the 2016/17 deficit and the referral to the Secretary of State under Section 30 

of the Local Audit and Accountability Act, made on 6th March 2017, the CCG has 

undertaken an assessment of its status as a going concern. The CCG has produced an 

improvement plan, of which financial recovery plays a significant part, which demonstrates 

how it will get back into in year financial balance by 2018/19. The CCG are planning to get 

back to NHS England business rules by 2021/22. The financial plans and improvement 

plans for the CCG have been approved by NHS England. 

 

For non-trading entities in the public sector, the anticipated continuation of the provision of 

a service in the future, as evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in 

published documents, is normally sufficient evidence of going concern.  

 

Therefore based on the above, the accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis 

on the basis that: 

• Health care services will continue to be provided for residents of St Helens; 

• The CCG has a financial recovery plan in place which has been approved by NHS 

England. 

 

1.2 Accounting Convention 

 

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

 

1.3 Acquisitions & Discontinued Operations 

 

Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the public 

sector. Activities are considered to be ‘discontinued’ only if they cease entirely. They are 

not considered to be ‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector body to another. 

 

1.4 Movement of Assets within the Department of Health Group 

 

Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of absorption accounting 

in line with the Government Financial Reporting Manual, issued by HM Treasury. The 

Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require retrospective adoption, so prior 

year transactions (which have been accounted for under merger accounting) have not been 

restated. Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their transactions in the 

period in which they took place, with no restatement of performance required when 

functions transfer within the public sector.  Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or 

loss resulting is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, and is 

disclosed separately from operating costs. 
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Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Department of Health Group are 

accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly give rise to income and expenditure entries. 

 

1.5 Charitable Funds 

 

The CCG did not operate any charitable funds in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: nil). 

 

1.6 Pooled Budgets 

 

Where the CCG has entered into a pooled budget arrangement under Section 75 of the 

National Health Service Act 2006 the CCG accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, 

income and expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled budget, identified in 

accordance with the pooled budget agreement. 

 

If the CCG is in a “jointly controlled operation”, the CCG recognises: 

 

·                The assets the CCG controls; 

 

·                The liabilities the CCG incurs; 

 

·                The expenses the CCG incurs; and, 

 

·                The CCG’s share of the income from the pooled budget activities. 

 

If the CCG is involved in a “jointly controlled assets” arrangement, in addition to the above, 

the CCG recognises: 

 

·                The CCG’s share of the jointly controlled assets (classified according to the 

nature of the assets); 

 

·                The CCG’s share of any liabilities incurred jointly; and, 

 

·                The CCG’s share of the expenses jointly incurred. 

 

1.7 Critical Accounting Judgements & Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

 

In the application of the CCG’s accounting policies, management is required to make 

judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 

that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be 

relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and the estimates and underlying 

assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in 

the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the 

period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 

periods. 

1.7.1 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 

 

Apart from those involving estimations (see below), the CCG has made no critical 

judgements in applying accounting policies. 

1.7.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

 

The following are the key estimations that management has made in the process of 

applying the CCG’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts 

recognised in the financial statements: 

 

Payables estimates 

 

Due to the time lag around availability of data, the prescribing payable is estimated as the 

difference between the prescribing expenditure profile to 31 March 2017 (as determined by 

the NHS Business Services Authority) and the actual confirmed amount of expenditure 

recorded.  The key risk is that the actual data is different to the estimates made, resulting in 

the prescribing payable being either over or understated.  As at 31 March 2017 the 

prescribing payable was £5.95 million (31 March 2016: £5.7 million). 

 

1.8 Revenue 

 

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, 

performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. 

 

Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, 

that income is deferred 

 

. 
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1.9 Employee Benefits 

1.9.1 Short-term Employee Benefits 

 

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which 

the service is received from employees, including bonuses earned but not yet taken. 

 

The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is not 

recognised in the financial statements as it is deemed that the impact is immaterial. 

1.9.2 Retirement Benefit Costs 

 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. 

The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General 

Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in 

England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS 

bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the 

scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the CCG of 

participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for 

the accounting period. 

 

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are 

not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged 

to expenditure at the time the CCG commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the 

method of payment. 

 

1.10 Other Expenses 

 

Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or 

services have been received. They are measured at the fair value of the consideration 

payable. 

 

Expenses and liabilities in respect of grants are recognised when the CCG has a present 

legal or constructive obligation, which occurs when all of the conditions attached to the 

payment have been met. 

 

1.11 Property, Plant & Equipment 

1.11.1 Recognition 

 

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if: 

 

·                It is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes; 

 

·                It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be 

supplied to the CCG; 

 

·                It is expected to be used for more than one financial year; 

 

·                The cost of the item can be measured reliably; and, 

 

·                The item has a cost of at least £5,000; or, 

 

·                Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually 

have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had 

broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates 

and are under single managerial control; or, 

 

·                Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward 

or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective cost. 

 

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with 

significantly different asset lives, the components are treated as separate assets and 

depreciated over their own useful economic lives. 

1.11.2 Valuation 

 

All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost 

directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and 

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 

management. All assets are measured subsequently at valuation. 

 

Land and buildings used for the CCG’s services or for administrative purposes are stated in 

the statement of financial position at their re-valued amounts, being the fair value at the 

date of revaluation less any impairment. 
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Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are 

not materially different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting 

period. Fair values are determined as follows: 

 

·                Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use; and, 

 

·                Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost. 

 

HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations 

based on modern equivalent assets and, where it would meet the location requirements of 

the service being provided, an alternative site can be valued. 

 

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at 

cost, less any impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, 

which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair 

value. Assets are re-valued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use. 

 

Fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to 

be materially different from current value in existing use. 

 

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it 

reverses an impairment for the same asset previously recognised in expenditure, in which 

case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there. A 

revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential 

is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is 

a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses 

that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit are taken to expenditure. Gains 

and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported as other comprehensive 

income in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. 

 

The CCG had no property as at 31 March 2017 therefore there has not been any property 

revaluation in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: nil). 

1.11.3 Subsequent Expenditure 

 

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the 

directly attributable cost is capitalised. Where subsequent expenditure restores the asset to 

its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the 

item replaced is written-out and charged to operating expenses. 

 

1.12 Intangible Assets 

 

The CCG had no intangible assets as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil). 

 

1.13 Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairments 

 

Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not depreciated. 

 

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of 

property, plant and equipment and intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, 

over their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of economic 

benefits or service potential of the assets. The estimated useful life of an asset is the period 

over which the CCG expects to obtain economic benefits or service potential from the 

asset. This is specific to the CCG and may be shorter than the physical life of the asset 

itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each year end, with the effect 

of any changes recognised on a prospective basis. Assets held under finance leases are 

depreciated over their estimated useful lives. 

 

At each reporting period end, the CCG checks whether there is any indication that any of its 

tangible or intangible non-current assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is 

indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to 

determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount. Intangible assets not yet 

available for use are tested for impairment annually. 
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A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service 

potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent 

that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. 

Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit are taken to 

expenditure. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the 

asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the 

amount that would have been determined had there been no initial impairment loss. The 

reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease 

previously charged there and thereafter to the revaluation reserve. 

 

1.14 Donated Assets 

 

The CCG had no donated assets as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil). 

 

1.15  Government Grants 

 

The value of assets received by means of a government grant are credited directly to 

income. Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached to the grant 

preclude immediate recognition of the gain.   

 

The CCG had no government grants in 2016-17 (2015-16: nil). 

 

1.16 Non-current Assets Held For Sale 

 

The CCG had no non-current assets held for sale as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: 

nil). 

 

1.17 Leases 

 

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

1.17.1 The CCG as Lessee 

 

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the 

inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease 

payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments 

are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to 

achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance 

charges are recognised in calculating the CCG’s surplus/deficit. 

 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 

lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a 

reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

 

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated 

and individually assessed as to whether they are operating or finance leases. 

1.17.2 The CCG as Lessor 

 

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount 

of the CCG’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting 

periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the CCG’s net investment 

outstanding in respect of the leases. 

 

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of 

the lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are 

added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis 

over the lease term. 

 

1.18 Private Finance Initiative Transactions 

 

The CCG is not party to any Private Finance Initiative (PFI schemes as at 31 March 2017 

(31 March 2016: nil). 

 

1.19 Inventories 

 

The CCG did not hold any inventories as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil). 
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1.20 Cash & Cash Equivalents 

 

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty 

on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 

months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known 

amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 

 

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank 

overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral part of the CCG’s cash 

management. 

 

1.21   Provisions 

 

Provisions are recognised when the CCG has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 

result of a past event, it is probable that the CCG will be required to settle the obligation, 

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount 

recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 

obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. 

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its 

carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate 

as follows: 

 

·                Timing of cash flows (0 to 5 years inclusive): Minus 2.70% (previously: minus 

1.55%) 

 

·                Timing of cash flows (6 to 10 years inclusive): Minus 1.95% (previously: minus 

1.0%) 

 

·                Timing of cash flows (over 10 years): Minus 0.80% (previously: plus 0.8%) 

 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 

recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain 

that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured 

reliably. 

 

The CCG had no provisions as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil) 

. 

1.22   Clinical Negligence Costs 

 

The NHS Litigation Authority operates a risk pooling scheme under which the CCG pays an 

annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority which in return settles all clinical 

negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although the NHS Litigation 

Authority is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability 

remains with the CCG. 

 

1.23   Non-clinical Risk Pooling 

 

The CCG participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties 

Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which the CCG pays an annual contribution 

to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives assistance with the costs of claims 

arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of 

particular claims are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due. 

 

1.24 Continuing Healthcare Risk Pooling 

 

In 2014-15 a risk pool scheme was been introduced by NHS England for continuing 

healthcare claims, for claim periods prior to 31 March 2013.  Under the scheme CCGs 

contribute annually to a pooled fund which is used to settle the claims. 

 

The contribution made by the CCG in the financial year 2016-17 was £224,000 (2015-16: 

£560,000). 
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1.25 Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme 

 

Carbon Reduction Commitment and similar allowances are accounted for as government 

grant funded intangible assets if they are not expected to be realised within twelve months, 

and otherwise as other current assets. They are valued at open market value. As the CCG 

makes emissions, a provision is recognised with an offsetting transfer from deferred 

income. The provision is settled on surrender of the allowances. The asset, provision and 

deferred income amounts are valued at fair value at the end of the reporting period.  The 

CCG considers this to be immaterial therefore no provision was recognised as at 31 March 

2017 (31 March 2016: nil). 

 

1.26 Contingencies 

 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose 

existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the CCG, or a present obligation that 

is not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the 

obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured sufficiently reliably. A 

contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote. 

 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will 

be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 

not wholly within the control of the CCG. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of 

economic benefits is probable. 

 

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present 

value. 

 

The CCG had no contingent assets or liabilities as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil). 

 

1.27 Financial Assets 

 

Financial assets are recognised when the CCG becomes party to the financial instrument 

contract or, in the case of trade receivables, when the goods or services have been 

delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or 

the asset has been transferred. 

 

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: 

 

·                Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss; 

 

·                Held to maturity investments; 

 

·                Available for sale financial assets; and, 

 

·                Loans and receivables. 

 

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is 

determined at the time of initial recognition. 

1.27.1 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss 

 

Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, 

and contracts with embedded derivatives whose separate value cannot be ascertained, are 

treated as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at fair value, 

with any resultant gain or loss recognised in calculating the CCGs surplus or deficit for the 

year. The net gain or loss incorporates any interest earned on the financial asset. 

1.27.2 Held to Maturity Assets 

 

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments and fixed maturity, and there is a positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. 

After initial recognition, they are held at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 

less any impairment. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. 

1.27.3 Available For Sale Financial Assets 

 

Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as 

available for sale or that do not fall within any of the other three financial asset 

classifications. They are measured at fair value with changes in value taken to the 

revaluation reserve, with the exception of impairment losses. Accumulated gains or losses 

are recycled to surplus/deficit on de-recognition. 

1.27.4 Loans & Receivables 
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Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments which are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, they are 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.  

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. 

 

Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, otherwise by 

valuation techniques. 

 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 

through the expected life of the financial asset, to the initial fair value of the financial asset. 

 

At the end of the reporting period, the CCG assesses whether any financial assets, other 

than those held at ‘fair value through profit and loss’ are impaired. Financial assets are 

impaired and impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment as 

a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and 

which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset. 

 

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is 

measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 

the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The 

loss is recognised in expenditure and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through a 

provision for impairment of receivables. 

 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease 

can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the 

previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through expenditure to the extent that 

the carrying amount of the receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed does not 

exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised. 

 

1.28  Financial Liabilities 

 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Statement of Financial Position when the CCG 

becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of 

trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-

recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has 

expired. 

1.28.1 Financial Guarantee Contract Liabilities 

 

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are subsequently measured at the higher of: 

 

·                The premium received (or imputed) for entering into the guarantee less 

cumulative amortisation; and, 

 

·                The amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance 

with IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. 

1.28.2  Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss 

 

Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, 

and contracts with embedded derivatives whose separate value cannot be ascertained, are 

treated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at fair value, 

with any resultant gain or loss recognised in the CCG’s surplus/deficit. The net gain or loss 

incorporates any interest payable on the financial liability. 

1.28.3 Other Financial Liabilities 

 

After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using 

the effective interest method, except for loans from Department of Health, which are carried 

at historic cost. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 

cash payments through the life of the asset, to the net carrying amount of the financial 

liability. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. 
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1.29  Value Added Tax 

 

Most of the activities of the CCG are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax 

does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged 

to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed 

assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated 

net of VAT. 

 

1.30 Foreign Currencies 

 

The CCG’s functional currency and presentational currency is sterling. Transactions 

denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on 

the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items 

denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March. 

Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are recognised in the CCG’s 

surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise. 

 

1.31 Third Party Assets 

 

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not 

recognised in the accounts since the CCG has no beneficial interest in them. 

 

1.32  Losses & Special Payments 

 

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when 

it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items 

that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures 

compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which 

govern the way that individual cases are handled. 

 

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in 

expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good 

through insurance cover had the CCG not been bearing its own risks (with insurance 

premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure). 

 

The CCG made no losses or special payments in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: nil). 

 

1.33 Joint Operations 

 

Joint operations are activities undertaken by the CCG in conjunction with one or more other 

parties but which are not performed through a separate entity. The CCG records its share 

of the income and expenditure; gains and losses; assets and liabilities; and cash flows. 

 

1.34 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted 

 

The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require the following Standards and 

Interpretations to be applied in 2016-17, all of which are subject to consultation: 

 

·                IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (application from 1 January 2018) 

 

·                IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts (not applicable to DH groups bodies) 

 

·                IFRS 15: Revenue for Contract with Customers (application from 1 January 2018) 

 

·                IFRS 16: Leases (application from 1 January 2019) 

 

The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the 

accounts for 2016-17, were they applied in that year. 
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2016-17

2. Other Operating Revenue

2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16

Total Admin Programme Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 186 0 186 0

Patient transport services 0 0 0 0

Prescription fees and charges 0 0 0 0

Dental fees and charges 0 0 0 0

Education, training and research 25 0 25 155

Charitable and other contributions  to revenue expenditure: NHS 0 0 0 0

Charitable and other contributions  to revenue expenditure: non-NHS 0 0 0 0

Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions: NHS Charity 0 0 0 0

Receipt of Government grants for capital acquisitions 0 0 0 0

Non-patient care services to other bodies 1,536 275 1,261 3,732

Continuing Health Care risk pool contributions 0 0 0 0

Income generation 0 0 0 0

Rental revenue from finance leases 0 0 0 0

Rental revenue from operating leases 0 0 0 0

Other revenue 486 7 479 92

Total other operating revenue 2,233 282 1,951 3,979

Admin revenue is revenue received that is not directly atributable to the provision of healthcare or healthcare related services.

3. Revenue

All revenue is from the supply of services.  The CCG receives no revenue from the sale of goods.

Revenue in this note does not include cash received from NHS England, which is drawn down directly into the bank account of 

the CCG and credited to the general reserve.
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2016-17

4. Employee benefits and staff numbers

4.1.1 Employee benefits 2016-17

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other

£'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 3,111 2,832 279

Social security costs 313 313 0

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 361 361 0

Other pension costs 0 0 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0

Termination benefits 7 7 0

Gross employee benefits expenditure 3,792 3,513 279

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2) (186) (186) 0

Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs 3,606 3,327 279

Less: Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 3,606 3,327 279

4.1.1 Employee benefits 2015-16

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other

£'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 2,645 2,353 292

Social security costs 210 210 0

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 268 268 0

Other pension costs 0 0 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0

Termination benefits 0 0 0

Gross employee benefits expenditure 3,123 2,831 292

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2) 0 0 0

Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs 3,123 2,831 292

Less: Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 3,123 2,831 292

4.1.2 Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 2016-17 2015-16

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits - Revenue

Salaries and wages (150) (150) 0 0

Social security costs (15) (15) 0 0

Employer contributions to the NHS Pension Scheme (21) (21) 0 0

Other pension costs 0 0 0 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0 0

Termination benefits 0 0 0 0

Total recoveries in respect of employee benefits (186) (186) 0 0

Total

Total
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4.2 Average number of people employed
2015-16

Total

Permanently 

employed Other Total
Number Number Number Number

Total 68 63 5 55

Of the above:
Number of whole time equivalent people engaged on 0 0 0 0

4.3  Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements
2016-17 2015-16
Number Number

Total Days Lost 564 581
Total Staff Years 64 53
Average working Days Lost 9 11

2016-17 2015-16
Number Number

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds 0 0

£'000 £'000
Total additional Pensions liabilities accrued in the year 0 0

Ill health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pension Scheme.  Where the CCG agrees early retirements, the additional costs 
are met by the CCG and not by the NHS Pension Scheme.

4.4 Exit packages agreed in the financial year

2016-17 2016-17 2016-17

Number £ Number £ Number £
Less than £10,000 0 0 1 7,170 1 7,170
£10,001 to £25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£25,001 to £50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£50,001 to £100,000 0 0 1 99,105 1 99,105
£100,001 to £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£150,001 to £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
Over £200,001 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 2 106,275 2 106,275

Number £ Number £ Number £
Less than £10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£10,001 to £25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£25,001 to £50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£50,001 to £100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£100,001 to £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£150,001 to £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
Over £200,001 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Number £ Number £
Less than £10,000 0 0 0 0
£10,001 to £25,000 0 0 0 0
£25,001 to £50,000 0 0 0 0
£50,001 to £100,000 0 0 0 0
£100,001 to £150,000 0 0 0 0
£150,001 to £200,000 0 0 0 0
Over £200,001 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0

Analysis of Other Agreed Departures

Number £ Number £
Voluntary redundancies including early retirement contractual costs 1 7,170 0 0
Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) contractual costs 0 0 0 0
Early retirements in the efficiency of the service contractual costs 0 0 0 0
Contractual payments in lieu of notice 1 99,105 0 0
Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or court orders 0 0 0 0
Non-contractual payments requiring HMT approval* 0 0 0 0
Total 2 106,275 0 0

Other agreed departures

2015-16
Compulsory redundancies Other agreed departures Total

2016-17 2015-16

Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting standards and at the latest in full in the year of departure.
The Remuneration Report includes the disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that Report.

2016-17

Other agreed departures

These tables report the number and value of exit packages agreed in the financial year. The expense associated with these departures may have 

Compulsory redundancies Other agreed departures Total

Departures where special 

2015-16 2015-16

Departures where special 

2016-17 2015-16
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 4.5 Pension costs 

 Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. Details of the 

benefits payable under these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at 

www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/Pensions. 

 The Scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and 

other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The Scheme 

is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying 

scheme assets and liabilities. 

 Therefore, the Scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the CCG 

of participating in the Scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the Scheme for the 

accounting period. 

 The Scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, every five years) and an 

accounting valuation every year. An outline of these follows: 

 4.5.1 Full actuarial (funding) valuation 

 The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the 

Scheme (taking into account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution 

rates to be paid by employers and scheme members. The last such valuation, which determined current 

contribution rates was undertaken as at 31 March 2012 and covered the period from 1 April 2008 to that 

date. Details can be found on the pension scheme website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.  

 For 2016-17, employers’ contributions of £388,327 were payable to the NHS Pensions Scheme (2015-

16: £323,760) were payable to the NHS Pension Scheme at the rate of 14.3% of pensionable pay.  The 

scheme’s actuary reviews employer contributions, usually every four years and now based on HMT 

Valuation Directions, following a full scheme valuation.  The latest review used data from 31 March 

2012 and was published on the Government website on 9 June 2012. These costs are included in the 

NHS pension line of note 4.1.1. 
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5. Operating expenses

2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16

Total Admin Programme Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Gross employee benefits

Employee benefits excluding governing body members 3,360 2,063 1,297 2,871

Executive governing body members 432 432 0 252

Total gross employee benefits 3,792 2,495 1,297 3,123

Other costs

Services from other CCGs and NHS England 3,940 740 3,200 1,770

Services from foundation trusts 72,566 34 72,532 72,380

Services from other NHS trusts 130,099 80 130,019 121,927

Services from other WGA bodies 49 0 49 55

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 45,504 0 45,504 43,859

Chair and Non Executive Members 246 246 0 350

Supplies and services – clinical 161 0 161 92

Supplies and services – general 141 102 39 100

Consultancy services 89 76 13 71

Establishment 441 157 284 395

Transport 2 2 0 3

Premises 1,122 174 948 1,773

Impairments and reversals of receivables 0 0 0 0

Inventories written down and consumed 0 0 0 0

Depreciation 2 2 0 2

Amortisation 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals of intangible assets 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals of financial assets

·          Assets carried at amortised cost 0 0 0 0

·          Assets carried at cost 0 0 0 0

·          Available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals of non-current assets held for sale 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals of investment properties 0 0 0 0

Audit fees 59 59 0 59

Other non statutory audit expenditure

·          Internal audit services 0 0 0 0

·          Other services 0 0 0 0

General dental services and personal dental services 0 0 0 0

Prescribing costs 40,162 0 40,162 39,706

Pharmaceutical services 0 0 0 0

General ophthalmic services 0 0 0 0

GPMS/APMS and PCTMS 28,344 0 28,344 27,650

Other professional fees excl. audit 208 42 166 147

Grants to Other bodies 1,173 0 1,173 1,811

Clinical negligence 0 0 0 0

Research and development (excluding staff costs) 0 0 0 0

Education and training 54 27 27 37

Change in discount rate 0 0 0 0

Provisions 0 0 0 0

Funding to group bodies 0 0 0 0

CHC Risk Pool contributions 224 0 224 560

Other expenditure 105 0 105 102

Total other costs 324,691 1,741 322,950 312,849

Total operating expenses 328,483 4,236 324,247 315,972

Admin expenditure is expenditure incurred that is not a direct payment for the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.
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6.1 Better Payment Practice Code

Measure of compliance 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16

Number £'000 Number £'000

Non-NHS Payables

Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the Year 5,982 77,208 4,721 50,968

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 5,771 75,627 4,586 50,772

Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target 96.47% 97.95% 97.14% 99.62%

NHS Payables

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 2,281 208,781 2,074 197,246

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target 2,219 208,357 2,037 197,203

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 97.28% 99.80% 98.22% 99.98%

The CCG met the 95% target in all areas for 2016-17.

6.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998

7. Income Generation Activities

8. Investment revenue

The CCG had no investment revenue in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: nil).

9. Other gains and losses

The CCG had no other gains and losses in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: nil).

10. Finance costs

The CCG had no finance costs in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: nil).

11. Net gain/(loss) on transfer by absorption

The CCG had no income generation activities in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: nil).

The CCG did not make any payments under the provisions of the Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 

in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: nil).

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the CCG to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of 

receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later, with a target performance of 95%.

The CCG had no net gains and losses on transfer by absorption in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: nil).
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12. Operating Leases

12.1 As lessee

12.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense 2016-17 2015-16

Land Buildings Other Total Land Buildings Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments 0 387 4 391 0 1,734 10 1,744

Contingent rents 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-lease payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 387 4 391 0 1,734 10 1,744

12.1.2 Future minimum lease payments 2016-17 2015-16

Land Buildings Other Total Land Buildings Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payable:

No later than one year 0 121 0 121 0 131           8              139

Between one and five years 0 0 0 0 0 131           2              133

After five years 0 0 0 0 0 -            -            0

Total 0 121 0 121 0 262 10 272

The CCG has one operating lease agreement in place with St Helens Chamber for the lease of the CCG's HQ accommodation.  The lease term is from 1 

April 2013 to 31 March 2018 and therefore has a maximum of 1 year remaining with a minimum lease payment of £121,162 should the CCG continue to 

the end of the lease.

The CCG also pays for void space and subsidies for properties owned and managed by Community Health Partnerships Ltd (CHP) and NHS Property 

Services Ltd (NHSPS).

Whilst the CCG's arrangements with CHP and NHSPS fall within the definition of operating leases, the rental charge for future years, including any 

charge for void space, has not yet been agreed.  Consequently, note 12.1.2 does not include future minimum lease payments for these arrangements.

The "Other" category in tables 12.1.1 and 12.1.2 relates to photocopier leases and a lease car.

In 2015-16 invoices received from NHSPS and CHP were not broken down in any detail therefore the total amounts on the invoices mapped to operating 

leases.

In 2016-17 the invoices contain more detail which has enabled the CCG to correctly code each element, hence the amounts for facilities management 

no longer maps to operating leases giving a reduction in the amount disclosed.
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13. Property, plant and equipment

2016-17

Plant & 

machinery

Information 

technology Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or valuation at 01 April 2016 16 167 183

Addition of assets under construction and payments on account 0

Additions purchased 0 0 0

Additions donated 0 0 0

Additions government granted 0 0 0

Additions leased 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 (167) (167)

Upward revaluation gains 0 0 0

Impairments charged 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body 0 0 0

Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation 0 0 0

Cost/Valuation at 31 March 2017 16 0 16

Depreciation 01 April 2016 5 167 172

Reclassifications 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 (167) (167)

Upward revaluation gains 0 0 0

Impairments charged 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0

Charged during the year 2 0 2

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body 0 0 0

Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation 0 0 0

Depreciation at 31 March 2017 7 0 7

Net Book Value at 31 March 2017 9 0 9

Purchased 9 0 9

Donated 0 0 0

Government Granted 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2017 9 0 9

Asset financing:

Owned 9 0 9

Held on finance lease 0 0 0

On-SOFP Lift contracts 0 0 0

PFI residual: interests 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2017 9 0 9

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment

Plant & 

machinery

Information 

technology Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2016 0 0 0

Revaluation gains 0 0 0

Impairments 0 0 0

Release to general fund 0 0 0

Other movements 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2017 0 0 0
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13. Property, plant and equipment cont'd

2015-16

Plant & 

machinery

Information 

technology Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2015 16 167 183

Addition of assets under construction and payments on account 0

Additions purchased 0 0 0

Additions donated 0 0 0

Additions government granted 0 0 0

Additions leased 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 (167) (167)

Upward revaluation gains 0 0 0

Impairments charged 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body 0 0 0

Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation 0 0 0

Cost/Valuation at 31 March 2016 16 0 16

Depreciation 1 April 2015 3 167 170

Reclassifications 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 (167) (167)

Upward revaluation gains 0 0 0

Impairments charged 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0

Charged during the year 2 0 2

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body 0 0 0

Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation 0 0 0

Depreciation at 31 March 2016 5 0 5

Net Book Value at 31 March 2016 11 0 11

Purchased 11 0 11

Donated 0 0 0

Government Granted 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2016 11 0 11

Asset financing:

Owned 11 0 11

Held on finance lease 0 0 0

On-SOFP Lift contracts 0 0 0

PFI residual: interests 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2016 11 0 11

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment

Plant & 

machinery

Information 

technology Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2015 0 0 0

Revaluation gains 0 0 0

Impairments 0 0 0

Release to general fund 0 0 0

Other movements 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2016 0 0 0
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13. Property, plant and equipment cont'd

13.1 Additions to assets under construction

The CCG had no additions to assets under construction in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: nil).

13.2 Donated assets

The CCG had no donated assets as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil)

13.3 Government granted assets

The CCG had no Government granted assets as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil)

13.4 Property revaluation

13.5 Compensation from third parties

13.6 Write downs to recoverable amount

13.7 Temporarily idle assets

The CCG had no temporarily idle assets as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil).

13.8 Cost or valuation of fully depreciated assets

The CCG had no fully depreciated assets still in use as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil).

13.9 Economic lives

Minimum Life (years)Maximum Life (Years)

Buildings excluding dwellings 0 0

Dwellings 0 0

Plant & machinery 6 6

Information technology 0 0

Furniture & fittings 0 0

14. Intangible non-current assets

The CCG had no intangible non-current assets as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil).

15. Investment property

The CCG had no investment property as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil).

16. Inventories

The CCG had no inventories as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil).

The CCG had no property as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil) and therefore there has not 

been any property revaluation in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: nil).

There has been no compensation received from third parties for assets impaired, lost or given 

up in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: nil).

There have been no assets written down to recoverable amounts and no reversals of previous 

write-downs in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: nil).
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17. Trade and other receivables Current Non-current Current Non-current

2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

NHS receivables: Revenue 230 0 2,865 0

NHS receivables: Capital 0 0 0 0

NHS prepayments 0 0 0 0

NHS accrued income 2,472 0 1,864 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA receivables: Revenue 506 0 439 0

Non-NHS  and Other WGA receivables: Capital 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA prepayments 51 0 62 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA accrued income 120 0 53 0

Provision for the impairment of receivables 0 0 0 0

VAT 15 0 4 0

Private finance initiative and other public private partnership 

arrangement prepayments and accrued income 0 0 0 0

Interest receivables 0 0 0 0

Finance lease receivables 0 0 0 0

Operating lease receivables 0 0 0 0

Other receivables and accruals 1,518 0 1,047 0

Total Trade & other receivables 4,912 0 6,334 0

Total current and non current 4,912 6,334

Included above:

Prepaid pensions contributions 0 0

17.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired 2016-17 2015-16

£'000 £'000

By up to three months 358 145

By three to six months 10 13

By more than six months 9 43

Total 377 201

£308,108 of the amount above has subsequently been recovered post the statement of financial position date.

The CCG did not hold any collateral against receivables outstanding as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil).

17.2  Provision for impairment of receivables

The CCG conducted an impairment review of all receivables as at 31 March 2017.

18. Other financial assets

The CCG had no other financial assets as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil).

The majority of trade is with NHS England.  As NHS England is funded by Government to provide funding to CCGs to 

commission services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.

The CCG does not have any provision for impairment of receivables as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil) as it 

believes the credit quality of all receivables to be sufficient that no provision for impairment is required.
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19. Other current assets

The CCG had no other current assets as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil).

20. Cash and cash equivalents

2016-17 2015-16

£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2016 40 20

Net change in year 2 20

Balance at 31 March 2017 42 40

Made up of:

Cash with the Government Banking Service 42 40

Cash with Commercial banks 0 0

Cash in hand 0 0

Current investments 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 42 40

Bank overdraft: Government Banking Service 0 0

Bank overdraft: Commercial banks 0 0

Total bank overdrafts 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2017 42 40

Patients’ money held by the CCG, not included above 0 0

21. Non-current assets held for sale

The CCG had no non-current assets held for sale as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil).

22. Analysis of impairments and reversals

The CCG had no impairments or reversals of impairments recognised in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: 

nil).
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 29. Finance lease receivables 

 The CCG had no finance lease receivables as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil). 
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Current Non-current Current Non-current

2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Interest payable 0 0 0 0

NHS payables: revenue 1,518 0 1,003 0

NHS payables: capital 0 0 0 0

NHS accruals 477 0 1,046 0

NHS deferred income 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: Revenue 1,049 0 794 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: Capital 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA accruals 9,956 0 9,578 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA deferred income 0 0 0 0

Social security costs 45 0 35 0

VAT 0 0 0 0

Tax 38 0 35 0

Payments received on account 0 0 0 0

Other payables and accruals 365 0 1,342 0

Total Trade & Other Payables 13,448 0 13,833 0

Total current and non-current 13,448 13,833

24. Other financial liabilities

The CCG had no other financial liaibilities as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil).

25. Other liabilities

The CCG had not other liaibilities as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil).

26. Borrowings

The CCG had no borrowings as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil).

27. Private finance initiative, LIFT and other service concession arrangements

28. Finance lease obligations

The CCG had no finance lease obligations as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil).

23. Trade and other payables

Other payables include £54,582 outstanding staff pension contributions as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 

2016: £47,703) and £199,898 outstanding GP pension contributions (31 March 2016: nil).

In 2015-16 the payable in relation to the pooled budget with the Local Authority mapped to "Other 

payables and accruals", however in 2016-17 NHS England has amended the coding guidance and this 

payable now maps to "Non-NHS and other WGA accruals".

The CCG had no private finance initiatives, LIFT or other service concession arrangements as at 31 March 

2017 (31 March 2016: nil).
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30. Provisions 

 Under the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England on 12 February 2014, NHS England is 

responsible for accounting for liabilities in relation to CHC Continuing Healthcare claims relating to 

periods of care before the establishment of the CCG. However, the legal liability remains with the CCG. 

The total value of legacy NHS Continuing Healthcare provisions accounted for by NHS England on 

behalf of the CCG as at 31 March 2017 was £0.2 million (31 March 2016: £0.4 million). 

 31. Contingencies 

 The CCG had no contingencies as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil). 

 32. Commitments 

 The CCG had no capital or other financial commitments as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil). 

 33. Financial instruments 

 33.1 Financial risk management 

 Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had 

during the period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. 

 Because the CCG is financed through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the degree of financial 

risk faced by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or 

changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which the financial reporting standards 

mainly apply. The CCG has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and 

liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks 

facing the CCG in undertaking its activities. 

 Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined 

formally within the CCG's standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Audit Committee. 

Treasury activity is subject to review by the CCG and internal auditors. 

 33.1.1 Currency risk 

 The CCG is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and 

liabilities being in the UK and sterling based. The CCG has no overseas operations. The CCG and 

therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations. 

 33.1.2 Interest rate risk 

 The CCG borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS 

England. The borrowings are for 1 to 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest 

is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan. The CCG therefore has low 

exposure to interest rate fluctuations. 

 33.1.3 Credit risk 

 Because the majority of the CCG revenue comes parliamentary funding, the CCG has low exposure to 

credit risk. The maximum exposures as at the end of the financial year are in receivables from 

customers, as disclosed in the trade and other receivables note. 

 33.1.4 Liquidity risk 

 The CCG is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits, which are financed from 

resources voted annually by Parliament. The CCG draws down cash to cover expenditure, as the need 

arises. The CCG is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks. 
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33. Financial instruments cont'd

33.2 Financial assets

At ‘fair value 

through profit 

and loss’

Loans and 

Receivables

Available for 

Sale Total

31 March 2017 31 March 2017 31 March 2017 31 March 2017

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0 0

Receivables:

·          NHS 0 2,702 0 2,703

·          Non-NHS 0 626 0 626

Cash at bank and in hand 0 42 0 42

Other financial assets 0 1,518 0 1,518

Total at 31 March 2017 0 4,888 0 4,888

At ‘fair value 

through profit 

and loss’

Loans and 

Receivables

Available for 

Sale Total

31 March 2016 31 March 2016 31 March 2016 31 March 2016

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0 0

Receivables:

·          NHS 0 4,729 0 4,729

·          Non-NHS 0 492 0 492

Cash at bank and in hand 0 40 0 40

Other financial assets 0 1,047 0 1,047

Total at 31 March 2016 0 6,308 0 6,308

33.3 Financial liabilities

At ‘fair value 

through profit 

and loss’ Other Total

31 March 2017 31 March 2017 31 March 2017

£'000 £'000 £'000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0

Payables:

·          NHS 0 1,995 1,995

·          Non-NHS 0 11,370 11,369

Private finance initiative, LIFT and finance lease obligations 0 0 0

Other borrowings 0 0 0

Other financial liabilities 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2017 0 13,365 13,364

At ‘fair value 

through profit 

and loss’ Other Total

31 March 2016 31 March 2016 31 March 2016

£'000 £'000 £'000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0

Payables:

·          NHS 0 2,049 2,049

·          Non-NHS 0 11,714 11,714

Private finance initiative, LIFT and finance lease obligations 0 0 0

Other borrowings 0 0 0

Other financial liabilities 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2016 0 13,763 13,763
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34. Operating segments

The CCG considers that it only has one operating segment: commissioning of healthcare services.

35. Pooled budgets

2016-17 2015-16

£'000 £'000

Income 28,744 31,112

Expenditure (30,808) (31,979)

36. NHS LIFT investments

The CCG had no LIFT investments as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil).

The CCG's share of the income and expenditure handled by the pooled budget in the financial year was:

The CCG and Local Authority have pooled budgets for the majority of Continuing Health Care (CHC) and 

share financial risk on the pooled budget fund with the CCG contributing £14.4 million of the total pooled 

amount of £25.6 million.  CHC is hosted and managed by the Local Authority including the assessment 

and management of cases.  The pooled budget for the Better Care Fund is £16.56 million with the CCG 

contributing £14.4 million.
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37. Related party transactions

2016-17

Payments to 

Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

£000 £000 £000 £000

Dr Joseph Banat - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Partner in Park House Surgery 967 0 33 0

Dr Joseph Banat - Governing Body Member: Related Party is St Helens ROTA GP Member 1,106 0 89 0

Prof Stephen Cox - Clinical Chief Executive and Governing Body Member (until Aug 16): Related 

Party is Partner at Spinney Medical Centre, St Helens.   984 0 47 (11)

Prof Stephen Cox - Clinical Chief Executive and Governing Body Member (until Aug 16): Related 

Party is Practice is member of Federation of St Helens Training Practices which has a provider arm 

(Aspect Health Ltd).  18 (5) 13 0

Prof Stephen Cox - Clinical Chief Executive and Governing Body Member (until Aug 16): Related 

Party is Practice is a member of St Helens Rota Ltd - Out of Hours provider.  1,106 0 89 0

Mr Paul Brickwood - Chief Finance Officer (until April 17): Related Party is Employee Knowsley CCG 1,266 (296) 103 0

Mr Paul Brickwood - Chief Finance Officer (until April 17): Related Party is Employee Halton CCG 64 (5) 0 0

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse - Governing Body Member: Related Party is St Helens GP Rota Member 1,106 0 89 0

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Central Surgery GMS Practice 784 0 37 0

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Partner of Mill Street Medical Centre 1,613 0 97 0

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Member practice of St Helens Rota. 1,106 0 89 0

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Federation of Training Practices in St 

Helens business arm Aspect Health Ltd. 18 (5) 13 0

Dr Paul Rose - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Partner in Crossroads Medical Surgery 405 0 10 0

Dr Julie Whittaker - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Patterdale Lodge Medical Services 

Ltd. 1,503 0 64 0

Mr Mike Wyatt - Recovery Director: Related Party is Strategic Director of People’s Services St 

Helens Council 31,978 (856) 238 (414)

Elaine Inglesby - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Executive Director of Salford Royal 

Foundation Trust/Pennine Acute NHS Trust. 590 0 0 (60)

Elaine Inglesby - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Trustee Willow Brook Hospice. 1,061 0 22 0

Mr Iain Stoddart - Chief Finance Officer (from Dec 2016): Related Party is NHS Knowsley CCG 

Employee 1,266 (296) 103 0

Prof Sarah O'Brien - Interim Clinical Chief Executive: Related Party is Diabetes Clinic services at The 

Spinney Medical Centre. Non paid role. 984 0 47 (11)

Susan Forster - Governing Body Member: Related Party is St Helens Council 31,978 (856) 238 (414)

Katie Power - Non-Voting Governing Body Member: Related Party is Spinney Medical Centre 984 0 47 (11)

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party.  In the financial year 2016-17 the CCG has had a significant number of material transactions with 

entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.  These entities are:

• St Helens and Knowsley Hospitals NHS Trust

• Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

• Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

• Liverpool Women's Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

• Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust

• Liverpool Heart and Chest NHS Foundation Trust

• Wrightingon, Wigan and Leigh NHS Foundation Trust

• Bridgewater Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust

• Alder Hey Childrens NHS Foundation Trust

• 5 Borough Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

• The Walton Centre NHS Foundation Trust

• North West Ambulance NHS Trust

• NHS Business Services Authority

• NHS Litigation Authority

• NHS Pensions Agency

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:

• NHS England (including NHS Midlands & Lancashire Commissioning Support Unit and NHS Arden & Greater East Midlands Commissioning Support Unit)

In addition, the CCG has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies.  Most of 

these transactions have been with St Helens Council.
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37. Related party transactions (cont'd)

2015-16

Payments to 

Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

£000 £000 £000 £000

Dr Joseph Banat - Governing Body Member:  Related party is Park House Surgery as partner in the 

practice 1,093 0 87 0

Dr Joseph Banat - Governing Body Member:  Related party is St Helens Rota as member 907 0 0 0

Paul Brickwood - Chief Finance Officer:  Related party is NHS Halton CCG as Chief Finance Officer 154 (118) 38 0

Paul Brickwood - Chief Finance Officer:  Related party is NHS Knowsley CCG as Chief Finance 

Officer 332 (20) 85 0

Professor Stephen Cox - Clinical Chief Executive:  Related party is Spinney Medical Centre as 

partner in the practice 955 0 38 0

Professor Stephen Cox - Chief Clinical Officer:  Related party is St Helens Rota as member 907 0 0 0

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse - Governing Body Member:  Related party is Central Surgery as a partner in 

the practice 994 0 191 0

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse - Governing Body Member:  Related party is St Helens Rota as member 907 0 0 0

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is Mill Street Medical Centre as partner in 

the practice 1,359 0 0 (77)

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is St Helens Rota as member 907 0 0 0

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is Aspect Health as Director 24 0 0 0

Liz Gaulton - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is St Helens Council as Director of Public 

Health 32,742 (495) 1,896 (1,309)

Dr Robert Hirst - GP Tutor:  Related Party is Haydock Medical Centre as partner in the practice 932 0 58 0

Dr John Holden - GP:  Related Party is Garswood Surgery as partner in the practice 829 0 241 0

Dr John Holden - GP:  Related Party is Aspect Health as director 24 0 0 0

Peter Hughes - Member of Finance and Performance Committee:  Related Party is St Helens 

Council as Director of Policy 32,742 (495) 1,896 (1,309)

Peter Hughes - Member of Finance and Performance Committee:  Related Party is St Helens 

Citizens Advice Bureau as Board Member 159 0 0 0

Peter Hughes - Member of Finance and Performance Committee:  Related Party is St Helens 

Coalition for Disabled People, spouse is Chief Executive 29 0 2 0

Dr Debra King - Governing Body Member: Related party is Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS 

Financial Trust as employee 186 0 9 0

Dr Paul Rose - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is Crossroads Surgery as partner in practice 454 0 11 0

Dr Paul Rose - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is St Helens Rota as practitioner for Acute 

Visiting Scheme 907 0 0 0

Dr Omar Shaikh - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is Newholme Surgery as partner in 

practice 642 0 158 0

Dr Omar Shaikh - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is St Helens Rota as member 907 0 0 0

Dr Julie Whittaker - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is Patterdale Lodge Medical Services 

Ltd as a partner in the practice 1,596 0 58 0

Dr Julie Whittaker - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is St Helens Rota as member 907 0 0 0

Mike Wyatt - Governing Body Member:  Related Part is St Helens Council as Director of Adult Social 

Care & Health 32,742 (495) 1,896 (1,309)

Mike Wyatt - Governing Body Member:  Related Party is Halton and St Helens Voluntary and 

Community Association as representative on the board 57 0 10 0

Elaine Inglesby - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust as 

employee. 598 0 0 0

• St Helens and Knowsley Hospitals NHS Trust

• Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

• Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

• Liverpool Women's Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

• Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust

• Liverpool Heart and Chest NHS Foundation Trust

• Wrightingon, Wigan and Leigh NHS Foundation Trust

• Bridgewater Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust

• Alder Hey Childrens NHS Foundation Trust

• 5 Borough Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

• The Walton Centre NHS Foundation Trust

• North West Ambulance NHS Trust

• NHS Business Services Authority

• NHS Litigation Authority

• NHS Pensions Agency

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:

• NHS England (including NHS Midlands & Lancashire Commissioning Support Unit and NHS Arden & Greater East Midlands Commissioning Support Unit)

In addition, the CCG has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies.  Most of 

these transactions have been with St Helens Council.

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party.  In the financial year 2016-17 the CCG has had a significant number of material transactions with 

entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.  These entities are:
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38. Events after the end of the reporting period

39. Third party assets

The CCG held no third party assets as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: nil).

40. Financial performance targets

The CCG's deficit is summarised in the following table:

£'000

Programme Allocation 313,319

Running Costs Allocation 4,204

Total Allocation 2016-17 317,523

Total Expenditure 328,483

Total Income (2,233)

Net Expenditure 2016-17 326,250

2016-17 Surplus/(Deficit) (8,727)

The CCG has a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).

The CCG's performance against those duties was as follows:

2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16

Section Duty Maximum Performance Maximum Performance

£000 £000 £000 £000

223H(1)* Expenditure not to exceed income 319,756 328,483 316,071 315,972

223I(2)

Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified 

in Directions 0 0 0 0

223I(3)

Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount 

specified in Directions 317,523 326,250 312,092 311,993

223J(1)

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed 

the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 0

223J(2)

Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not 

exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 0

223J(3)

Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the 

amount specified in Directions 4,204 3,954 4,264 4,086

41. Impact of IFRS

Accounting under IFRS had no impact on the results of the CCG in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: nil).

42. Analysis of charitable reserves

The CCG held no charitable reserves in the financial year 2016-17 (2015-16: nil).

There are no events after the end of the reporting period that require disclosures.

*Note: For the purposes of 223H(1); expenditure is defined as the aggregate of gross expenditure on revenue and capital in the f inancial year; and, income is 

defined as the aggregate of the notif ied maximum revenue resource, notif ied capital resource and all other amounts accounted as receiveable in the f inancial year 

(w hether under provisions of the Act or from other sources, and included here on a gross basis).

The CCG met its statutory duty under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended) under sections 223I(2), 223J(1), 223J(2) and 223J(3), however it 

did not meet its statutory duty under sections 223H(1) and 223I(3).
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Appendix 1 - Governing Body – Committee Register of Attendance  

         
 

NAME TITLE Governing Body Audit Committee 

Finance, 
Governance & Risk 
Committee 
(from September 2016) 

Quality & 
Performance 
Committee 
 

Primary Care 
Committee 
 
 

HR & Remuneration 
Committee 
 
 

Finance & Peformance 
Committee 
(until August 2016) 

Geoffrey Appleton Lay Chair 11/11 NA NA NA 7 /7  4/4 NA 

Joseph Banat GP Governing Body member 10/11 5/5  NA 10/11 5/7 NA  NA 

Paul Brickwood Chief Finance Officer 10/11 4/5 5/7 NA 5/7 NA 3/5 

Steve Cox Clinical Chief Executive (until September) ¾ NA NA 2/5 1/3 1/3 2/2 

Mike Ejuoneatse GP Governing Body/Deputy Chief Executive 8/11 NA 2/7 NA 7/7 3/4 NA 

Lisa Ellis Interim Chief Nurse (from October) 4/5 NA NA 9/11 ¾ NA NA 

Hilary Flett GP Governing Body member 10/11 NA 5/7 NA 6/7  NA 5/5 

Sue Forster Director of Public Health 7/11 NA NA 7/11 3/7 NA NA 

Tony Foy Lay Member 11/11 5/5 5/7 NA 7/7  2/4 5/5 

Ben Green Secondary Care Doctor (August-November) ½ NA NA NA NA  NA NA 

Elaine Inglesby Executive Nurse 5/11 NA NA 0/11 NA  NA NA 

Rachel Jones Lay Member 10/11 4/5 NA 10/11 7/7 3/4 NA 

Sarah O’Brien 
Chief Nurse & Clinical Chief Executive (from 

September) 
9/11 NA 5/7 7/11 6/7  3/3 NA 

Paul Rose GP Governing Body member 8/11 NA 2/7 9/11 1/7 NA NA 

Omar Shaikh GP Governing Body member (until March) NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 

Iain  Stoddart Incoming Chief Finance Officer 4/4 NA 2/4 NA 1/1 NA NA 

Julie Whittaker GP Governing Body member (until December) 0/8 NA NA NA 0/3 NA 1/1 

Mike Wyatt Director of People’s services 8/11 NA NA NA 1/7 NA NA 

 


